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year of transformation integration and growth

message fram the beard chairman and the cea

What began with recagnitian af vaid in the wind energy supply chain has been transformed

inta comprehensive salutian ta improve supply chain afferings efficiencies and respansiveness

far the wind and pawer infrastructure industries Thraugh significant financial investment

lang-term fccus an superiar returns an capital and the hard wark experience and
faresight af

aur employees Braadwind Energy is naw functianal fully-integrated
and farward-thinking

public campany

On February 28 2008 the campany changed its name fram Tawer Tech Holdings Inc to

Broadwind Energy Inc In June during the American Wind Energy Associations WINDPOWER

2008 show in Houston we introduced Broadwind and our supply chain model to the wind

industrys leading participants

In the past twelve months we formed operational platforms centered around products and

services to fulfill many of the needs of the rapidly growing wind energy market We bolstered

these platforms through the completion of two additional acquisitions and the
restructuring and

refocusing of all five entrepreneurial subsidiaries into valuable and
integral parts

of large

publicly-traded company poised to become the preferred supplier to customers Perhaps most

importantly we transformed these companies without
sacrificing

their entrepreneurial spirit
In

our companies you will find veterans who now with improved access to financial and
strategic

resources are free to fully engage in the innovation and creativi that drives value far

our customers

Meanwhile we developed corporate structure and platform leadership teams to respond

to specific business and customer needs while delivering cast savings and efficiency through

integrated crass-platform cooperation We put together team of experts and seasoned

professionals with wind industry industrial manufacturing and energy service experience to

lead our new organization

At the subsidiary level our leadership was focused an restructuring investing
and delivering

growth We invested aver $83 million in capital expenditures in 2008 which places our

companies in excellent
position

to thrive and contribute to the overall vision that is Broadwind

Those plans continue to be developed adlusted and updated to stay ahead of market evolution

and demand

Examples of these investments include

Badger Transport increased its fleet by aver 30 percent and expanded

its customer portfolio

Brad Foote Oear Works doubled its manufacturing space
with third facili

and invested heavily in equipment that places the company far ahead of
any

North American competitor in precision gear manufacturing





Naoe linois based Broadwind Energy Inc NASDAQ BWEN provides
broad

array
of

ntegrated supply
chan solutions to

the po nfrostructure industry with an emphasis on the wind energy secor Broadwind products and services include wind tower

and cs on gear manufacturing heavy steel fabrcation wind
facili construction support wind turbine installation and maintenance

and urbne ransportation services Boadwinds customers nclude many of the leading wind turbine manufacturers and wind farm

owne North America Broadwind empoys more than 000 empoyees and has over 1000000
square

feet of production and

servic erter capac nationwde



Bodge founded in 1982 and acquired by Broadwind in June 2008 is

vder of
transportation services for oversized/overweght equipment

and

chinery primarily to the wind industry The company specializes in the

tru spor at tower sections blades nacelles and other oversized
equipment

orge industrial applications Badger has been in business for more than

years
with

years
in specialized hea haul and more than years

the wind industry Badger operates from its headquarters in Clinfonvi le

V\ sconsin As of December 2008 Badger operated or leased total of

64 trailers The company has performed hea haul servces for customers

ughout the United States and Canada including partnering with Energy

uirtenance Services on blade repair prolects and with Tower Tech on

duct de iveries

irg 2008 Broadwind ana the team at Badger enhanced the trucking

ipany by restructurng its ganizational resources both from internal

oloyee and operations perspectives and terms of service delivery

Tn se enhancements allow fo more balanced customer portfolio
and more

sstent yearoound capabili We also increased the companys trailer fleet

more than 30 percent to increase our services to the market

\\ specia ized fleet that capable of hauling all three
malor

wind turbine

nponens towers blades and the turbine itself Badger is an excellent fit

customers who need comprehensive prolect logistical
services



MS

Energy Maintenance Service EMS founded in 998 and acquired

by Broadwind in January 2008 provides construction operations and

anfenance and component repair services for the wind industry EMS

specializes wind turoine repair offerings incluaing major component

refurbishing wind turbine maintenance construction support
and

engineering

and advisory services The
companys customers nclude turbine and

component manufacturers wind farm owners and developers The

companys main office is in Gary South Dakota and it has major repair

hubs in Howard South Dakota and Abilene Texas as weH as satellite field

ser ice centers in CaLfornia and Illinois

More than half of the nameplate wind capaci installed North America is

now in the megawatt MW class In 2008 to better position EMS for the

future Broadwind and the team of EMS further developed the companys

capaci and abili to repair and retrofit these larger turbines This develop

ment required upgrades in the companys eqmpment faciities and workforce

EMS added nearly 00 technicians to double the size of its staff and opened

facilities in Tehachapi California and Abilene At 300000 square feet

He Abilene
facilib/

is one of the largest wind service centers in North America

unaer one roof During 2008 EMS launcned its arge-sca MW biae repair

service at the Abilene site

EMS plans to continue ts expansions in 2009 with additional ocations and

new service opportunities for customers



EA RWO

Foote Gear Works founded in 924 and acquired by Broadwind

ctober 2007 is the argest precision gear
manufacturer for the wind

gy industry North America Brad Foote produces precision and custom

neerea gearing systems for wind power generation oil production steel

ansportation industries Brad Foote has two facilities in Cicero lUinois

one faciIi in NeviUe Island Pennsylvania Together they represent the

est gear grinding and carburizing capaci in North America As of

ember 2008 Brad Foote had total manufacturing space
of

roximately 569000 square
feet

late 2007 Brad Foote nas doubled its high-volume precision and

omgeaing capabilities and capaci with third facIi created new

ce te and upgraded existing centers made significant capital

stments in new precision-gearing equipment
and increased its workforce

ng
he same period Broadwind installed new management team at

Foote and oversaw complete restructuring
of the organization These

sty were designed to improve operational efficiency and
responsiveness

from on internal perspective enable the development and mplementation

stroteg diversification strategy and long-term global view

cd Foote maintains tremendous reputation
for quali in wind

energy

other energy-related industries In addition the company was the first

ufacurer to be ISO certified
gear production



R3flINC

R.B founded in 1985 and acquired by Broadwind in Ocfober 2007

specializes in hea steel fabrication and performs special welding services

R.B refurbishes assembles and welds hea equipment for the crane

manufacturing consirucrion marine and mining arid me als industries R.B.A.s

specialized welding expertise supports and will assist Tower Tech in developing

technical expertise in providing future generations of customized wind towers

R.B has facilities in \Aanitowoc and intonville Wisconsin As of

December 2008 R.B.A had total manufacturing space
of approximately

100000 square feet

R.B expanded in 2008 by adding second location in ClintonvIle The

second plant more than doubles the companys space and expands its

capaci and capabi ities for serving diverse heavy industrial markets

key focus for the
year was enhancng R.B.A core capabilities as hea

ndustrial weldment company while developing it into special tooling and

technology business

Also in 2008 Broadwind and the team at R.B.A began formulating plans that

wil leverage the companys experience and expertise fabrcating parts and

equipment for Broadwind companies This is part
of more expansive strategy

that will ultimatey allow Broadwind to develop unque designs and build

special equipment
wthout subcontracting the fabrication work



TOWER jTECH

Fo ded in 2003 Tower Tech Systems manufactures utili-scaIe wind towers

fo vind energy development The company is leading manufacturer of wind

toy ers and specializes in delivering the larger and heavier next generation

of wers our customers Tower Tech has strategically located facilties in

tvA itowoc Wisconsin and Abilene Texas and partially
constructed third

ower manufacturing facilfty in Brandon South Dakota Tower Techs

fa ties have combined annua production capaci of up to 500 MW

of md energy production on an annual basis As of December 2008

Jo er Tech had total manufacturing space
of

approximatey 346000 square

ee ts Manitowoc and Abilene facilities

Br odwind and the team at Tower Tech developed and began implementing

ur oe expansion and supply strategy in 2008 by announcng
the construction

io new wind tower manufacturing facilities in Brandon and Abilene To

gn
the new plants Tower Tech solicited input from lean manufacturing

cx er in verse fields ranging from automotive to marine who had been

ved plant design for serial production The results were designs for

ma acturing environments that minimize labor hours while optimizing output

quali/ through key techno ogies All of the designs and technologies were

and oroven in the Manowoc foci

the addition of the Abilene plant
which came online for serial production

nuary 2009 and further
expansion

in Manitowoc Tower Tech more than

du bled ts capaci and became one of the fastest-growing wind tower

utacturing companies in North America Construction on the third plant in

So Dakota has been brought to level of completion that will allow the

co pany to finish construction and begin tower section production within

rea ively short timeframe
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Forward-Looking Statements This Annual Report to Stockholders including
the statements made in the

letter to stockholders from our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board includes forward-

looking statements within the meaning of the safe harbor
provisions

of the United States Private Securi

ties Litigation
Reform Act of 995 that

is statements related to future not past events Forward-looking

statements are based on current expectations and include
any statement that does not directly

relate to

current or historical fact In this context forward-looking statements often address our expected future

business and financial performance and often contain words such as anticipate believe intend

expect plan will or other similar words These forward-looking statements involve certain risks and

uncertainties that ultimately may not prove to be accurate Actual results and future events could differ

materially from those anticipated in such statements For further discussion of risks and uncertainties

individuals shoild refer to the Companys SEC filings The Company undertakes no obligation and does

not intend to update these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after

the date of this Annual Report You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking

statements which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report All forward-looking statements are

qualified in their
entirety by this cautionary statement



BROADWIND ENERGY INC

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given to the holders of the shares of common stock of Broadwind Energy Inc
Delaware corporation the Company or Broadwind that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders the
Annual Meeting will be held at 800 a.m Central Daylight Time on Tuesday June 2009 at the

Hilton Garden Inn 4449 Ridgemont Drive Abilene Texas 79606 to consider and act upon the

following matters

To elect the six director nominees named in the attached proxy statement to serve on the

Board of Directors for term of one year or until their successors are duly elected and

qualified

To approve an amendment to the Broadwind Energy Inc 2007 Equity Incentive Plan to

increase the number of common shares authorized for issuance under the plan to 5500000

To ratify the selection of Grant Thornton LLP as the Companys independent registered

public accounting firm for 2009

To consider and act upon such other matters as may properly come before the meeting and

any adjournments or postponements thereof

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 23 2009 are entitled to notice of the

meeting and to vote at the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof

We ask that you review the proxy statement carefully and complete sign date and return the

enclosed proxy in the envelope provided or vote over the internet or by telephone as described on the

enclosed proxy Your vote is important The prompt return of proxies will save the Company the

expense of further requests for proxies

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

James Lindstrom

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Naperville Illinois

April 29 2009

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON JUNE 2009

The Notice of Annual Meeting Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K are available on

our Internet website wwwbroadwindenergy.com



BROADWIND ENERGY INC

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

June 2009

PROXY STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION

Your proxy is solicited by the Board of Directors of Broadwind Energy Inc Delaware

corporation Broadwind or the Company for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders the Annual

Meeting to be held on Tuesday June 2009 at the location and for the purposes set forth in the

Notice of Meeting and at any adjournment or postponement thereof

The cost of soliciting proxies including the preparation assembly and mailing of the proxies and

soliciting material as well as the cost of forwarding such material to beneficial owners of the

Companys common stock will be borne by the Company Directors officers and regular employees of

the Company may without compensation other than their regular remuneration solicit proxies

personally or by telephone

You may vote your shares by telephone over the Internet or by mail by following the instructions

on the enclosed proxy If you vote by telephone or over the Internet you do not need to return your

proxy by mail Internet and telephone voting facilities will close at 1200 p.m Central Daylight Time
on June 2009 If your shares are held in street name you must instruct the record holder of your

shares in order to vote

The presence at the Annual Meeting in person or by proxy of the holders of majority of our

outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote shall constitute quorum for the transaction of

business If stockholder abstains from voting as to any matter then the shares held by such

stockholder shall be deemed present at the meeting for purposes of determining quorum If broker

returns non-vote proxy indicating lack of voting instructions by the beneficial holder of the

shares and lack of discretionary authority on the part of the broker to vote on particular matter

then the shares covered by such non-vote proxy shall be deemed
present at the meeting for purposes of

determining quorum but otherwise shall have no effect since the shares are not entitled to vote with

regard to proposal Any stockholder giving proxy may revoke it at any time prior to its use at the

meeting by giving written notice of such revocation to the Company who will forward it to the person

or persons appointed by the Company to count the votes of stockholders or by attending and voting at

the meeting Proxies not revoked will be voted in accordance with the choice specified by stockholders

by means of the ballot provided on the proxy for that purpose Proxies which are signed but which lack

any such specification will subject to the following be voted in favor of the proposals set forth in the

Notice of Meeting and in favor of the slate of directors proposed by the Board of Directors and listed

herein

vote of plurality of the votes cast by the holders of the shares of the Companys common stock

present in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting is required to elect each of the director nominees

Abstentions and broker non-votes in connection with the election of directors will have no effect on

such election since directors are elected by plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting

For all other business matters including Proposal Nos and set forth in the Notice of Meeting
the affirmative vote of majority of the shares of the Companys common stock present in person or

by proxy at the Annual Meeting is required to pass the proposal Abstentions will have the same effect



as vote against any such matters Broker non-votes will not be counted in determining the number

of votes cast and therefore will have no effect on the outcome of such other business conducted at the

Annual Meeting including Proposal Nos and

The mailing address of the principal executive offices of the Company is 47 East Chicago Avenue

Suite 332 Naperville Illinois 60540 The Company expects that this Proxy Statement the related proxy

and Notice of Meeting will first be mailed to stockholders on or about April 29 2009

OUTSTANDING SHARES AND VOTING RIGHTS

The Board of Directors of the Company has fixed April 23 2009 as the record date for

determining stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting Persons who were

not stockholders on such date will not be allowed to vote at the Annual Meeting At the close of

business on April 2009 96546782 shares of the Companys common stock were issued and

outstanding The common stock is the only outstanding class of capital stock of the Company entitled

to vote at the meeting Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote on each matter to be voted

upon at the meeting No holders of any capital stock of the Company are entitled to cumulative voting

rights

PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT STOCKHOLDINGS

The following table sets forth as of April 2009 certain information regarding beneficial

ownership of our common stock by

Each person known to us to beneficially own 5% or more of our common stock

Each of our executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table who in this proxy

statement are collectively referred to as the named executive officers

Each of our directors including nominees and

All of our executive officers as that term is defined in the Securities Act of 1933 as amended

the Securities Act and directors as group

We have determined beneficial ownership in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act Beneficial ownership generally means having

sole or shared voting or investment power with respect to securities Unless otherwise indicated in the

footnotes to the table each sluckhuldci named in the table has-sole voting and investment -power with

respect to the shares of Broadwind common stock set forth opposite the stockholders name We have



based our calculation of the percentage of beneficial ownership on 96546782 shares of our common

stock outstanding on April 2009

Amount and

Nature of

Beneficial Percent of

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner or Identity of Groupl Ownership Class2

5% Beneficial Owners

Jeffrey Gendell with respect to shares directly owned by Tontine Capital

Partners L.P Tontine Capital Overseas Master Fund L.P Tontine

Partners L.P Tontine Overseas Fund Ltd and by Tontine 25 Overseas Master

Fund L.P.34 47003635 48.7%

55 Railroad Avenue Floor

Greenwich CT 06830

Executive Officers and Directors

Charles Beynon5 74480

Cameron Drecoll6 12700868 13.2%

William Fejes Jr

Terence Fox7 5095175 5.3%

Matthew Gadow8 85000

Steven Huntington9 15000

James Lindstrom10
Lars Moller11 105000

Robert Paxton 16258

David Reiland12 8333

J.D Rubin 17419

All executive officers and directors as group 11 persons 18117533 18.7%

Less than 1%

The address for each of our directors and officers is 47 East Chicago Avenue Suite 332

Naperville Illinois 60540

Based on 96546782 common shares issued and outstanding as of April 2009 Shares not

outstanding but deemed beneficially owned by virtue of the right of person to acquire them as of

April 2009 or within sixty days of such date are treated as outstanding only when determining

the percent owned by such individual and when determining the percent owned by group

Represents 19431022 shares held by Tontine Capital Partners L.P Delaware limited partnership

TCP 5556666 shares held by Tontine Capital Overseas Master Fund L.P Cayman Island

limited partnership TMF 13159665 shares held by Tontine Partners L.P Delaware limited

partnership TP 5103141 shares held by Tontine Overseas Fund Ltd Cayman Islands

exempted company TOF and 3753141 shares held by Tontine 25 Overseas Master Fund L.P

Cayman Islands limited partnership T25 and together with TCP TMF TP TOF and affiliates

Tontine as set forth in Tontines most recent Schedule 13D/A filing with the Securities and

Exchange Commission SEC on January 16 2009 These amounts include 7537688 shares of

Broadwind common stock issued to TCP pursuant to Securities Purchase Agreement dated

April 22 2008 and 601472 1652996 and 1078864 shares of Broadwind common stock acquired

by TMF TP and TOF respectively pursuant to their exercise of conversion rights under senior

subordinated convertible notes issued to them by Broadwind in October 2007 Each of TMF TP

and TOF converted the original principal amount of the senior subordinated convertible notes on

April 24 2008



Mr Jeffrey Gendell is the managing member of the following entities Tontine Capital

Management L.L.C Delaware limited liability company that is the general partner of TCP and

T25 ii Tontine Capital Overseas GF L.L.C Delaware limited liability company that is the

general partner
of TMF iii Tontine Management L.L.C Delaware limited liability company

that is the general partner
of TP and iv Tontine Overseas Associates L.L.C Delaware limited

liability company that is the investment advisor for TOE Therefore Mr Gendell is deemed to

beneficially own the shares owned by TCI TMF TI TOF and T25 Tontine and its affiliates have

shared voting and dispositive powers with respect to these shares See Certain Transactions and

Business Relationships below for description of the transactions in which Tontine acquired most

of these shares Tontine has voting control over additional shares of our common stock for certain

matters pursuant to the following proxy agreements

The Founding Stockholders Proxy Agreements In connection with Securities Purchase

Agreement among TCP and TMF as buyers and Raymond Brickner III Christopher Allie

Daniel Wergin and Terence Fox as sellers together the Founding Stockholders which was

entered into in March 2007 each of the Founding Stockholders entered into an irrevocable proxy

agreement with TCP and TMF the Founding Stockholders Proxy Agreements whereby each

Founding Stockholder appointed each of TCP or TMF and any other person appointed by those

entities as proxy with respect to any and all shares of our common stock then beneficially owned

or subsequently acquired by such persons including shares over which such persons have voting

control as trustee or in any other capacity with respect to the following matters ensuring that

any future acquisitions by Tontine entities of up to 35% of our fully-diluted outstanding common

stock will not be subject to anti-takeover provisions included in any of our organizational

documents or the laws and regulations of any governmental authority and ii electing directors

for the purpose of enforcing the rights of TCP and TMF to appoint designees to our Board of

Directors which right was granted to TCP and TMF in Securities Purchase Agreement dated

March 2007 among TCP TMF and us then known as Tower Tech Holdings Inc the March

2007 Agreement Pursuant to the Founding Stockholders Proxy Agreements each of the

Founding Stockholders also agreed in his capacity as director on our Board of Directors to vote

for the Board of Directors designees of TCP and TMF and to enforce the rights of those entities

in connection with any future acquisitions by them of our common stock The Founding

Stockholders Proxy Agreements terminate automatically at such time as Tontine no longer has the

right to acquire our common stock or appoint directors to our Board of Directors

The Brad FOote yAeiæØili iUofi thO iiIff fiªd FOOle

Works Inc gearing systems manufacturer Brad Foote and the appointment of Cameron

Drecoll as our director and Chief Executive Officer the former Brad Foote stockholders and

Tontine entered into proxy agreement whereby Tontine agreed that so long as the former Brad

Foote stockholders collectively own at least 15% of our common stock Tontine will vote its shares

of our common stock for Mr Drecoll in any election of directors to our Board of Directors The

former Brad Foote stockholders similarly agreed that so long as Tontine and its affiliates have the

right to appoint at least one director to our Board of Directors under either the March 2007

Agreement or the August 2007 Agreement as defined below the Brad Foote stockholders will

vote their shares of our common stock in favor of the election of those individuals appointed by

Tontine We issued total of 16036450 shares of our common stock to the former Brad Foote

stockholders as consideration for the acquisition

Tontine entered into Right of First Offer and Right of First Refusal Letter with the Company

Integritas Inc and the Founding Stockholders and certain trusts controlled by the Founding

Stockholders pursuant to which Tontine has the right to purchase additional shares of the

Companys common stock in certain instances



Includes 11666 vested but unexercised options to purchase Broadwind common stock of which

3333 vest as of April 13 2009

Mr Drecoll acquired his shares of our common stock and was appointed as director and Chief

Executive Officer in connection with our acquisition of Brad Foote Mr Drecoll has entered into

voting agreement with Tontine the terms of which are described above in Footnote to this

table Includes 1980000 shares of Company common stock held by Mr Drecoll in escrow as of

April 2009 and which is subject to forfeiture during the 18-month period following the date of

the Stock Purchase Agreement for the acquisition of Brad Foote to satisfy claims arising as result

of breach of any of the representations and warranties or covenants in such agreement Subject

to its terms the escrow provision expires on April 19 2009

Includes 1000000 shares held indirectly by the Raymond Brickner III and Debra Brickner

Irrevocable Trust dated May 2005 and 1500000 shares held indirectly by the Wergin Family

Dynasty Trust 2005 With respect to certain matters as described above in Footnote to this

Beneficial Ownership Table Mr Fox has appointed TCP and TMF as proxy with respect to any

and all shares of Broadwind common stock beneficially owned by him including shares over which

he has voting control as trustee or in any other capacity

Includes 80000 vested but unexercised options to purchase Broadwind common stock

Includes 10000 vested but unexercised options to purchase Broadwind common stock

Mr Huntington resigned as Chief Financial Officer effective May 2008 at which time he began

serving as the Vice PresidentFinance of Tower Tech Systems Inc Tower Tech

10 Mr Lindstrom is employed by an affiliate of Tontine He disclaims beneficial ownership of the

shares beneficially owned by Tontine

11 Includes 100000 vested but unexercised options to purchase Broadwind common stock

12 Includes 8333 vested but unexercised options to purchase Broadwind common stock as of

April 16 2009

ELECTION OF NOMINEES FOR DIRECTOR

Proposal No

General Information

Pursuant to recommendation by the Governance/Nominating Committee the Board of Directors

has determined that the number of directors for the ensuing year will be set at six and that six

directors will be elected at the Annual Meeting All of the nominees are current members of the

Board of Directors Under the Companys Bylaws and applicable Delaware law the election of each

nominee requires the affirmative vote by plurality of the votes cast

In the absence of other instructions each proxy will be voted for each of the nominees listed

below If elected each nominee will serve until the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until his

or her successor shall be elected and qualified If prior to the meeting it should become known that

any of the nominees will be unable to serve as director after the meeting by reason of death

incapacity or other occurrence the proxies will be voted for such substitute nominee as is selected by

the Board of Directors or alternatively not voted for any nominee



The names and ages of all of our directors and the positions held by each with the Company are

as follows

Name Age Position

Charles Beynon12 60 Director

Cameron Drecoll3 54 Director Chief Executive Officer

William Fejes Jr.245 53 Director

Terence Fox14 53 Director

James Lindstrom134 36 Chairman of the Board

David Reiland236 55 Director

Member of the Compensation Committee

Member of the Audit Committee

Member of the Executive Committee

Member of the Governance/Nominating Committee

Mr Fejes was appointed to the Board of Directors effective March 19 2009

Member of the Finance Committee

Charles Beynon has served as member of the Companys Board of Directors since

October 24 2007 He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and is designated as financial expert

Mr Beynon is also member of the Compensation Committee Mr Beynon is Certified Public

Accountant in Texas and also serves as director of Integrated Electrical Services Inc public

company Mr Beynon retired as partner from Arthur Andersen Co in 2002 after 29-year career

with the firm including 19 years as partner He served as division head in the firms Houston office

where he was principally responsible for the firms services to middle market non-energy related clients

John Cameron Drecoll has served as our Chief Executive Officer and also as director since

October 19 2007 He was appointed to these positions in connection with our acquisition of Brad

Foote on October 19 2007 where Mr Drecoll held the positions of majority stockholder and Chief

Executive Officer since 1996 Mr Drecoll has more than 30
years

of experience in the industrial

manufacturing segment Prior to acquiring Brad Foote Mr Drecoll was Vice President of Regal

Beloit Corporation public company that designs manufactures and markets industrial power

transmission equipment In that role he specialized in integration and turnaround of new acquisitions

During his 15 years at Regal Beloit the company enjoyed five-fold increase in sales Mr Drecoll

served on the Board of Directors of the American Gear Manufacturer Association and served as

Chairman in 2003 Mr Drecoll received Mechanical Engineering degree and Masters of Business

Administration from Marquette University

William Fejes Jr has served as member of the Companys Board of Directors since March 19
2009 Mr Fejes is member of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Nominating/Governance

Committee Mr Fejes has been the Chief Operating Officer of Seakeeper Inc company that designs

manufactures and markets motion stabilization equipment for boats under 50 meters in length since

2007 Prior to joining Seakeeper Mr Fejes was the President and Chief Executive Officer of TB

Woods Incorporated public company that designs manufactures and markets industrial power

transmission components for three years Mr Fejes also held various executive management roles at

Danaher Corporation public company that designs manufactures and markets industrial and

consumer products for eighteen years Mr Fejes received both his Bachelor of Science degree and

Master of Science degree in electrical engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology



Terence Fox has served as member of the Companys Board of Directors since February 2006

Mr Fox is member of the Compensation Committee and Governance/Nominating Committee He

has been partner in the law firm of Kummer Lambert Fox LLP and its predecessor Dewane

Dewane Kummer Lambert Fox LLP located in Manitowoc Wisconsin since June 1987 Mr Fox

graduated from the University of WisconsinMilwaukee and the Marquette University Law School He

has many business and real estate interests and sits on the board of directors of several non-profit and

for-profit organizations in the Manitowoc Wisconsin area

James Lindstrom has served as member of the Companys Board of Directors since

October 24 2007 He is Chairman of the Board of Directors and is Chairman of the Compensation and

Executive Committees Mr Lindstrom is also member of the Governance/Nominating Committee He
has been employed by Tontine Associates LLC Greenwich Connecticut-based investment

partnership since February 2006 From 2003 to 2006 Mr Lindstrom was Chief Financial Officer of

Centrue Financial Corporation regional financial services company and has prior experience in

private equity and investment banking Mr Lindstrom received his BA from Colby College and his

MBA from the Tuck School of Business at Dartmouth

David Reiland has served as member of the Companys Board of Directors since April 16

2008 is member of the Audit Committee and is designated as financial expert Mr Reiland is also

Chairman of the Finance Committee and member of the Executive Committee Mr Reiland was

employed by Magnetek Inc public company that develops manufacturers and markets power and

motion control systems from August 1986 until January 2009 where he held numerous high-level

positions including executive vice president chief financial officer controller and vice president of

finance and served as Chief Executive Officer and President of Magnetek from October 2006 until

October 2008 Mr Reiland continues to serve on the board of directors of Magnetek Prior to joining

Magnetek Mr Reiland was an audit manager with Arthur Andersen Co Mr Reiland is certified

public accountant who also holds an undergraduate degree in financial management from California

State University Long Beach and Masters in Business Administration from the University of

Southern California

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Independence

The Board of Directors has determined that currently and at all times during the
year ended

December 31 2008 majority of its members are and have been independent as defined by the

listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market Nasdaq The Board of Directors considers in its

evaluation of independence any existing related-party transactions which are discussed later in this

proxy statement in the section entitled Certain Transactions and Business Relationships The Board

of Directors determination is based on its belief that none of the independent directors have any

relationships that in the opinion of the Board of Directors would interfere with the exercise of

independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of director The current independent

directors are James Lindstrom Charles H. Beynon Terence Fox David Reiland and William

Fejes Jr

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

The Company has Code of Ethics and Business Conduct Code of Ethics that applies to all of

our employees directors and officers including our principal executive officer principal financial

officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions The Code of

Ethics addresses such topics as protection and proper use of our assets compliance with applicable

laws and regulations accuracy and preservation of records accounting and financial reporting conflicts

of interest and insider trading The Code of Ethics is posted on our Internet website



wwwbroadwindenergy.com and is available in print free of charge to any stockholder who sends

request for paper copy to Broadwind Energy Inc Attn Investor Relations 47 East Chicago Avenue

Suite 332 Naperville IL 60540 Broadwind intends to include on its website any amendment to or

waiver from provision of its Code of Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer principal

financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions that

relates to any element of the code of ethics definition enumerated in Item 406b of Regulation S-K

Stockholder Communications with the Board of Directors

Stockholders may communicate directly with the Board of Directors All communications should

be directed to the Companys Secretary at the address below and should prominently indicate on the

outside of the envelope that it is intended for the Board of Directors or for non-management directors

and the Companys Secretary will forward the communications to all specified directors If no director

is specified the communication will be forwarded to the entire Board of Directors Stockholder

communications to the Board of Directors should be sent to

Broadwind Energy Inc

Attn Corporate Secretary

47 East Chicago Avenue

Suite 332

Naperville Illinois 60540

Director Attendance at Annual Meetings

Directors attendance at Annual Meetings of Stockholders can provide stockholders with an

opportunity to communicate with directors about issues affecting the Company Our Principles of

Corporate Governance encourage our directors to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders All of

our directors attended the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Committee and Board of Directors Meetings

During 2008 the Board of Directors met thirteen 13 times including in-person and telephonic

meetings The directors often communicate informally to discuss the affairs of the Company and when

appropriate take formal action by written consent of majority of all directors in accordance with the

Companys charter and bylaws and Delaware law

The Companys Board of Directors has five standing committees the Audit Committee the

Compensation Committee the Governance/Nominating Committee the Executive Committee and the

Finance Committee The Audit Compensation and Governance/Nominating Committees were formed

in October 2007 The Executive Committee was formed in August 2008 The Finance Committee was

formed in November 2008

In 2008 each director attended 90% or more of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board of

Directors and of committees of which he was member

Current Committee Membership

The following table sets forth the membership of each of the Companys committees

Audit Committee Compensation Committee Governance/Nominating Committee

Charles Beynon Chair James Lindstrom Chair William Fejes Jr

David Reiland Charles Beynon James Lindstrom

William Fejes Jr Chair Terence Fox Terence Fox



Executive Committee Finance Committee

James Lindstrom Chair David Reiland Chair
Cameron Drecoll

David Reiland

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors maintains an Audit Committee comprised of three of our independent

directors including two financial experts as defined below The current members of the Audit

Committee are Charles Beynon Chair David Reiland and William Fejes Jr William

Barrett served on the Audit Committee until his resignation from the Board of Directors effective

February 2009 The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee believe that the Audit Committees

current member composition satisfies the Nasdaq Marketplace Rule that governs audit committee

composition Rule 4350d2 including the requirement that audit committee members all be

independent directors as that term is defined by Nasdaq Rule 4200a15 and that the Audit

Committee and its members satisfy the criteria of Section 1OAm3 and Rule 1OA-3 of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 The primary function of the Audit Committee is assisting the Board of Directors

with oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial reports and other financial information

provided by the Company to any governmental body or the public the Companys systems of internal

controls regarding finance accounting legal compliance and ethics that management and the Board of

Directors have established and the Companys auditing accounting and financial reporting processes

generally The Audit Committee charter is posted on our Internet website wwwbroadwindenergy.com

and may be amended by approval of the Board of Directors upon recommendation by the

Governance/Nominating Committee The charter was approved on December 13 2007 The Audit

Committee met nine times in 2008

Audit Committee Charter and Scope of Authority

Under the Audit Committees written charter the primary duties and responsibilities of the Audit

Committee include but are not limited to the following

Review the Companys annual financial statements and any reports or other financial

information submitted to any governmental body or the public including any certification

report opinion or review rendered by the independent accountants

Review with management and the independent accountants any quarterly or annual report prior

to its filing and any release of earnings prior to its release

Appoint compensate and oversee the Companys independent accountants The Companys

independent accountants report directly to the Audit Committee Pre-approve all audit services

and non-audit services to be performed by the Companys independent accountants

Periodically consult with the independent accountants outside of the presence of management

regarding the integrity of the Companys internal and external reporting processes adequacy of

internal controls and the fullness and accuracy of the Companys financial statements

Inquire of management and external accountants about the adequacy of the Companys internal

control procedures as complete system as well as the discovery of any individual material gaps

and/or failures in the Companys internal control procedures

Review the audit scope and plan of internal auditors and independent auditors in order to

ensure coordination of efforts completeness of coverage reduction of redundant efforts and

effective use of audit resources

Prepare an annual Audit Committee Report to be presented to the Board of Directors



At least annually or more frequently as may be necessary each executive officer and director of

the Company shall report to the Audit Committee regarding all related-party transactions to

which such person and the Company may be party prior to the implementation of such

transaction to assess whether such transactions meet applicable legal requirements

As required by the applicable regulations of the SEC and Nasdaq establish and maintain

procedures for efficiently responding to complaints received by the Company regarding

accounting internal accounting controls and auditing including among other things procedures

that allow employees to submit concerns regarding questionable accounting and auditing matters

on an anonymous basis

Review annually the Audit Committees charter make appropriate recommendations to the

Governance/Nominating Committee and publish its Charter in accordance with applicable SEC

and Nasdaq rules and regulations

Audit Committee Financial Experts

The Board of Directors has determined that each of Charles Beynon and David Reiland is

an audit committee financial expert as defined in Item 407d5ii of Regulation S-K under the

Securities Act The designation of Messrs Beynon and Reiland as audit committee financial experts

does not impose on Messrs Beynon or Reiland any duties obligations or liability that are greater than

the duties obligations and liability imposed on Messrs Beynon and Reiland as members of the Audit

Committee and the Board of Directors in the absence of such designation or identification

Audit Committee Report

In accordance with its written charter adopted by the Board of Directors the Audit Committee

assists the Board of Directors with fulfilling its oversight responsibility regarding the quality and

integrity of the accounting auditing and financial reporting practices of Broadwind In discharging its

responsibilities regarding the audit process the Audit Committee

reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements with management

discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the material required to be

discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No 61 as amended AICPA Professional

Standards Vol AU section 380 as adopted by the Public Accounting Oversight Board in

Rule 3200T and

reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from the independent registered public

accounting firm required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board regarding the independent accountants communications with the audit

committee concerning independence and discussed with the independent registered public

accounting firm its independence

Based upon the review and discussions referred to above the Audit Committee recommended to

the Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in our Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission

Members of the Audit Committee

Charles Beynon Chair

William Fejes Jr

David Reiland
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Compensation Committee

The responsibility for evaluation of the compensation policies of the Company oversight of

managements performance and recommendations regarding compensation of senior management has

been delegated by the Board of Directors to the Compensation Qommittee The current members of

the Compensation Committee are James Lindstrom Chair Charles Beynon and Terence Fox

Messrs Lindstrom Beynon and Fox satisfy in the judgment of the Board of Directors the

independence requirements of Nasdaq Rule 4200a15

Compensation Committee Charter and Scope of Authority

Under the Compensation Committees written charter the primary duties and responsibilities of

the Compensation Committee include the following

Periodically review with management the Companys philosophy of compensation taking into

consideration enhancement of stockholder value from short intermediate and long-term

perspective and the fair and equitable compensation of all employees

Annually consider the relationship between the Companys strategic and operating plans and the

various compensation plans for which the Compensation Committee is responsible

Annually review the individual and Company performance goals and objectives of the Chief

Executive Officer and other senior management evaluate such officers performance in light of

these goals and determine and approve appropriate compensation levels and equity grants based

on this evaluation market data and the Companys compensation philosophy

Review senior management compensation policies and plans including incentive plans equity

plans benefits and perquisites

Review development plans for senior management

Periodically review with management and advise the Board of Directors with respect to

managements assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys human resources policies

strategies and programs including compensation levels employee deferred compensation plans

employee benefits and the ability to attract develop and retain talent

Periodically review with management and advise the Board of Directors with respect to equity

compensation plans and related registration statements and report to the full Board of Directors

if any stockholder approval or additional registration is necessary

Periodically review with management and advise the Board of Directors with respect to

administration of employee benefit plans

Review and recommend compensation plans for members of the Board of Directors

Assist the Board of Directors and the Company in developing and reviewing public disclosure of

matters relating to the compensation of the Companys directors senior management and Chief

Executive Officer as required by applicable laws or regulations or as the Board of Directors

deems to be in the best interest of the Company

Review periodically the Compensation Committees charter and make appropriate

recommendations to the Companys Governance/Nominating Committee

The Compensation Committee charter is posted on our Internet website

wwwbroadwindenergy.com and may be amended by approval of the Board of Directors upon
recommendation by the Governance/Nominating Committee The charter was approved on

December 13 2007 The Compensation Committee met eight times in 2008
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In making its compensation decisions and recommendations the Compensation Committee may

take into account the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer and other senior management

which as defined in the Compensation Committee charter includes any officer who reports directly to

the Chief Executive Officer and any other officer of the Company or its subsidiaries so designated by

the Chief Executive Officer Other than giving
such recommendations however the Chief Executive

Officer and other senior management have no formal role and no authority to determine the amount

or form of executive and director compensation

The Compensation Committee may at the expense of the Company retain legal counsel which

may but need not be the regular corporate counsel to the Company and other consultants and

advisors to assist it with its functions The Compensation Committee has authority to approve such

advisors fees and other retention terms and to terminate its relationship with any advisor that it

retains In addition the Compensation Committee has authority to delegate
its responsibilities to

subcommittees or individual committee members

Governance/Nominating Committee

The current members of the Governance/Nominating Committee are William Fejes Jr Chair

James Lindstrom and Terence Fox William Barrett served as chair of the Governance

Nominating Committee until his resignation from the Board of Directors effective February 2009

The Board of Directors believes that each member of the Governance/Nominating Committee satisfies

the independence requirements of Nasdaq Rule 4200a15 The nominees for election to the Board of

Directors at the Annual Meeting were recommended by the Governance/Nominating Committee The

Governance/Nominating Committee charter is posted on our Internet website

wwwbroadwindenergy.com and may be amended by approval of the Board of Directors upon

recommendation by the Governance/Nominating Committee The charter was approved on

December 13 2007 and amended on November 10 2008 The Governance/Nominating Committee met

three times in 2008

The Governance/Nominating Committee will review director nominees proposed by stockholders

stockholder who wishes to recommend one or more director nominees must provide written

recommendation to the Secretary of the Company at Broadwind Energy Inc 47 East Chicago

Avenue Suite 332 Naperville Illinois 60540 Notice of recommendation must include

with respect to the stockholder

such stockholders name and address and

the class and number of shares of the Companys common stock such stockholder owns

with
respect to the director nominee

name age business address and residence address

current principal occupation

five year employment history with employer names and description of the employers business

the number of shares of the Companys common stock beneficially owned by the director

nominee

whether such director nominee can read and understand basic financial statements

board memberships if any and

description of the experience and character traits Of the director nominee that based on the

board membership criteria as described below cause the director nominee to be suitable for
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Board of Directors membership and if desired an explanation of why the stockholder believes

that the director nominee would make meaningful contribution to the Board of Directors

The recommendation must be accompanied by written consent of the director nominee to stand

for election if nominated by the Board of Directors and to serve if elected by the stockholders The

Company may require any nominee to furnish additional information that may be needed to determine

the eligibility of the nominee

The Governance/Nominating Committee is responsible for matters relating to the selection of

candidates for and the tenure of the members of the Board of Directors for developing and

recommending to the Board of Directors set of Principles of Corporate Governance for the

Company and for overseeing and carrying out policies and
processes

that enhance the effective and

efficient governance of the Company

The Governance/Nominating Committee will consider candidates for the Board of Directors who

are recommended by stockholders directors third
party

search firms engaged by the Company and

other sources When selecting candidates for recommendation to the Board of Directors the

Governance/Nominating Committee will consider the attributes of the candidates and the needs of the

Board of Directors and will review all candidates in the same manner regardless of the source of the

recommendation In evaluating director nominees candidate should have certain minimum

qualifications including being able to read and understand basic financial statements having familiarity

with our business and industry having high moral character and mature judgment and being able to

work collegially with others In addition factors such as the following shall be considered

the independence standards established by the Company the presence of any material interests

that could cause conflict between the Companys interests and the interests of the director

nominee and the director nominees ability to exercise his or her best business judgment in the

interest of all stockholders

the director nominees willingness to adhere to the Companys Code of Ethics

the director nominees ability to devote sufficient time to the business of the Board of Directors

and at least one of the standing committees of the Board of Directors in light of the number of

other boards on which the director nominee serves for profit and not-for-profit and the other

business and professional commitments of the director nominee

the appropriate size and the diversity of the Companys Board of Directors

the knowledge skills and experience of the director nominee including experience in the

industry in which the Company operates as well as in the general areas of business finance

management and public service in light of prevailing business conditions and the knowledge
skills and experience already possessed by other members of the Board of Directors

the director nominees familiarity with domestic and international business matters

legal and regulatory requirements that are applicable to the Company

the director nominees experience with accounting rules and practices

the director nominees ability to enhance the relationship of the Companys business to the

changing needs of society and

the desire of the Board of Directors to balance the considerable benefit of continuity with the

periodic injection of the fresh perspective provided by new members
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently consists of James Lindstrom Chair Cameron Drecoll

and David Reiland The Executive Committee did not meet during fiscal 2008 but did communicate

informally to discuss the affairs of the Company and when appropriate take formal action by written

consent of its members in accordance with the Companys Bylaws and applicable Delaware law

The Executive Committees primary responsibility is to serve as an administrative committee of the

Board to facilitate approval of certain corporate actions that do not require consideration by the full

Board relating to the management of the business and affairs of the Company as are specifically

delegated to it by resolution of the full Board provided however that the Executive Committees

authority does not extend to several actions including amending the Companys Certificate of

Incorporation or Bylaws recommending to the stockholders of the Company or approving any tender

offer or exchange offer or the sale lease or exchange of all or substantially all of the Companys

property and assets recommending to the stockholders of the Company or approving dissolution of

the Company or revocation of dissolution recommending to the stockholders any transaction which

needs stockholder approval declaring dividends authorizing the issuance or repurchase of stock of the

Company

Finance Committee

David Reiland is the only current member and the Chair of the Finance Committee William

Barrett served on the Finance Committee until his resignation from the Board of Directors effective

February 2009 The Finance Committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight

responsibilities with respect to the Companys financial affairs including the Companys liquidity short

and long-term financing plans and capital structure reviews the annual business plan of the Company

and performs other duties as the Board of Directors may delegate from time to time The Finance

Committee did not have any formal meetings in 2008 but began informally meeting with management

representatives on weekly basis shortly after it was formed in November 2008

2008 Director Compensation

On October 24 2007 the Broadwind Energy Inc Board Compensation Plan the 2007 Board

Compensation Plan was declared effective by the Board of Directors Prior to the effective date of

the 2007 Board Compensation Plan our directors did not receive compensation In 2008 each eligible

director as defined below was compensated in accordance with the 2007 Board Compensation Plan

The 2007 Board Compensation Plan provided that each eligible director received $3750 per

calendar quarter for Board of Directors membership $600 for each meeting that he or she personally

attended and $500 for each meeting that he or she telephonically attended Committee chairpersons

received an additional cash fee of $3750 per calendar quarter for their service $1100 for each

committee meeting that he or she personally attended and $500 for each committee meeting that he or

she telephonically attended Other committee members received $600 for each committee meeting that

he or she personally attended and $500 for each committee meeting that he or she telephonically

attended An eligible director is defined as non-employee member of the Board of Directors who is

not otherwise compensated by Broadwind

The 2007 Board Compensation Plan was terminated on March 11 2009 In its place the Board of

Directors approved board compensation program the 2009 Board Compensation Program on

March 11 2009 Under the 2009 Board Compensation Program

each eligible director as defined above receives an annual equity grant of Restricted Stock

Units RSU5 with an economic value of $25000 and is paid cash fee of $12500 per

calendar quarter
for board membership $1250 for each Board of Directors or stockholder
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meeting that he or she personally attends and $750 for each Board of Directors or stockholder

meeting that he or she telephonically attends

an outside chairman of the Board of Directors is paid an additional cash fee of $12500 per

calendar quarter for service on the Board of Directors

committee chairpersons are paid an additional cash fee of $3750 per calendar quarter

committee members other than committee chairpersons are paid an additional cash fee of $1250

per calendar quarter

committee chairpersons and members are paid $1250 for each committee meeting that he or

she personally attends and $750 for each committee meeting that he or she telephonically

attends and

payments are made quarterly in arrears by the end of the first month following the quarter

In connection with their appointment as directors the Board of Directors granted to each of

Messrs Barrett Beynon and Reiland non-qualified stock options to purchase 25000 shares of the

Companys common stock under the Broadwind Energy Inc 2007 Equity Incentive Plan the 2007

Plan which was approved by the Board of Directors on August 20 2007 was approved by the

Companys stockholders on June 20 2008 and amended in August 2008 In addition the Board of

Directors granted to Mr Beynon non-qualified stock options to purchase 10000 shares of the

Companys common stock under the Plan in his capacity as Audit Committee Chair to recognize his

efforts in connection with the preparation of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the

2007 fiscal year The options will vest ratably over three-year period and have ten-year terms The

exercise price is equal to the fair market value on the date of the grant

In connection with his appointment as director the Board of Directors granted to William

Fejes Jr an RSU award of 7042 shares of the Companys common stock under the 2007 Plan The

RSU award to Mr Fejes will vest one year after the date of grant

Each non-employee director is eligible to participate in the Broadwind Energy Inc Deferred

Compensation Plan the Deferred Compensation Plan which was adopted by the Board of Directors

on October 24 2007 The Deferred Compensation Plan is an unfunded deferred compensation

arrangement subject to the provisions of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as

amended the IRC During 2008 three of our directors elected to participate in the Deferred

Compensation Plan The value of each participants account is deemed invested in shares of Broadwind

common stock and is payable upon separation from service or in the Administrators discretion upon

an unforeseeable emergency There were no earnings on deferred compensation for 2008
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2008 Director Compensation Table

Fees Earned or Option

Name Paid in Cash1$ Awards2$ Total$

James Lindstrom $47800 $47800

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Charles Beynon $290474 $58518 $87565

Audit Committee Chair

Raymond Brickner 1113

President

William Barrett5 $271554 $45792 $72947

Governance/Nominating Committee Chair

Cameron Drecoll

Chief Executive Officer

Terence Fox $233834 $23383

Director

David Reiland $34650 $34354 $69004

Director

Daniel Wergin6 7341 7341

Director

All directors received the amount of cash compensation to which they were entitled under the

Board Compensation Plan as described in the paragraphs directly preceding this Director

Compensation Table in the section entitled 2008 Director Compensation The 2007 Board

Compensation Plan was declared effective October 24 2007 and was terminated on March 11

2009

Represents the amounts expensed for financial statement reporting purposes for the year ended

December 31 2007 in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123R
Share-Based Payment SFAS No 123R for outstanding option awards granted to directors

during 2008 The assumptions used to determine the valuation of the awards are discussed in

Note 20 to our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 2008 On December 31 2008 the aggregate number of option

awards outstanding for each non-employee director was as follows James Lindstrom

Charles Beynon 35000 William Barrett 25000 Terence Fox and David Reiland

25000 The grant date fair value of each such stock awards was as follows Mr Beynon 25000

shares at $8.00 per share on October 24 2007 and 10000 shares at $9.40 per share on April 13

2008 Mr Barrett 25000 shares at $8.00 per
share on October 24 2007 and Mr Reiland 25000

shares at $10.25 per share on April 16 2008

Mr Brickner served on our Board of Directors until his resignation in April 2008

Individual elected to defer Board of Director fees The Company maintains deferred

compensation plan for certain key employees and nonemployee directors whereby certain wages

earned compensation for services rendered and discretionary company-matching contributions are

deferred and deemed to be invested in the Companys common stock Changes in the fair value of

the plan liability are recorded as charges or credits to compensation expense The fair value of the

plan liability to the Company is included in accrued liabilities in the Companys consolidated

balance sheets

Mr Barrett served on our Board of Directors until his resignation in February 2009

Mr Wergin served on our Board of Directors until his resignation in January 2008
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VOTE REQUIRED

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR each of the nominees to the Board of

Directors set forth in this Proposal No Under the Companys Bylaws and applicable Delaware law

the election of each nominee requires the affirmative vote of plurality of the votes of the shares

present in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS

Under its charter and applicable provisions of the Companys Code of Ethics the Audit

Committee has the responsibility to review transactions that are considered related party
transactions

under Rule 404 of Regulation S-K of the Securities Act and to assess whether such transactions meet

applicable legal requirements Directors who believe that they may be related parties in transactions

with the Company will inform the Board of Directors or Audit Committee of such belief and provide

all relevant information In accordance with Delaware law the transaction must be approved or ratified

in good faith by the Board of Directors or Audit Committee by majority vote of disinterested

directors be approved in good faith by vote of stockholders sufficient for the purpose or be fair to

the Company at the time the transaction is approved or ratified In addition under applicable law

transaction would not be void or voidable solely because it was with related party the related party

was present at or participated in meeting of the Board of Directors or Audit Committee in which the

transaction was approved or the related partys vote was counted for such purpose if the material facts

as to the related partys relationship or interest as to the transaction are disclosed or known to the

Board of Directors or Audit Committee or to the stockholders entitled to vote thereon

Certain Transactions and Business Relationships

Indebtedness of Founding Stockholders to Company

At December 31 2007 the Founding Stockholders owed us an aggregate of $282000 which

represents amounts paid by Broadwind on behalf of the Founding Stockholders in connection with

finders fee for the March 2007 sale of stock by each of the stockholders to TCP and TME We wrote

off this amount in the fourth quarter of 2008 and no longer consider it receivable

Tontine Financing Agreements

On April 24 2008 TP TMF and TOF each converted the original principal amount of their

respective senior subordinated convertible promissory notes issued in October 2007 into newly issued

shares of Broadwind common stock at conversion rate of $7.50 per share Upon conversion TP

received 1652996 shares TMF received 601472 shares and TOMF received 1078864 shares

On January 16 2008 in accordance with an amended and restated securities purchase agreement

that was executed on January 2008 the January 2008 Agreement Broadwind completed private

placement to TP and T25 TP and T25 purchased an aggregate of 2031250 shares of Broadwind

common stock at $8.48 per share for total purchase price of $17225 Broadwind used the proceeds to

finance the acquisition of Energy Maintenance Service LLC

On April 24 2008 in accordance with securities purchase agreement that was executed on

June 2008 Broadwind completed the first of two installments of private placement to TCP TP
TOF and T25 at which TP TOF and T25 purchased an aggregate of 5025126 shares of Broadwind

common stock at $7.96 per share for total purchase price of approximately $40000000 TCP also

agreed to purchase at subsequent date an additional 7537688 shares of Broadwind common stock at

$7.96 per share for total purchase price of approximately $60000000 TCP purchased such shares on

April 22 2008 Broadwind used majority of the proceeds for general working capital requirements

capital expansion projects and its acquisition of Badger Transport Inc
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In March 2007 the Company entered into Registration Rights Agreement as amended the

Tontine Registration Rights Agreement with TCP and TOE The Tontine Registration Rights

Agreement was subsequently amended on October 19 2007 July 18 2008 September 12 2008 and

October 31 2008 Pursuant to the Tontine Registration Rights Agreement the Company has agreed to

register
Tontines shares for resale and has provided Tontine with certain demand and piggyback

registration rights The amendment to the Tontine Registration Rights Agreement dated October 31

2008 extended the deadline for the Companys obligation to file registration statement to

December 31 2008 On January 2009 Tontine executed Waiver the Waiver relating to the

Registration Rights Agreement The Waiver waived the requirement that the Company file

registration statement to register shares held by Tontine the Tontine Registration Statement no

later than December 31 2008 and extended the deadline for the Companys obligation to file the

Tontine Registration Statement to March 31 2009 On April 15 2009 Tontine provided written notice

to the Company with demand that the Company file the Tontine Registration Statement as soon as

possible and reserving all of Tontines rights under the Tontine Registration Rights Agreement

Brad Foote Registration Rights Agreement

In connection with our acquisition of Brad Foote the Company entered into registration rights

agreement with the former owners of Brad Foote which provides the former owners with certain

demand and piggyback registration rights

Agreements with City Centre LLC

The manufacturing facilities for our Tower Tech and Inc RBA subsidiaries are leased

pursuant to agreements with City Centre LLC City Centre limited liability company owned 25%

by the Brickner Family Partnership and 75% by Peninsula Investments LLC The Brickner Family

Partnership is owned and controlled by Raymond Brickner III who was our President and member

of our Board of Directors until his retirement in April 2008 Peninsula Investments LLC is comprised

of two members each owning 50% which are entities controlled by Daniel Wergin and

Christopher Allie Messrs Wergin and Allie were members of our Board of Directors until their

resignations in June 2007 and January 2008 respectively

The lease between Tower Tech and City Centre was originally negotiated in 2005 and amended in

December 2007 As amended the lease provides for monthly rent of $42000 expires on December 31

2014 and has five 5-year options to renew Rent expense for the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 was $508000 and $410000 respectively Accrued rent payable to City Centre totaled $0 and

$117000 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

RBA negotiated its lease with City Centre in June 2007 prior to the acquisition of RBA by

Broadwind The lease calls for monthly rent of $8000 Rent expense for the years ended December 31

2008 and 2007 was $101000 and $25000 respectively

On December 26 2007 Tower Tech executed an additional Lease Agreement with City Centre the

premises of which is storage facility in Manitowoc Wisconsin the Storage Facility Lease The

Storage Facility Lease provides that Tower Tech will assume the tenants interest in preexisting lease

between City Centre and third party The prior tenant continued to pay rent through May 31 2008

but Tower Tech was liable for 2008 real estate taxes and interest due on $200 advance from City

Centre to that tenant for leasehold improvements The term of the Lease is 15 years and monthly rent

is $19 Rent expense for the year ended December 31 2008 was $130000

Management believes that the terms of the agreements with City Center are consistent with those

that could have been obtained in lease agreements with unrelated third parties
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Brad Foote Lease Agreements and Real Property Purchases

In February 2008 Brad Foote completed the purchase of two real estate parcels located in Cicero

Illinois and Pittsburgh Pennsylvania Brad Foote previously leased these properties for portion of the

year
ended December 31 2008 pursuant to lease agreements dated August 22 2007 Brad Foote

acquired the Cicero property from BFG Cicero LLC an Illinois limited liability company BFG
Cicero and acquired the Pittsburgh property from BFG Pittsburgh LLC Pennsylvania limited

liability company BFG Pittsburgh pursuant to two Real Property Purchase Agreements that were

executed on February 14 2008 and effective February 11 2008 together the Purchase Agreements
The sole member of each of BFG Cicero and BFG Pittsburgh is BFG Acquisition LLC an Illinois

limited liability company whose sole member is the wife of one of the directors and Chief Executive

Officer of the Company The Purchase Agreements were entered into pursuant to 90-day options to

purchase contained in each Lease Agreement The options to purchase provided that Brad Foote could

acquire
the properties upon the terms of the Purchase Agreements which were attached to the Lease

Agreements as addenda

Broadwind negotiated the Lease Agreements and the Purchase Agreements with the LLCs in

connection with Broadwinds agreement to acquire Brad Foote in August 2007 Brad Foote was

formerly owned by Broadwinds Chief Executive Officer and director Cameron Drecoll and Brad

Foote was acquired by Broadwind in an arms length transaction On December 13 2007 Brad Foote

provided notice of its intent to exercise its options to purchase the real estate parcels for $3400000

plus closing costs as provided in the Purchase Agreements Subsequent to such notice and following

approval by Brad Footes disinterested directors the parties agreed to reimburse the LLCs at closing

for certain costs totaling $154000 which the LLCs had incurred in connection with their purchase and

sale of the properties The total cost of the transactions including aggregate closing costs of $80000

and the reimbursement of $154000 to the LLCs was $3634000

Please refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 for further discussion of the leases and consolidated

variable interest entities and for discussion of the acquisition of these properties

Director Financing Agreement

On April 24 2008 in accordance with securities purchase agreement that was executed on

April 22 2008 the Beynon SPA Broadwind completed private placement to Mr Charles

Beynon who is director and member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

Mr Beynon purchased 62814 shares of Broadwind common stock at $7.96 per share for total

purchase price of approximately $500000 Broadwind will use the proceeds of the Beynon SPA along

with the proceeds from the April 2008 Agreement with Tontine for general working capital

requirements capital expansion projects and to undertake certain acquisitions

Tax Payments in connection with Acquisition of Brad Foote

In June 2008 the Company reimbursed the former owners of Brad Foote including Cameron

Drecoll Director of the Company and its Chief Executive Officer for the Section 338h10
elections made by such former owners in the aggregate amount of approximately $2800000 pursuant

to the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of August 22 2007 pursuant to which Brad

Foote was acquired by the Company the Brad Foote Purchase Agreement Prior to its acquisition

by the Company Brad Foote had operated as Subchapter corporation under the IRC final

determination has not been made regarding all tax liabilities in respect of the period prior to the

Companys acquisition of Brad Foote the 338h10 elections made in connection with the acquisition

and the parties corresponding obligations under the Brad Foote Purchase Agreement and the
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Company may be obligated to make additional payments to or on behalf of the former owners of Brad

Foote or become entitled to reimbursements from or on behalf of such former owners

EXECUTiVE OFFICERS

The names and ages
of all our executive officers and the positions held by each with the Company

are as follows

Name Age Position

Cameron Drecoll 54 Chief Executive Officer

Matthew Gadow 37 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Lars Moller 41 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

Robert Paxton 35 Senior Vice President Human Resources

J.D Rubin 32 Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

John Cameron Drecoll has served as our Chief Executive Officer and also as director since

October 19 2007 He was appointed to these positions in connection with our acquisition of Brad

Foote on October 19 2007 where Mr Drecoll held the positions of majority stockholder and Chief

Executive Officer since 1996 Mr Drecoll has more than 30 years of experience in the industrial

manufacturing segment Prior to acquiring Brad Foote Mr Drecoll was Vice President of Regal

Beloit Corporation public company that designs manufactures and markets industrial power

transmission equipment In that role he specialized in integration and turnaround of new acquisitions

During his 15 years at Regal Beloit the company enjoyed five-fold increase in sales Mr Drecoll

served on the Board of Directors of the American Gear Manufacturer Association and served as

Chairman in 2003 Mr Drecoll received Mechanical Engineering degree and Masters of Business

Administration from Marquette University

Matthew Gadow has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since

May 2008 and served as our Executive Vice President of Strategic Planning from October 2007 to

May 2008 Prior to joining the Company Mr Gadow was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer of DM1 for nearly five years Prior to working at DM1 Mr Gadow worked for eight years as an

operational finance director at several manufacturing locations under the Norwood Promotional

Products of companies Mr Gadow is certified public accountant and spent several years in public

accounting after earning his undergraduate degree from Texas Lutheran University Mr Gadow also

serves on the Finance Committee of the American Wind Energy Association

Lars Moller has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer since May

2008 and served as our Executive Vice President of Business Development from October 2007 to May

2008 Prior to joining the Company Mr Moller was President of DM1 Industries wind tower

manufacturer based in West Fargo North Dakota DM1 from January 2003 to October 2007

Mr Moller began his career with Bonus Energy now Siemens Wind Power in 1986 and held senior

management positions with Vestas American and Difko now enXco Mr Moller serves on the boards

of both the American Wind Energy Association and Canadian Wind Energy Association

Robert Paxton has served as our Senior Vice President Human Resources since June 30 2008

Prior to joining the Company Mr Paxton worked for consumer brand Whirlpool Corporation from

June 2002 to June 2008 where he held several human resources leadership positions at locations

worldwide Mr Paxton completed his tenure at Whirlpool Corporation as Vice President Human

Resources Mr Paxton began his career with global energy producer BP where he held various human

resources leadership positions from June 1995 to June 2002 Mr Paxton earned his undergraduate

degree from Ohio University and holds an MBA from the University of Houston-Victoria

J.D Rubin has served as our Vice President General Counsel and Secretary since June 30 2008

Prior to joining the Company Mr Rubin was with the Chicago-based law firm of Barack Ferrazzano

20



Kirschbaum Nagelberg LLF where he practiced corporate and securities law from September 2003

to June 2008 Mr Rubin earned his undergraduate degree from the University of Wisconsin-Madison

and his law degree from Northwestern University School of Law

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes the material elements of the

Companys compensation practices for its named executive officers For 2008 the Companys named

executive officers consist of the Chief Executive Officer the Chief Financial Officer and the three other

executive officers who received the highest amount of total compensation in 2008 For purposes of this

section named executive officers refers to Mr Cameron Drecoll Chief Executive Officer

Mr Matthew Gadow Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Mr Lars Moller

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer Mr Robert Paxton Senior Vice President

Human Resources and Mr J.D Rubin Vice President and General Counsel Mr Steven

Huntington served as Chief Financial Officer for portion of 2008 and has also been included in this

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Role of Compensation Consultant

Pursuant to the terms of its charter the Compensation Committee has the authority to retain

independent advisors to assist in carrying out its responsibilities In August 2008 the Compensation

Committee engaged Hewitt Associates LLC Hewitt an outside global human resources consulting

firm as its independent outside consultant to advise the Compensation Committee on compensation

matters Since being retained Hewitt has assisted the Compensation Committee with the following

Development of formal compensation philosophy

Development of custom peer group

competitive compensation review with respect to the Chief Executive Officer and other

executives

Development of formalized total compensation structure taking into consideration the

compensation philosophy market data and performance goals

Analysis of outside director compensation and

Preparation of other analyses and providing advice on other aspects of the Companys executive

compensation policies and programs as requested by the Compensation Committee

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions

The Board of Directors based upon recommendations of the Compensation Committee makes

compensation decisions regarding the executive officers The Compensation Committee approves equity

grant recommendations However in making its decisions the Compensation Committee seeks and

considers input from senior management Senior management regularly participates in the Committees

activities in the following specific respects

The Chief Executive Officer reports to the Compensation Committee with respect to his

evaluation of the performance of the Companys senior executives including the other named

executive officers Together with the Senior Vice President Human Resources he makes

recommendations as to compensation decisions for these individuals including base salary levels

and the amount and mix of incentive awards
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The Chief Executive Officer the Chief Financial Officer and the Senior Vice President Human

Resources develop and recommend performance objectives and targets for the Companys
incentive compensation programs The Senior Vice President Human Resources assists the

Chairman of the Compensation Committee in developing meeting agendas and manages the

preparation and distribution of pre-meeting informational materials on the matters to be

considered

The Chief Executive Officer the General Counsel and the Senior Vice President Human

Resources attend the Compensation Committees meetings Management generally does not

attend the executive session of the Compensation Committee However there are times when

the Compensation Committee requests that the Chief Executive Officer be present for all or

portion of an executive session

Executive Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Until March 2009 the Company did not have formalized compensation philosophy or structure

adopted by the Board of Directors Consequently compensation levels for each member of the

executive team were individually negotiated when each was hired Since the beginning of its

engagement in August 2008 Hewitt has worked with the Compensation Committee and management to

develop formalized compensation philosophy In December 2008 the Compensation Committee

approved and adopted philosophy which is designed to be competitive in nature by providing

executives with meaningful rewards while maintaining alignment with stockholder interests

affordability corporate values and important management initiatives The philosophy approved by the

Board of Directors in March 2009 is specifically designed to

Attract motivate and retain highly experienced executives who are vital to the Companys short-

and long-term success profitability and growth

Create alignment with executives and stockholders by rewarding executives for the achievement

of strategic goals that successfully drive the operations of the Company and thereby enhance

stockholder value

Differentiate executive rewards based on actual individual and Company performance and

Provide total compensation levels that are targeted between the 50th to 75th percentiles of

competitive market practice based on the list of peer group companies set forth below To

achieve this base salaries are structured using the 50th percentile of market practice as

guideline annual bonus opportunities are targeted between the 50th to 75th percentiles of

market practice and long-term incentives are structured using the 50th percentile of market

practice as guideline

In accordance with this philosophy the Compensation Committee believes that the executive

compensation package should consist of cash and equity based compensation including base salary

annual cash incentives and long-term equity-based incentives

Setting Executive Compensation

The Compensation Committee plans to structure the Companys executive compensation plans and

programs based on the above stated compensation philosophy and objectives In furtherance of this the

Compensation Committee asked Hewitt to provide relevant market data as well as alternatives to

consider when making compensation decisions for the executive officers

To assist in making compensation decisions the Compensation Committee worked with Hewitt on

developing peer group of 26 companies whose executive compensation programs would be analyzed

for benchmarking purposes Due to the specialized business of the Company there are very few direct
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peers Therefore additional critical factors were considered in selecting companies for the peer group

including annual revenue revenue growth recent IPOs and industry competitors for talent customers

and investors Based on these and other factors the following companies were selected to comprise the

custom peer group

Altra Holdings Inc Esco Technologies Inc Powell Industries Inc

American Commercial Lines Franklin Electric Co Inc RBC Bearings Inc

Ameron International Corp Gardner Denver Inc Regal-Beloit Corp
Astec Industries Inc GE Energy Services Robbins Myers Inc

Brush Engineered Materials Graco Inc Texas Industries Inc

Coleman Cable Inc GT Solar Intl Inc Titan Machinery Inc

Colfax Corp Infinera Corp Valmont Industries Inc

Curtiss-Wright Corp Opnext Inc VeraSun Energy Corp

Edison Mission Group Otter Tail Corp

For comparison purposes the Companys annual revenues are below the median revenues of the

peer group of $841 million Because of the variance in size among the companies comprising the peer

group regression analysis is used to adjust the compensation data for differences in company revenues

This adjusted value is used as the basis of comparison of compensation between the Company and the

companies in the peer group The Company uses this approach to competitive benchmarking because

the Company believes that its senior executives have skills that are transferable across industries and

this approach allows the Company to better attract retain and appropriately reward its executives

Elements of Compensation

Overview and Analysis

In 2008 the primary components of Broadwinds compensation program were base salary and

annual incentives Long-term equity incentives were granted to executives on an ad hoc basis generally

in connection with being hired by the Company rather than as part
of an ongoing formalized

long-term plan Moving forward formalized long-term incentive plan will be incorporated into the

overall executive compensation structure As stated above each element of Broadwinds compensation

program in 2008 was negotiated with each executive on an individual basis Starting in 2009

compensation will be delivered through more formalized compensation structure for each element

based in part on competitive market levels among the Companys peer group

Components

Base Salary

The Company provides named executive officers and other employees with base salary to

compensate them for services rendered during the year As previously stated base salaries for 2008

were individually negotiated when each executive was hired In October 2008 the Compensation

Committee reviewed the salaries of Messrs Moller and Gadow The Compensation Committee

determined that Messrs Moller and Gadow both of whom were hired in October 2007 and had

concluded their first full year of service at Broadwind should receive increases in their base salaries

The Compensation Committee based its decision to increase their salaries on individual performance

related to the establishment of Broadwinds corporate structure acquisition leadership brand

development operational expansion and the benchmark competitive market data of the peer group

companies provided by Hewitt Mr Mollers salary was increased from $250000 to $350000 and

Mr Gadows base salary was increased from $250000 to $300000 The salary increases went into effect

on October 23 2008 Mr Moller and Mr Gadow will not be reviewed again for purposes of base salary
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until after the completion of the 2009 fiscal year Starting in 2010 they will be reviewed each year at

the same time as the other named executive officers

Mr Drecoll elected not to receive base salary increase in 2008 In addition Messrs Paxton and

Rubin became employed by the Company in 2008 and their respective base salaries were negotiated in

connection with their offers of employment with the Company Mr Huntington served as the

Companys Chief Financial Officer from April 23 2007 through April 30 2008 Effective May 2008

Mr Huntington began serving as Vice President of Finance of Tower Tech As of May 2008

Mr Huntingtons annual base salary was adjusted to $130000

The following chart summarizes the base salaries for the named executive officers during 2008

End of FY Salary

Variance from

Beginning of End of 50th Percentile of

Executive FY Salary FY Salary Peer Group

Cameron Drecoll $250000 $250000 50.4%

Lars Moller $250000 $350000 5.7%

Matthew Gadow $250000 $300000 1.2%
Robert Paxton N/A $245000 2.1%

J.D Rubin N/A $215000 17.6%
Steven Huntington $175000 $130000 N/A

Beginning in 2009 in accordance with the new formalized compensation structure the

Compensation Committee will review base salaries for all named executive officers at the beginning of

each year Annual salary increases will be based on an evaluation of each individuals performance

against goals set forth in performance appraisal document for each such executive officer and on his

or her level of pay compared to that of similarly situated executives in the peer group as indicated by

the market data Base salary levels will be targeted to approximate the median of the peer group

Actual base salaries may be higher or lower than the median based on skiliset prior experience

external pressures to attract and retain talent and compensation paid to other executives and otherwise

determined by the Board of Directors

Annual Incentives

The annual bonus opportunity for named executive officers in 2008 was discretionary and was

determined by the Compensation Committee based on t.he recommendation of the Chief Executive

Officer and individual and Company performance criteria established by the Compensation Committee

such as integration of acquired subsidiaries building Broadwinds corporate structure building

customer and other relationships and establishing the corporate identity of the Company No formal

structure was in place and specific bonus targets were not set Further certain named executive officers

entered into employment agreements with the Company during the year The agreements for

Messrs Drecoll Moller Gadow Paxton and Rubin all provide for bonus as set forth in written plan

or other written arrangement adopted by the Company

In October 2008 Messrs Moller and Gadow received bonus payouts upon the completion of their

first full
year

of service with the Company The cash awards were granted by the Compensation

Committee based on subjective measures regarding the individual performance of each of

Messrs Moller and Gadow as well as the performance of the Company related to the establishment of

its corporate structure acquisition leadership brand development and operational expansion

Mr Moller had bonus opportunity of $250000 stated in his employment agreement and received

bonus payout of $250000 Mr Gadow had bonus opportunity of $250000 stated in his employment

agreement and received bonus payout of $230000
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In March 2009 Messrs Paxton and Rubin received bonus payouts upon the completion of the

2008 fiscal year Mr Paxton had 2008 bonus opportunity of $245000 stated in his employment

agreement and was granted cash award of $120000 and an award of immediately vested RSUs with

an economic value equivalent to $70000 Mr Rubin had 2008 bonus opportunity of $215000 stated

in his employment agreement and was granted an award of immediately vested RSUs with an economic

value equivalent to $75000 The awards were granted by the Compensation Committee based on

subjective measures regarding Messrs Paxtons and Rubins individual performance as well as corporate

performance and negotiations that took place in connection with each individuals respective offer of

employment In addition to the annual bonus awards Mr Paxton received sign-on bonus of $150000

and Mr Rubin received sign-on bonus of $25000 after starting employment with the company

Mr Drecoll elected not to be considered for an annual bonus award for 2008 Mr Huntington did not

receive an annual bonus award for 2008

On March 11 2009 the Board of Directors reviewed and approved the Companys Executive

Short-Term Incentive Plan the STIP which is designed to reward senior executives of the Company

and its subsidiaries As described in greater detail below any payouts made pursuant to the STIP will

be made in 2010 for performance in 2009

Pursuant to the STIP the Compensation Committee determines which eligible executives

participate in the STIR Under the terms of the STIP the Compensation Committee administers the

STIP with full power and authority and determines categories of incentive awards based on

employment responsibilities that will be available under the STIP for given year The Compensation

Committee also establishes target incentive level and may in its discretion set minimum or

threshold level with
respect to each

category
of incentive award that will apply to participants in the

STIP for such year

Unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee all incentive awards under the

STIP will be paid in cash The STIP may be amended or terminated at any time by the Board The

Compensation Committee may in its sole discretion reduce or eliminate an incentive award under the

plan at any time and for any reason

Structure for 2009

In March 2009 the Board of Directors approved the STIP which had previously been reviewed

and recommended by the Compensation Committee Under the STIP executive officers will have an

annual target bonus that is fixed percentage of salary based on the Companys compensation

philosophy targeting annual bonus opportunities between the 50th and 75th percentiles of market

practice of the peer group companies For 2009 the targeted amounts for named executive officers

range from 70 to 100 percent of base salary as follows

Targeted Annual Incentive

Named Executive Officer as percentage of Base Salary

Mr Cameron Drecoll 100%

Mr Matthew Gadow 80%

Mr Lars Moller 80%

Mr Robert Paxton 70%

Mr J.D Rubin 70%

To ensure that annual incentive pay is based on performance threshold and maximum payout

level will also be established For performance at threshold level executives will earn bonus of 50%

of target For performance at or above maximum level the payout will be 175% of target Performance

above the threshold level but below the maximum level will earn bonus of between 50% and 175% of

target For performance below threshold no bonus will be earned
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Each year the Compensation Committee will set incentive goals based upon financial and

individual performance For corporate executives 80% of the bonus payout will be based on corporate

financial measures and 20% on achievement of individual goals and objectives

Key financial metrics in determining 2009 financial performance are Earnings Before Interest

Taxes Depreciation Amortization and Share-based Compensation Expense EBITDAS and

EBITDAS Return on Invested Capital EBITDAS ROTC and the determination of the percentage

of the bonus payout levels for financial performance is predicated on achieving certain levels of

EBITDAS and EBITDAS ROTC based on the Companys budget projections for 2009

Long-Tenn Incentives

In 2008 the Company granted stock options and RSUs to some of its named executive officers

Stock options were only granted upon the hiring of the named executive officers Given the timing of

when certain executives were hired in 2008 and the change in economic conditions that immediately

followed many of the initial grants were made at share prices substantially higher than the share price

of the Companys common stock underlying such grants resulting in the grants providing limited

retention value Therefore in October 2008 the Compensation Committee decided that it was in the

Companys best interest to grant RSUs to certain executives for retention purposes Details of the

grants are reported in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table

In December 2008 the Compensation Committee approved and recommended to the Board of

Directors formalized long-term incentive program that is designed to reward executive officers

through stock-based awards for performance over time The Board of Directors approved the program

in March 2009 based upon the recommendation of the Compensation Committee The Compensation

Committee believes that equity-based compensation ensures that executives have continuing stake in

the Companys long-term success while providing vehicle to retain highly-experienced executives who

are vital to the Companys short- and long-term success profitability and growth

The long-term incentive program utilizes two different long-term incentive vehicles stock options

and RSUs Stock options and RSUs were selected in order to deliver market-competitive long-term

incentive opportunities that are targeted at the median of the peer group and to encourage the

behaviors and long-term perspective necessary
for creating stockholder value For each long-term

incentive program participant targeted economic value to be delivered will be determined based on

peer group market data The long-term incentive grant will then be calculated to deliver the targeted

economic value evenlybetweeastock options and RSUs For 2009 the targeted economic value for

named executive offiers range-from 60-to 140% of base sa1ary sfolluws

Targeted Long-Term Incentive

Named Executive Officer as percentage of Base Salary

Cameron Drecoll 130 to 140%

Lars Moller 80 to 110%

Matthew Gadow 80 to 110%

Robert Paxton 60 to 70%

J.D Rubin 60 to 70%

Stock Options

The Compensation Committee selected stock options as long-term incentive vehicle to

Align the financial interests of executives with those of stockholders

Promote the growth of the Companys stock price by offering executives financial stake and

Maintain competitive level of compensation
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Grant Size

The number of stock options granted will be determined based on delivering 50% of the long-term

economic value of each named executive officers long-term incentive award as approved by the

Compensation Committee The actual number of stock options granted to each named executive officer

will be determined using Black-Scholes option valuation methodology

Grant Timing and Price

In 2009 the Company anticipates that stock option long-term incentive grants will be reviewed

discussed and approved at regularly scheduled Compensation Committee meeting in the second

quarter of 2009 Starting in 2010 stock option long-term incentive grants will be reviewed discussed

and approved annually at regularly scheduled Board of Directors or Compensation Committee

meeting during the first quarter of the year or such other time determined by the Board of Directors

or Compensation Committee The exercise price of each stock option will be based on the closing stock

trading price on the date of grant

Grant Design

Stock options will generally vest 25% per year over four-year period and have term of ten

years Prior to the exercise of an option the holder will have no rights as stockholder with respect to

the shares subject to such option including voting rights and the right to receive dividends or dividend

equivalents

Restricted Stock Units RSUs

The Compensation Committee selected RSUs as long-term incentive vehicle to

Retain key executives who are vital to the Companys short- and long-term success

Promote higher levels of Company stock ownership by executives and

Encourage long-term planning by the senior leadership team

Grant Size

The number of RSU grants will be determined based on delivering 50 percent of the long-term

economic value of each named executive officers long-term incentive award as approved by the

Compensation Committee The actual number of RSU grants to each named executive officer will be

determined using methodology that applies discount for risks of forfeiture and vesting restrictions

Grant Timing and Design

In 2009 the Company anticipates that RSU long-term incentive grants will be reviewed discussed

and approved at regularly scheduled Compensation Committee meeting in the second quarter of

2009 Starting in 2010 RSU long-term incentive grants will be reviewed discussed and approved

annually at regularly scheduled Board of Directors or Compensation Committee meeting during the

first quarter of the year or such other time determined by the Board of Directors or Compensation

Committee RSUs will generally vest 25 percent per year over four-year period

Retirement Plans

Effective January 2009 the Company replaced all of its defined contribution 401k retirement

savings plans with one defined contribution 401k safe harbor plan covering substantially all of the

Companys non-union employees Under the new plan an eligible employee may elect to contribute

portion of their salary on pre-tax basis subject to federal statutory limitations The plan requires the
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Company to make basic matching contributions equal to 100% of the first 3% of the eligible

participants plan compensation contributed as elective deferral contributions and 50% of the next 2%

of the eligible participants plan compensation contributed as an elective deferral contribution Under

the plan elective deferrals and basic company matching will be 100% vested at all times

Severance and Change-of-Control Provisions

The Companys employment agreements with each of the named executive officers contain

severance and change of control provisions
These are more fully described below under Potential

Payments Upon Termination of Employment or Change of Control The severance provisions are

intended to protect senior executives from the loss of reasonably expected compensation and benefits if

the executive is terminated by the Company without cause or ii the executive terminates his or her

employment with the Company for good reason The Company believes the change of control

provisions are in the best interests of stockholders by assuring that the Company will have the

continued dedication of the executives in the event of pending threatened or actual change of

control The provisions are also intended to provide the Companys executives with incentives to obtain

the highest possible value in the event of future acquisition of the Company despite the risk of losing

employment and the opportunity to vest in their equity awards

Health Benefits

In 2008 the Company paid for 100% of the named executive officers premiums for medical

coverage For all other employees the Company paid either 100% or 75% of the premiums for medical

coverage depending on the subsidiary of the Company with which they were employed Starting in

2009 all employees including the named executive officers must contribute 25% of the cost of medical

coverage premiums to participate in the medical plan

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Currently the Company does not have any stock ownership guidelines in place

Tax Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Section 162m of the IRC limits to $1000000 per year the deduction that publicly held

corporation may take for compensation paid to each of its chief executive officer and the three other

most highly compensated employees other than the chief financial officer An exception to this rule

exists for compensation that is performance-based as defined in the IRC Annual incentive awards

are not currently structured to be performance-based for IRC purposes Long-term incentive awards

the stock options are designed to be performance-based for purposes of Section 162m and would

not be subject to the deductibility limit However salaries service-based RSUs special employment and

retention incentives and special annual bonus payments do not qualify as performance-based

compensation for this purpose

Although the Compensation Committees policy is to structure compensation arrangements when

possible in manner that will avoid limits on deductibility it is not primary objective of the

Companys compensation program In the view of the Compensation Committee meeting the objectives

stated above is more important than the ability to deduct the compensation for tax purposes

Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors on 2008 Compensation

This report is submitted by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors
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The Compensation Committee has reviewed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and

discussed it with management and based on the review and discussion has recommended to the Board

that it be included in this proxy statement

Members of the Compensation Committee

James Lindstrom Chair
Terence Fox

Charles Beynon

Employment Agreements

John Cameron Drecoll was appointed as the Companys Chief Executive Officer and director on

October 19 2007 in connection with completion of the Brad Foote acquisition Mr Drecolls

employment agreement which has three-year term provides for an annual base salary of $250000

subject to review and upward adjustment by the Board on at least an annual basis In addition

Mr Drecoll will be eligible each year during the term of the employment agreement for an annual

bonus based on individual and Company performance criteria to be established by the Board

Steven Huntington served as Broadwinds Chief Financial Officer from April 2007 to May 2008

Mr Huntington was appointed to the position of Chief Financial Officer effective April 23 2007

pursuant to two-year employment agreement Mr Huntingtons employment agreement originally

provided for an annual base salary of $130000 which the Board increased to $175000 per annum on

October 24 2007 The employment agreement provided that Broadwind would pay supplemental and

bonus compensation to Mr Huntington as the parties mutually agreed commensurate with industry

standards In addition under the terms of his employment agreement the Company reimbursed

Mr Huntington for $32213 of relocation expenses during 2007 Mr Huntingtons employment

agreement was terminated by mutual consent of the parties effective May 2008 and as of that date

he began serving as Vice President of Finance of Tower Tech with an adjusted base salary of $130000

Lars Moller was hired on October 22 2007 to serve as Executive Vice President of Business

Development and was appointed on March 26 2008 to be the Companys Executive Vice President and

Chief Operating Officer effective immediately Mr Mollers employment agreement has three-year

term with automatic renewal for successive one-year periods and provides for an annual base salary of

$350000 which is subject to review and adjustment at least annually except that no adjustment shall

be made prior to March 2010 In addition for 2008 Mr Moller was eligible for an annual bonus in

accordance with goals as mutually agreed upon in advance between Mr Moller and the Company For

2009 and thereafter Mr Moller will be eligible for an annual bonus as set forth in written plan or

other arrangement adopted by the Company

Matthew Gadow was hired on October 22 2007 to serve as Executive Vice President of Strategic

Planning and was appointed on March 26 2008 to be the Companys Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer effective May 2008 Mr Gadows employment agreement has three-year

term with automatic renewal for successive one-year periods and provides for an annual base salary of

$300000 which is subject to review and adjustment at least annually except that no adjustment shall

be made prior to March 2010 In addition for 2008 Mr Gadow was eligible for an annual bonus in

accordance with goals as mutually agreed upon in advance between Mr Gadow and the Company For

2009 and thereafter Mr Gadow will be eligible for an annual bonus as set forth in written plan or

other arrangement adopted by the Company

Robert Paxton was hired on June 30 2008 to serve as Senior Vice President Human Resources

Mr Paxtons employment agreement has two-year term with automatic renewal for successive

one-year periods and provides for an annual base salary of $245000 which is subject to review and
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adjustment by the Company at least annually In addition for 2008 Mr Paxton was eligible for an

annual bonus in accordance with goals as mutually agreed upon in advance between Mr Paxton and

the Company For 2009 and thereafter Mr Paxton will be eligible for an annual bonus as set forth in

written plan or other arrangement adopted by the Company

J.D Rubin was hired on June 30 2008 to serve as Vice President and General Counsel

Mr Rubins employment agreement has two-year term with automatic renewal for successive

one-year periods and provides for an annual base salary of $215000 which is subject to review and

adjustment by the Company at least annually In addition for 2008 Mr Rubin was eligible for an

annual bonus in accordance with goals as mutually agreed upon in advance between Mr Rubin and the

Company For 2009 and thereafter Mr Rubin will be eligible for an annual bonus as set forth in

written plan or other arrangement adopted by the Company

Termination of Employment Agreements

The employment agreements of Messrs Drecoll Moller Gadow Paxton and Rubin provide that

the terms may be shortened as follows by Broadwind for cause as defined in the employment

agreement if the employee fails to cure the reasons that constitute cause within thirty calendar days

of receiving notice from the Company ii by Broadwind without cause upon thirty calendar days

written notice or iii by the employee for good reason as defined in the employment agreement if

Broadwind fails to cure the reasons that constitute good reason within thirty calendar days of

receiving notice from the employee

The employment agreement of Mr Drecoll provides that he will receive his base salary for

period of twelve months plus other benefits for which he is eligible if he is terminated without cause

within one year of change of control as defined in the agreement If the employment of

Mr Drecoll is terminated without cause or if he terminates his employment for good reason

Broadwind will be obligated to pay to him his base salary for the remainder of the agreements

three-year term or period of twelve months whichever is greater plus other benefits for which he is

eligible

The employment agreement of Mr Moller provides that he will receive his base salary for period

of thirty-six months plus other benefits for which he is eligible if he is terminated without cause

within one year
of change of control as defined in the agreement The employment agreements

of Mr Gadow Mr Paxton and Mr Rubin provide that the executives would receive their base salaries

for period of twenty-four months plus other benefits for which they are eligible if they are

terminated without cause within one year of change ot coritror defined inthe agreeme-n1 If

the employment of Mr Moller Mr Gadow Mr Paxton or Mr Rubin is terminated without cause or

for good reason Broadwind would be obligated to pay the employees then-current base salary for

period of eighteen months plus other benefits for which they are eligible

Our executives employment agreements also contain non-competition non-solicitation and

confidentiality provisions Mr Drecolls employment agreement includes non-competition and

non-solicitation covenants that continue for two years
after termination of employment The

non-competition and non-solicitation provisions in the employment agreements of Messrs Moller

Gadow Paxton and Rubin continue for eighteen months after termination of employment All of the

agreements include provisions regarding confidentiality

2008 Summary Compensation Table

The table below sets forth certain information regarding annual and long-term compensation

awarded earned or paid for services in all capacities to the named executive officers of the Company
for the years ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 Named executive officers include

persons serving as principal executive officer during 2008 principal financial officer during 2008
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$250000 $53365 $497000 62481 $1129000

74044 24463 146584

Robert Paxton 2008 $117788 $34000010 $11146 82275 $19255812 743767

Senior Vice President Human Resources 2007

J.D Rubin 2008 $103365 $10000011 $11146 82275 $11117 307903

Vice President and General Counsel 2007

Bonuses awarded in 2008 were based on executive and Company performance as determined at the discretion of the

Compensation Committee The Board of Directors has approved formalized annual incentive structure for 2009 as

described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis Included in Messrs Paxtons and Rubins 2008 bonus totals are

sign-on bonuses of $150000 and $25000 respectively

Represents the amounts recognized for financial statement reporting purposes
for each year in accordance with Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards No 123R Share-Based Payment SFAS No 123R for RSU awards granted under

the 2007 Plan during 2008 assuming no forfeitures No awards were made under the 2007 Plan prior to 2007 The

assumptions used to determine the valuation of the 2008 awards are discussed in Note 20 to our consolidated financial

statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2008 See the table entitled

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Year End and the narrative discussion entitled Material Terms of Equity Awards

for further information regarding equity awards

Represents the amounts recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for each year in accordance with Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards No 123R Share-Based Payment SFAS No 123R for outstanding option awards

granted under the 2007 Plan during 2008 and 2007 assuming no forfeitures No awards were made under the 2007 Plan

prior to 2007 The assumptions used to determine the valuation of the 2008 awards are discussed in Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and in Note 20 to our consolidated financial

statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 and in Note 18 to our

consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31 2007

See the table entitled Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Year End and the narrative discussion entitled Material Terms

of Equity Awards for further information regarding equity awards

Please see the Details Behind All Other Compensation Column table separate table provided for additional information

regarding these amounts

Mr Drecoll became Chief Executive Officer of Broadwind in October 2007 in connection with Broadwinds acquisition of

Brad Foote

Mr Drecoll elected not to be considered for bonus in 2008

Mr Gadow was hired as Executive Vice President of Strategic Planning in October 2007 On March 26 2008 he was

appointed to the position of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer effective May 2008

Mr Moller was hired as Executive Vice President of Business Development in October 2007 On March 26 2008 he was

appointed to the position of Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer effective immediately

executive officers who were serving as of December 31 2008 received total compensation in excess of

$100000 for 2008 and excluding the principal executive officer and principal financial officer were

among our three most highly compensated individuals the Most Highly Compensated Officers and

additional individuals who would have been included as the Most Highly Compensated Officers but for

the fact they were not serving in such capacity at the end of the year

Name and Principal Position

Cameron Drecoll5

Chief Executive Officer

Salary

Year

2008 $250000

2007 52083

Stock

Bonus1 Awards2

Matthew Gadow7 2008 $262822 $230000

Executive Vice President and Chief 2007 37212

Financial Officer

Option

Awards3

Lars Moller8 2008 $266154

Executive Vice President and Chief 2007 48077

Operating Officer

All Other

Compensation Total

44798 294798

52083

69875 $1013662

96447

$53365 $397600

59235

Steven Huntington9 2008 $148173

Chief Financial Officer 2007 98307

$53365 28300 25001 254839

8440 3520013 106747
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Mr Huntington was hired as Chief Financial Officer in August 2007 and served in such capacity until May 2008 on
which date Mr Gadow was appointed to that position Mr Huntington continues to serve as the Vice President of Finance

of Tower Tech

10 Mr Paxtons bonus includes $150000 sign-on bonus $120000 cash bonus paid in March 2009 and $70000 of

immediately vesting RSUs granted in March 2009 as part of his 2008 bonus payment

11 Mr Rubins bonus includes $25000 sign-on bonus and $75000 of immediately vesting RSUs granted in March 2009 as

part of his 2008 bonus payment

12 Includes $154002 that was prefunded to third party relocation service by the Company in connection with the Companys
guaranteed buyout of Mr Paxtons home As of December 31 2008 $4039 was paid out of the prefunded account

established with the third party relocation service Depending on the sale price of Mr Paxtons home the Company may
recover portion of the prefunded amount

13 Includes $32213 of reimbursement for relocation

Details Behind All Other Compensation Column

The following table sets forth details concerning the information in the All Other Compensation
column in the above 2008 Summary Compensation Table

Registrant

Contributions Life
to Defined Health Disability

Contribution Insurance Insurance Relocation

Plans Premiums Premiums Support Total
Name b1 c2 d3 e4

Cameron Drecoll 833 $20901 $23064 44798
Matthew Gadow $7584 $20901 $1405 39985 69875
Lars Moller $20901 $1955 39625 62481
Robert Paxton $10451 702 $181405 $192558
J.D Rubin 496 $10451 170 $11117
Steven Huntington $2695 $20901 $1405 25001

Represents the 401k match the executive received from the Company

Represents the company contribution to medical and dental insurance premiums

Represents the company contribution to life insurance long-term disability insurance and

accidental death and dismemberment insurance premiums

Represents the company expense related to executive relocation support
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All Other

Option
Awards

Number of

Securities

_________________________ _________________________ Underlying

Grant Options

Name Date

_______ _______ _______ _______
j3

______ _______

Cameron Drecoll

Matthew Gadow

Lars Moller

Robert Paxton 7/2/08

10/17/08

J.D Rubin 7/2/08

10/17/08

Steven Huntington

Bonuses awarded in 2008 were based on executive and Company performance as determined at the discretion of the Board

of Directors The Board of Directors has approved formalized annual incentive structure for 2009 as described in the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This column reflects the number of time-vested shares of RSU awards granted to each of the named executive officers

during 2008 under the 2007 Employee Incentive Compensation Plan These restricted stock awards vest ratably in five

annual installments

This column reflects the number of stock options granted in 2008 to the named executive officers These options vest and

become exercisable ratably in five annual installments

This column reflects the exercise price for the stock options granted which was the closing price of Broadwind Common

Stock on each of the respective grant dates

This column reflects the grant date fair value of the restricted stock and stock options granted to the named executive

officers in 2008 Amounts are calculated in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

SFASNo 123R Share-Based Payment See note 20 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in the

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2008 for information regarding the assumptions used in the

valuation of equity awards

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Year End

The following table sets forth information concerning unexercised options stock that has not

vested and equity incentive plan awards for each named executive officer outstanding as of

December 31 2008

Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity

Equity Incentive

Equity
Incentive Plan Awards

Incentive
Plan Awards Market or

Plan Awards Market Number of Payout value

Number of Number of Number of
Number of value of Unearned of Unearned

Securities Securities Securities
Shares or Shares or Shares Units Shares Units

Underlying Underlying Underlying Units of Units of or Other or Other

Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Option Stock Stock Rights That Rights That

Options Options Unearned Exercise Option That Have That Have Have Not Have Not

Exercisable Unexercisable Options Price Expiration Not Vested Not Vested Vested Vested

Date

h6

Stock options granted on October 22 2007 vest in five equal installments on October 22 2008 October 22 2009 October 22 2010

October 22 2011 and October 22 2012

Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2008

The following table sets forth information concerning plan-based awards to the named executive

officers during 2008 as well as estimated future payouts under such plans

All Other

Stock

Estimated Future Payouts Estimated Future Payouts
Awards

Number of

Under Non.Equity Incentive Under Equity Incentive
Shares of

Plan Awardsl Plan Awards
Stock or

Threshold Target Maximum Threshold Target Maximum Units

i2

Exercise Grant

or Base Date Fair

Price of Value of

Option Stock and

Awards Option

$ISh Awards

k4 l5

75000

25000

75000

25000

18.20

18.20

822750

267500

822750

267500

Name

Cameron Drecoll

Matthew Gadow1
Lars Moller1

Robert Paxton2

J.D Rubin2

Steven Huntington3

80000

100000

320000

400000

75000

75000

4000010000

8.10 10/22/2017

8.10 10/22/2017

$18.20 7/2/2018

$18.20 7/2/2018

4.60 8/20/2017

25004 $11250

25004 $11250

250005 $112500

250005 $112500

25004 $11250
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Stock options granted on July 2008 vest in five equal installments on July 2009 July 2010 July 2011 July 2012 and

July 2013

Stock options granted on August 20 2007 vest in five equal installments on August 20 2008 August 20 2009 August 20 2010
August 20 2011 and August 20 2012

50% of the RSUs vested upon the consummation of the Companys acquisition of Energy Maintenance Service LLC on January 16
2008 The remaining 50% of the RSUs vested one year from the consummation of such acquisition January 16 2009

RSUs granted on October 17 2008 vest in five equal installments on October 17 2009 October 17 2010 October 17 2011
October 17 2012 and October 17 2013

Column based on December 31 2008 closing market
price of $4.50

Option Exercises and Stock Vested at 2008 Year End

The following table sets forth information concerning stock options exercised and stock vested at

the end of 2008

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of Shares Value Realized1 Number of Shares Value Realized

Acquired on Exercise on Exercise Acquired on Vesting on VestingName

Cameron Drecoll

Matthew Gadow 2500 $27250
Lars Moller

2500 $27250
Robert Paxton

J.D.Rubin

Steven Huntington 2500 $27250

Value realized was calculated based on the number of shares multiplied by $10.90 closing market

price of the Companys stock on the date of
vesting January 16 2008

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

The following table sets forth information concerning potential payments due to named executive

officers of the Company in the event of their termination and/or change in control of the Company

Actual Payments

Rata

Target Excise
Bonus Stock Restricted LTI Plan Retirement Welfare Outplace- Tax AggregateName Severance Payment Option Stock Parachute Benefit Benefits ment Liability Payments

Cameron Drecoll 250000
20902 270902

Matthew Gadow 600000 11250 31353 87443 555160
Lars Moller 1050000 11250 31353 171122 921481
Robert Paxton 490000 112500 31353 633853
J.D Rubin 430000 112500 31353 573853
Total $2820000 $247500 $146314 $258564 $2955248

See Termination of Employment Agreements above for more information
regarding potential

payments due to named executive officers of the Company in the event of their termination and/or

change in control of the Company
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AMENDMENT TO THE BROADWIND ENERGY INC 2007 EQUITY INCENTiVE PLAN

TO INCREASE THE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES AUTHORIZED FOR

ISSUANCE UNDER THE PLAN TO 5500000

Proposal No

The Board of Directors recommends that the stockholders approve an amendment to the 2007

Plan to increase the number of shares of the Companys common stock authorized to be granted under

the 2007 Plan by 2000000 shares from 3500000 shares to 5500000 shares Upon the

recommendation of the Compensation Committee the Board of Directors has approved such

amendment and has directed that it be submitted for stockholder approval at the Annual Meeting

Background

The Board of Directors originally adopted the 2007 Plan on August 20 2007 and it was

subsequently approved by the Companys stockholders on June 20 2008 On August 2008 the Board

of Directors approved certain non-material amendments to the 2007 Plan that clarify the terms and

conditions of restricted stock grants under the 2007 Plan and provide that the administrator of the 2007

Plan has the authority to effect future amendments to the 2007 Plan

The 2007 Plan currently provides for the issuance of up to 3500000 shares of the Companys

common stock to employees officers directors consultants and advisors of the Company or its

subsidiaries As of April 2009 1399091 shares of the Companys common stock remained available

for issuance under the 2007 Plan

The Board of Directors believes that granting fairly priced stock options and other stock awards to

officers other key employees and directors is an effective means to promote the future growth and

development of the Company Such options and awards among other things increase these individuals

proprietary interest in Broadwinds success and enables the Company to attract and retain qualified

personnel

The Compensation Committee which administers the 2007 Plan believes that there is an

insufficient number of shares remaining for issuance under the 2007 Plan to effectively and

appropriately
incentivize the Companys employees officers and directors Accordingly the

Compensation Committee recommended and on March 26 2009 the Board of Directors approved an

increase in the total number of shares of common stock reserved and available for issuance under the

2007 Plan by 2000000 shares from 3500000 shares to 5500000 shares subject to stockholder

approval

Description of the 2007 Plan

The following is general description of the material features of the 2007 Plan as proposed to be

amended which is attached to this proxy statement as Exhibit

General

Under the 2007 Plan the Board or committee appointed by the Board may award incentive or

nonqualified stock options restricted stock stock appreciation rights performance shares and

performance units to those officers and employees of Broadwind including the Companys subsidiaries

and affiliates or to directors of or consultants or advisors to Broadwind whose performance in the

judgment of the Board or committee can have significant effect on the success of Broadwind The

number of eligible participants in the 2007 Plan varies from year to year at the discretion of the

administrator of the 2007 Plan All options
and awards will comply with the requirements of

Section 409A of the IRC to the extent applicable
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Shares Available

The 2007 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 3500000 shares of Broadwind common stock
subject to adjustment of such number in the event of certain increases or decreases in the number of

outstanding shares of common stock of Broadwind effected as result of stock splits stock dividends
combinations of shares or similar transactions in which Broadwind receives no consideration If any
options or stock awards granted under the 2007 Plan expire or terminate prior to exercise the shares

subject to that portion of the option or stock award are available for subsequent grants The closing
sale price of share of Broadwind common stock was $7.74 on April 21 2009

Administration

The 2007 Plan may be administered by the Board or committee appointed by the Board Any
committee appointed by the Board to administer the 2007 Plan shall consist of at least two

non-employee directors as defined in Rule 16b-3 or any successor provision of the General Rules
and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and to the extent

necessary for

compliance with IRC Section 162m each such director shall also be an outside director within the

meaning of IRC Section 162m and the regulations issued thereunder

The Board has appointed the Compensation Committee as Administrator of the 2007 Plan The
Compensation Committee has broad powers to administer and interpret the 2007 Plan including the

authority to establish rules for the administration of the 2007 Plan ii select the participants in the
2007 Plan iii determine the

types of awards to be granted and the number of shares covered by such
awards and iv set the terms and conditions of such awards

Term

Incentive stock options may be granted pursuant to the 2007 Plan until August 20 2017 Other
awards may be granted pursuant to the 2007 Plan from time to time until the 2007 Plan is discontinued
or terminated by the Administrator

Types of Awards

Options

Options granted under the 2007 Plan may be either incentive stock options within the meaning
of Section 422 of the IRC or nonqualified stock options that do not qualify for special tax treatment
under the IRC No incentive stock option may be granted with per share exercise price less than the
fair market value of share of Broadwind common stock on the date the option is granted Generally
nonqualified stock

options will be granted with per share exercise price equal to the fair market value
of share of our common stock on the date the option is granted The Administrator will determine
the term of the option which in the case of an incentive stock option may in no event exceed ten

years and how it will become exercisable Optionees may pay for shares upon exercise of option in

cash personal check certified check or if approved by the Administrator by delivering previously
acquired shares of Broadwind common stock or by combination thereof An incentive stock option
may not be transferred by an optionee except by will or the laws of descent and distribution In certain

circumstances nonqualified option may be transferred to member of an optionees family trust

for the benefit of such immediate family members or partnership in which such family members are
the only partners

Restricted Stock Awards and RSUs

The Administrator is also authorized to grant awards of restricted stock and RSUs Each restricted
stock award or RSU granted under the 2007 Plan shall be for number of shares as determined by the
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Administrator subject to the limitations set forth in the 2007 Plan and the Administrator in its

discretion may also establish continued employment vesting or other conditions that must be satisfied

for the restrictions on the transferability of the shares and the risks of forfeiture to lapse on restricted

stock award or for vesting of an RSU to occur Recipients of restricted stock awards are entitled to

vote the shares and receive any dividends with respect to the shares from the date the award is made

Conversely prior to vesting of all or portion of restricted stock unit award the recipient
will not

have the rights of stockholder with respect to such shares Restricted stock awards may not be

transferred by recipient other than by will or the laws of descent or distribution until the risks of

forfeiture have lapsed

Performance Share Awards and Performance Units

The Administrator is also authorized to grant performance awards which are earned or become

vested upon achievement of performance objectives established by the Administrator Performance

share awards generally provide the recipient with the opportunity to receive shares of Broadwind

common stock and performance units generally provide recipients
with the opportunity to receive cash

awards but only if performance objectives are achieved over specified performance periods

Performance awards are non-transferable other than by will or the laws of descent or distribution

Stock Appreciation Rights

stock appreciation right may be granted independent of or in tandem with previously or

contemporaneously granted stock option as determined by the Administrator Generally upon the

exercise of stock appreciation right the recipient will receive cash shares of Broadwind common

stock or some combination of cash and shares having value equal to the excess of the fair market

value of specified number of shares of Broadwind common stock over ii specified
exercise price

If the stock appreciation right is granted in tandem with stock option the exercise of the stock

appreciation right will generally cancel corresponding portion of the option and conversely the

exercise of the stock option
will cancel corresponding portion of the stock appreciation right The

Administrator will determine the term of the stock appreciation right and how it will become

exercisable stock appreciation right may not be transferred by an optionee except by will or the laws

of descent and distribution

Amendment

The Board of Directors may from time to time suspend or discontinue the 2007 Plan or revise or

amend it in any respect provided no such revision or amendment may impair the terms and

conditions of any outstanding option or stock award to the material detriment of the participant

without the consent of the participant except as authorized in the event of merger consolidation or

liquidation of Broadwind ii the 2007 Plan may not be amended in any manner that will materially

increase the number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan except as provided in the case of stock splits

consolidations stock dividends or similar events change the designation of the class of employees

eligible to receive awards decrease the price at which options will be granted or materially

increase the benefits accruing to participants
under the 2007 Plan without the approval of the

stockholders to the extent such approval is required by applicable law or regulation Furthermore the

2007 Plan may not without the approval
of the stockholders be amended in any manner that will

cause incentive stock options to fail to meet the requirements of Section 422 of the IRC

Change in Control

In the event of an acquisition of the Company through transaction as defined in the 2007

Plan the Compensation Committee may provide
for the equitable acceleration of the exercisability

of any outstanding options or stock appreciation rights the vesting and payment of any performance
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awards or the lapsing of the risks of forfeiture on any restricted stock awards ii the complete
termination of the .2007 Plan the cancellation of outstanding options or stock appreciation rights not
exercised prior to specified date the cancellation of any performance award and the cancellation of

any restricted stock awards for which the risks of forfeiture have not lapsed iii cash payment to

participants in an amount equal to in the case of outstanding options or stock appreciation rights the

excess of the fair market value of the stock subject to any such options or stock appreciation rights on
the date immediately preceding the effective date of any such transaction over the price per share of

such options or stock appreciate rights or in the case of restricted stock awards or performance share

awards the excess of the fair market value of the stock subject to any such restricted stock awards or

performance share awards on the date immediately preceding the effective date of such transaction

provided that in lieu of such cash payment the Board of Directors may distribute to participants
shares of common stock of the Company or of any corporation succeeding the Company by reason of

such transaction such shares having value equal to the cash payment and iv continuance of the Plan
with respect to the exercise of options or stock appreciation rights that were outstanding as of the

date of adoption by the Board of Directors of such plan for such transaction and the right to exercise

such options and stock appreciation rights as to an equivalent number of shares of the corporation

succeeding the Company by reason of such transaction with respect to restricted stock awards for

which the risks of forfeiture have not lapsed as of the date of the adoption by the Board of Directors

of such plan for such transaction and the right to receive an equivalent number of shares of stock of

the corporation succeeding the Company by reason of such transaction and with respect to

performance awards and to the extent applicable the right to receive an equivalent number of shares

of stock of the corporation succeeding the Company by reason of such transaction

For purposes of the 2007 Plan transaction means

The sale of substantially all of the Companys assets and consequent discontinuance of its

business

An
acquisition of 50% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of

securities of the Company or

merger consolidation exchange reorganization reclassification extraordinary dividend
divestiture including spin-off liquidation recapitalization stock split stock dividend or

otherwise

Federal Income Tax Matters

Options

Under present law an optionee will not realize any taxable income on the date nonqualified
stock option is granted pursuant to the 2007 Plan Upon exercise of the option however the optionee
must recognize in the year of exercise ordinary income equal to the difference between the option

price and the fair market value of Broadwind common stock on the date of exercise Upon the sale of

the shares any resulting gain or loss will be treated as capital gain or loss Broadwind will receive an
income tax deduction in its fiscal year in which nonqualified options are exercised equal to the amount
of ordinary income recognized by those optionees exercising options and must withhold income and
other employment-related taxes on such ordinary income

Incentive stock options granted under the 2007 Plan are intended to qualify for favorable tax

treatment under Section 422 of the IRC Under Section 422 an optionee recognizes no taxable income
when the option is granted Further the optionee generally will not recognize any taxable income when
the option is exercised if he or she has at all times from the date of the options grant until three

months before the date of exercise been an employee of Broadwind Broadwind ordinarily is not
entitled to any income tax deduction upon the grant or exercise of an incentive stock option Certain
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other favorable tax consequences may be available to the optionee if he or she does not dispose of the

shares acquired upon the exercise of an incentive stock option for period of two years from the

granting
of the option and one year

from the receipt of the shares

Restricted Stock Awards and RSUs

Generally no income is taxable to the recipient of restricted stock award in the year
that the

award is granted Instead the recipient will recognize compensation taxable as ordinary income equal

to the fair market value of the shares in the year in which the transfer restrictions lapse Alternatively

if recipient
makes Section 83b election the recipient will in the year that the restricted stock

award is granted recognize compensation taxable as ordinary income equal to the fair market value of

the shares on the date of the award Broadwind normally will receive deduction equal to the amount

of compensation the recipient is required to recognize as ordinary taxable income and must comply

with applicable tax withholding requirements

No taxable income is recognized at the time of grant of an RSU and Broadwind will not be

entitled to tax deduction at such time The recipient of an RSU will recognize compensation taxable

as ordinary income and subject to income tax withholding in respect of an employee at the time of

settlement of the award equal to the fair market value of any shares delivered and the amount of cash

paid by Broadwind if any and Broadwind generally will be entitled to corresponding deduction The

recipients
basis in any shares delivered will be the fair market value of such shares on the date of

settlement and the recipients holding period will begin on the day after the date he or she recognizes

taxable compensation with respect to the shares

Performance Share and Performance Unit Awards

recipient of performance shares or performance units will recognize compensation taxable as

ordinary income equal to the value of the shares of Broadwind common stock or the cash received as

the case may be in the year that the recipient receives payment Broadwind normally will receive

deduction equal to the amount of compensation the recipient
is required to recognize as ordinary

taxable income and must comply with applicable tax withholding requirements

Stock Appreciation Rights

Generally recipient of stock appreciation right will recognize compensation taxable as ordinary

income equal to the value of the shares of Broadwind common stock or the cash received in the year

that the stock appreciation right is exercised Broadwind normally will receive deduction equal to the

amount of compensation the recipient is required to recognize as ordinary taxable income and must

comply with applicable tax withholding requirements

New Plan Benefits

The amount and timing of awards granted under the 2007 Plan are determined in the discretion of

the Administrator and therefore cannot be determined in advance The future awards that would be

received under the 2007 Plan by executive officers other key employees and directors are not

determinable at this time

Stock Options Granted to Date Under the 2007 Plan

The following table sets forth all of the stock options granted to date under the 2007 Plan to

each of the named executive officers ii each nominee for election as director iii all current

executive officers of the Company as group iv all current directors who are not executive officers as

group all employees including all current officers who are not executive officers as group
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vi each associate of any of such directors executive officers or nominees and vii each person who
received or is to receive five percent 5% of such options warrants and rights

Number of Shares

Subject to Stock

Option Awards
Name

Cameron Drecoll

Matthew Gadow 400000
Lars Moller 500000
Robert Paxton 75000
J.D Rubin 75000
Steven Huntington 50000
James Lindstrom

Charles Beynon 35000
Terence Fox

David Reiland 25000
William Fejes Jr

Donald Naab 100000

Peter Dawes 100000

Executive Group persons 1050000
Non-Executive Director Group persons 60000
Non-Executive Officer Employee Group 57 persons 775000

Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides certain infonnation as of December 31 2008 with respect to

compensation plans under which shares of the Companys common stock are authorized for issuance

Number of securities

remaining available

for future issuances

Number of securities Weighted-average under equity

to be issued upon exercise price of compensation
exercise of outstanding outstanding options plans excluding

options warrants warrants and securities reflected
Plan Category and rights rights in column

Equity compensation plans approved by

stockholders 18850001 $11.23 1615000

Total 1885000 $11.23 1615000

Includes outstanding stock options to purchase shares of Company common stock and
outstanding

restricted stock awards pursuant to the 2007 Plan

VOTE REQUIRED

The Board recommends that you vote FOR the approval of an amendment to the 2007 Plan to

increase the number of shares of the Companys common stock authorized to be granted under the

2007 Plan by 2000000 shares from 3500000 shares to 5500000 shares Such approval requires that

the number of votes cast in favor exceed the number of votes cast in opposition at the Annual Meeting
at which quorum is present
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RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Proposal No

The Board of Directors recommends that the stockholders ratify the appointment of Grant

Thornton LLP Grant Thornton as the independent registered public accounting firm for the

Company for the year ending December 31 2009 Grant Thornton provided services in connection with

the audit of our financial statements for the year ended December 31 2008 assistance with our Annual

Report submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K and filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission and consultation on matters relating to accounting and financial

reporting

representative of Grant Thornton is expected to be present at the Annual Meeting Such

representative will have an opportunity to make statement if he or she desires to do so and will be

available to respond to appropriate questions

Audit Fees

The following table sets forth the approximate fees billed by Grant Thornton in 2007 and 2008

2007 2008

Audit Fees $390989 795370

Audit-Related Fees $252599 346905

TaxFees

All Other Fees

Total $643588 $1142275

Audit Fees consist of fees billed by Grant Thornton in 2007 and 2008 for the audit of the

December 31 2007 and 2008 financial statements respectively attendance at Audit Committee

meetings review of financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports and in Current Reports

relating to acquisitions as well as review of correspondence with the SEC and Sarbanes-Oxley

Section 404 advisory services

Audit-Related Fees for 2007 and 2008 consist primarily of fees billed by Grant Thornton for

services in connection with accounting research due diligence and assurance work related to mergers

and acquisitions as well as other services that are related to the performance of the audit of our

financial statements and are not reported under Audit Fees

The Audit Committee has considered whether provision
of the above audit-related services is

compatible with maintaining the registered public accounting firms independence and has determined

that such services are compatible with maintaining the registered public accounting firms

independence

Pre-Approval of Audit Fees

Pursuant to its charter the Audit Committee is responsible for pre-approving all audit and

permitted non-audit services to be performed for the Company by its independent auditors or any

other auditing or accounting firm The Audit Committee pre-approved all such services in 2007 and

2008

VOTE REQUIRED

The Board recommends that you vote FOR the ratification of the appointment of Grant

Thornton as the independent registered public accounting firm for the Company Such ratification
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requires that the number of votes cast in favor exceed the number of votes cast in opposition at the

Annual Meeting at which quorum is present

SECTION 16a BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our executive officers and directors

and persons who own more than ten percent of our common stock to file with the Securities and

Exchange Commission initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of our common
stock and other equity securities Officers directors and greater than ten percent stockholders

Insiders are required by SEC regulation to furnish us with copies of all Section 16a forms they

file

To our knowledge based solely upon review of the copies of such reports furnished to us during

the year ended December 31 2008 all Section 16a filing requirements applicable to Insiders were

complied with

OTHER BUSINESS

Management knows of no other matters to be presented at the meeting If any other matter

properly comes before the meeting the appointees named in the proxies will vote the proxies in

accordance with their best judgment

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Any appropriate proposal submitted by stockholder of the Company and intended to be

presented at the 2010 Annual Meeting must be received by the Company no later than February

2010 to be includable in the Companys proxy statement and related proxy for the 2010 Annual

Meeting

Also if stockholder proposal intended to be presented at the 2010 Annual Meeting but not

included in the Companys proxy statement and proxy is received by the Company after April 25 2010
then the persons named in the Companys proxy form for the 2010 Annual Meeting will have

discretionary authority to vote the shares represented by such proxies on the stockholder proposal if

presented at the 2010 Annual Meeting without including information about the proposal in the

Companys materials

FORM 10-K

COPY OF OUR ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31 2008 WITHOUT EXHIBITS ACCOMPANIES THIS NOTICE OF ANNUAL
MEETING AND PROXY STATEMENT NO PORTION OF SUCH REPORT IS INCORPORATED
HEREIN AND NO PART THEREOF IS TO BE CONSIDERED PROXY SOLICITING MATERIAL
BROADWIND ENERGY INC WILL FURNISH TO ANY STOCKHOLDER UPON WRITTEN

REQUEST ANY EXHIBIT DESCRIBED IN THE LIST ACCOMPANYING THE FORM 10-K UPON
THE PAYMENI IN ADVANCE OF REASONABLE FEES RELATED TO US FURNISHING SUCH
EXHIBITS ANY SUCH REQUESTS SHOULD INCLUDE REPRESENTATION THAT THE
STOCKHOLDER WAS THE BENEFICIAL OWNER OF SHARES OF BROADWIND COMMON
STOCK ON AJR1L 23 2009 THE RECORD DATE FOR THE 2009 ANNUAL MEETING AND
SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO OUR CORPORATE SECRETARY AT OUR PRINCIPAL ADDRESS

Dated April 29 2009

Naperville Illinois
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EXHIBIT

BROADWIND ENERGY INC

2007 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

AS AMENDED THROUGH AUGUST 2008

SECTION

DEFINITIONS

As used herein the following terms shall have the meanings indicated below

Administrator shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company herein after referred

to as the Board or one or more Committees appointed by the Board as the case may be

Affiliates shall mean Parent or Subsidiary of the Company

Award shall mean any grant of an Option Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Unit

Award Stock Appreciation Right or Performance Award

Committee shall mean Committee of two or more directors who shall be appointed

by and serve at the pleasure of the Board To the extent necessary for compliance with Rule 16b-3

or any successor provision each of the members of the Committee shall be non-employee

director Solely for purposes of this Section 1d non-employee director shall have the same

meaning as set forth in Rule 16b-3 or any successor provision as then in effect of the General

Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

The Company shall mean Broadwind Energy Inc Delaware corporation

Fair Market Value as of any date shall mean if such stock is listed on the Nasdaq

Global Market Nasdaq Capital Market or an established stock exchange the price of such stock

at the close of the regular trading session of such market or exchange on such date as reported by

The Wall Street Journal or comparable reporting service or if no sale of such stock shall have

occurred on such date on the next date on which there was sale of stock ii if such stock is not

so listed on the Nasdaq Global Market Nasdaq Capital Market or an established stock exchange

the average of the closing bid and asked prices quoted by the OTC Bulletin Board the

National Quotation Bureau or any comparable reporting service on such date or if there are no

quoted bid and asked prices on such date on the next date for which there are such quotes

or iii if such stock is not publicly traded as of such date the per share value as determined by

the Board or the Committee in its sole discretion by applying principles of valuation with respect

to the Companys Common Stock

The Internal Revenue Code or Code is the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as

amended from time to time

Option means an incentive stock option or nonqualified stock option granted pursuant

to the Plan

Parent shall mean any corporation which owns directly or indirectly in an unbroken

chain fifty percent 50% or more of the total voting power of the Companys outstanding stock

The Participant means key employee or officer of the Company or any Affiliate to

whom an incentive stock option has been granted pursuant to Section ii consultant or

advisor to or director key employee or officer of the Company or any Affiliate to whom

nonqualified stock option has been granted pursuant to Section 10 iii consultant or advisor to

or director key employee or officer of the Company or any Affiliate to whom Restricted Stock

or Restricted Stock Unit Award has been granted pursuant to Section 11 iv consultant or

advisor to or director key employee or officer of the Company or any Affiliate to whom
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Performance Award has been granted pursuant to Section 12 or consultant or advisor to or

director key employee or officer of the Company or any Affiliate to whom Stock Appreciation

Right has been granted pursuant to Section 13

Performance Award shall mean any Performance Shares or Performance Units granted

pursuant to Section 12 hereof

Performance Objectives shall mean one or more performance objectives established

by the Administrator in its sole discretion for Awards granted under this Plan Performance

Objectives may include but shall not be limited to any one or combination of revenue

ii net income iii earnings per share iv return on equity return on assets vi increase in

revenue vii increase in share price or earnings viii return on investment or ix increase in

market share in all cases including if selected by the Administrator threshold target and

maximum levels

Performance Period shall mean the period established at the time any Performance

Award is granted or at any time thereafter during which any Performance Objectives specified by

the Administrator with
respect to such Performance Award are to be measured

Performance Share shall mean any grant pursuant to Section 12 hereof of an Award
which value if any shall be paid to Participant by delivery of shares of Common Stock of the

Company upon achievement of such Performance Objectives during the Performance Period as the

Administrator shall establish at the time of such grant or thereafter

Performance Unit shall mean any grant pursuant to Section 12 hereof of an Award
which value if any shall be paid to Participant by delivery of cash upon achievement of such

Performance Objectives during the Performance Period as the Administrator shall establish at the

time of such grant or thereafter

The Plan means the Broadwind Energy Inc 2007 Equity Incentive Plan as amended
hereafter from time to time including the form of Agreements as they may be modified by the

Administrator from time to time

Restricted Stock Award shall mean any grant of restricted shares of Stock of the

Company pursuant to Section 11 hereof

Restricted Stock Unit Award shall mean any grant of restricted stock units pursuant to

Section 11 hereof

Stock Option Stock or Common Stock shall mean the common stock $0.001 par
value of the Company reserved for Options and Awards pursuant to this Plan

Stock Appreciation Right shall mean grant pursuant to Section 13 hereof

Subsidiary shall mean any corporation of which fifty percent 50% or more of the

total voting power of the Companys outstanding Stock is owned directly or indirectly in an

unbroken chain by the Company

SECTION

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Plan is to promote the success of the Company and its Affiliates by facilitating

the employment and retention of competent personnel and by furnishing incentive to officers directors

employees consultants and advisors upon whose efforts the success of the Company and its Affiliates

will depend to large degree
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It is the intention of the Company to carry out the Plan through the granting of Options which will

qualify as incentive stock options under the provisions of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code

or any successor provision pursuant to Section of this Plan through the granting of nonqualified

stock options pursuant to Section 10 of this Plan through the granting of Restricted Stock or

Restricted Stock Unit Awards pursuant to Section 11 of this Plan through the granting of Performance

Awards pursuant to Section 12 of this Plan and through the granting of Stock Appreciation Rights

pursuant to Section 13 of this Plan Adoption of this Plan shall be and is expressly subject to the

condition of approval by the stockholders of the Company within twelve 12 months before or after

the adoption of the Plan by the Board Any incentive stock options granted after adoption of the Plan

by the Board shall be treated as nonqualified stock options if stockholder approval is not obtained

within such twelve-month period

SECTION

EFFECTWE DATE OF PLAN

The Plan shall be effective as of the date of adoption by the Board subject to approval by the

stockholders of the Company as required in Section

SECTION

ADMINISTRATION

The Plan shall be administered by the Board or by Committee which may be appointed by the

Board from time to time to administer the Plan hereinafter collectively referred to as the

Administrator Except as otherwise provided herein the Administrator shall have all of the powers

vested in it under the provisions of the Plan including but not limited to exclusive authority to

determine in its sole discretion whether an Award shall be granted the individuals to whom and the

time or times at which Awards shall be granted the number of shares subject to each Award the

option price if any and the performance criteria if any and any other terms and conditions of each

Award The Administrator shall have full power and authority to administer and interpret the Plan to

make and amend rules regulations and guidelines
for administering the Plan to prescribe the form and

conditions of the respective agreements evidencing each Award which may vary from Participant to

Participant and to make all other determinations necessary or advisable for the administration of the

Plan The Administrators interpretation of the Plan and all actions taken and determinations made by

the Administrator pursuant to the power vested in it hereunder shall be conclusive and binding on all

parties concerned

No member of the Board or the Committee shall be liable for any action taken or determination

made in good faith in connection with the administration of the Plan In the event the Board appoints

Committee as provided hereunder any action of the Committee with respect to the administration of

the Plan shall be taken pursuant to majority vote of the Committee members or pursuant to the

written resolution of all Committee members

SECTION

PARTICIPANTS

The Administrator shall from time to time at its discretion and without approval of the

stockholders designate those employees officers directors consultants and advisors of the Company

or of any Affiliate to whom Awards shall be granted under this Plan provided however that

consultants or advisors shall not be eligible to receive Awards hereunder unless such consultant or

advisor renders bona fide services to the Company or any Affiliate and such services are not in

connection with the offer or sale of securities in capital raising transaction and do not directly or

indirectly promote or maintain market for the Companys securities The Administrator may grant

additional Awards under this Plan to some or all Participants then holding Awards or may grant
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Awards solely or partially to new Participants In designating Participants the Administrator shall also

determine the number of shares to be optioned or awarded to each such Participant and the

performance criteria applicable to each Performance Award The Administrator may from time to time

designate individuals as being ineligible to participate in the Plan

SECTION

STOCK

The Stock to be issued under this Plan shall consist of authorized but unissued shares of Common

Stock Three million five hundred thousand 3500000 shares of Common Stock shall be reserved and

available for Awards under the Plan provided however that the total number of shares reserved for

Awards under this Plan shall be subject to adjustment as provided in Section 14 of the Plan and

provided further that all shares reserved and available under the Plan shall constitute the maximum

aggregate number of shares of Stock that may be issued through incentive stock options The following

shares of Stock shall continue to be reserved and available for Awards granted pursuant to the Plan

any outstanding Award that expires for any reason ii any portion of an outstanding Option or

Stock Appreciation Right that is terminated prior to exercise iii any portion of an Award that is

terminated prior to the lapsing of the risks of forfeiture on such Award iv shares of Common Stock

used to pay the exercise price under any Award shares of Common Stock used to satisfy any tax

withholding obligation attributable to any Award whether such shares are withheld by the Company or

tendered by the Participant and vi shares of Stock covered by an Award to the extent the Award is

settled in cash

SECTION

DURATION OF PLAN

Incentive stock options may be granted pursuant to the Plan from time to time during period of

ten 10 years from the effective date as defined in Section Other Awards may be granted pursuant

to the Plan from time to time after the effective date of the Plan and until the Plan is discontinued or

terminated by the Administrator

SECTION

PAYMENT

Participants may pay for shares upon exercise of Options granted pursuant to this Plan with cash

personal check certified check or if approved by the Administrator in its sole discretion previously-

owned shares of the Companys Common Stock or any combination thereof Any stock so tendered as

part of such payment shall be valued at such stocks then Fair Market Value or such other form of

payment as may be authorized by the Administrator The Administrator may in its sole discretion limit

the forms of payment available to the Participant and may exercise such discretion any time prior to

the termination of the Option granted to the Participant or upon any exercise of the Option by the

Participant Previously-owned shares means shares of the Companys Common Stock which the

Participant has owned for at least six months prior to the exercise of the Option or for such other

period of time as may be required by generally accepted accounting principles

With respect to payment in the form of Common Stock of the Company the Administrator may

require advance approval or adopt such rules as it deems
necessary to assure compliance with

Rule 16b-3 or any successor provision as then in effect of the General Rules and Regulations under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 if applicable
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SECTION

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF INCENTWE STOCK OPTIONS

Each incentive stock option granted pursuant to this Section shall be evidenced by written

incentive stock option agreement the Option Agreement The Option Agreement shall be in such

form as may be approved from time to time by the Administrator and may vary
from Participant to

Participant provided however that each Participant and each Option Agreement shall comply with and

be subject to the following terms and conditions

Number of Shares and Option Price The Option Agreement shall state the total number

of shares covered by the incentive stock option Except as permitted by Code Section 424a or

any successor provision the option price per share shall not be less than one hundred percent

100% of the per share Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on the date the Administrator

grants the Option provided however that if Participant owns stock possessing more than ten

percent 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or of its

Parent or any Subsidiary the option price per share of an incentive stock option granted to such

Participant shall not be less than one hundred ten percent 110% of the per
share Fair Market

Value of the Companys Common Stock on the date of the grant of the Option The Administrator

shall have full authority and discretion in establishing the option price and shall be fully protected

in so doing

Term and Exercisability of Incentive Stock Option The term during which any incentive

stock option granted under the Plan may be exercised shall be established in each case by the

Administrator Except as permitted by Code Section 424a in no event shall any incentive stock

option be exercisable during term of more than ten 10 years after the date on which it is

granted provided however that if Participant owns stock possessing more than ten percent

10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or of its Parent

or any Subsidiary the incentive stock option granted to such Participant shall be exercisable during

term of not more than five years after the date on which it is granted

The Option Agreement shall state when the incentive stock option becomes exercisable and

shall also state the maximum term during which the Option may be exercised In the event an

incentive stock option is exercisable immediately the manner of exercise of the Option in the

event it is not exercised in full immediately shall be specified in the Option Agreement The

Administrator may accelerate the exercisability of any incentive stock option granted hereunder

which is not immediately exercisable as of the date of grant

Nontransferability No incentive stock option shall be transferable in whole or in part by

the Participant other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution During the

Participants lifetime the incentive stock option may be exercised only by the Participant If the

Participant shall attempt any transfer of any incentive stock option granted under the Plan during

the Participants lifetime such transfer shall be void and the incentive stock option to the extent

not fully exercised shall terminate

No Rights as Stockholder Participant or the Participants successor or successors shall

have no rights as stockholder with respect to any shares covered by an incentive stock option

until the date the Participant is recorded on the stock transfer books of the Company as the owner

of the Stock No adjustment shall be made for dividends ordinary or extraordinary whether in

cash securities or other property distributions or other rights for which the record date is prior

to the date such transfer is actually recorded except as otherwise provided in Section 14 of the

Plan

Withholding The Company or its Affiliate shall be entitled to withhold and deduct from

future wages of the Participant all legally required amounts necessary
to satisfy any and all
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withholding and employment-related taxes attributable to the Participants exercise of an incentive

stock option or disqualifying disposition of shares acquired through the exercise of an incentive

stock option as defined in Code Section 421b In the event the Participant is required under the

Option Agreement to pay the Company or make arrangements satisfactory to the Company

respecting payment of such withholding and employment-related taxes the Administrator may in

its discretion and pursuant to such rules as it may adopt require the Participant to satisfy such

obligation in whole or in part by delivering shares of the Companys Common Stock or by

electing to have the Company withhold Common Stock otherwise issuable to the Participant as

result of the exercise of the incentive stock option Such shares shall have Fair Market Value

equal to the minimum required tax withholding based on the minimum statutory withholding rates

for federal and state tax purposes including payroll taxes that are applicable to the supplemental

income resulting from such exercise In no event may the Company or any Affiliate withhold

shares having Fair Market Value in excess of such statutory minimum required tax withholding
The Participants election to deliver shares or to have shares withheld for this purpose shall be

made on or before the date the incentive stock option is exercised or if later the date that the

amount of tax to be withheld is determined under applicable tax law Such election shall be

approved by the Administrator and otherwise comply with such rules as the Administrator may
adopt to assure compliance with Rule 16b-3 or any successor provision as then in effect of the

General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 if applicable

Other Provisions The Option Agreement authorized under this Section shall contain

such other provisions as the Administrator shall deem advisable Any such Option Agreement shall

contain such limitations and restrictions upon the exercise of the Option as shall be
necessary to

ensure that such Option will be considered an incentive stock option as defined in Section 422

of the Internal Revenue Code or to conform to any change therein

SECTION 10

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTIONS

Each nonqualified stock option granted pursuant to this Section 10 shall be evidenced by written

nonqualified stock option agreement the Option Agreement The Option Agreement shall be in

such form as may be approved from time to time by the Administrator and may vary from Participant

to Participant provided however that each Participant and each Option Agreement shall comply with

and be subject to the following terms and conditions

Number of Shares and Option Thice The Option AgrŁØmrif shifi state the total number
of shares covered by the nonqualified stock option Unless otherwise determined by the

Administrator the option price per share shall be one hundred percent 100% of the per share

Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on the date the Administrator grants the Option

Term and Exercisability of Non qualifled Stock Option The term during which any

nonqualified stock option granted under the Plan may be exercised shall be established in each

case by the Administrator The Option Agreement shall state when the nonqualified stock option

becomes exercisable and shall also state the maximum term during which the Option may be

exercised In the event nonqualified stock option is exercisable immediately the manner of

exercise of the Option in the event it is not exercised in full immediately shall be specified in the

Option Agreement The Administrator may accelerate the exercisability of any nonqualified stock

option granted hereunder which is not immediately exercisable as of the date of grant

Transferability nonqualified stock option shall be transferable in whole or in part by

the Participant by will or by the laws of descent and distribution In addition the Administrator

may in its sole discretion permit the Participant to transfer any or all nonqualified stock options

to any member of the Participants immediate family as such term is defined in Rule 16a-1e
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promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or any successor provision or to one or

more trusts whose beneficiaries are members of such Participants immediate family or

partnerships in which such family members are the only partners provided however that the

Participant cannot receive any consideration for the transfer and such transferred nonqualified

stock option shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions as were applicable to

such nonqualified stock option immediately prior to its transfer

No Rights as Stockholder Participant or the Participants successor or successors shall

have no rights as stockholder with respect to any shares covered by nonqualified stock option

until the date the Participant is recorded on the stock transfer books of the Company as the owner

of the Stock No adjustment shall be made for dividends ordinary or extraordinary whether in

cash securities or other property distributions or other rights for which the record date is prior

to the date such transfer is actually recorded except as otherwise provided in Section 14 of the

Plan

Withholding The Company or its Affiliate shall be entitled to withhold and deduct from

future wages of the Participant all legally required amounts necessary to satisfy any and all

withholding and employment-related taxes attributable to the Participants exercise of

nonqualified stock option In the event the Participant
is required under the Option Agreement to

pay the Company or make arrangements satisfactory to the Company respecting payment of such

withholding and employment-related taxes the Administrator may in its discretion and pursuant to

such rules as it may adopt require the Participant to satisfy such obligation in whole or in part by

delivering shares of the Companys Common Stock or by electing to have the Company withhold

Common Stock otherwise issuable to the Participant as result of the exercise of the nonqualified

stock option Such shares shall have Fair Market Value equal to the minimum required tax

withholding based on the minimum statutory withholding rates for federal and state tax purposes

including payroll taxes that are applicable to the supplemental income resulting from such

exercise In no event may the Company or any Affiliate withhold shares having Fair Market

Value in excess of such statutory minimum required tax withholding The Participants election to

deliver shares or to have shares withheld for this purpose shall be made on or before the date the

nonqualified stock option is exercised or if later the date that the amount of tax to be withheld is

determined under applicable tax law Such election shall be approved by the Administrator and

otherwise comply with such rules as the Administrator may adopt to assure compliance with

Rule 16b-3 or any successor provision as then in effect of the General Rules and Regulations

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 if applicable

Other Provisions The Option Agreement authorized under this Section 10 shall contain

such other provisions as the Administrator shall deem advisable

SECTION 11

RESTRICTED STOCK AND RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARDS

Each Restricted Stock Award or Restricted Stock Unit Award granted pursuant to the Plan shall

be evidenced by written restricted stock/restricted stock unit agreement the Restricted Stock

Agreement or Restricted Stock Unit Agreement as the case may be The Restricted Stock

Agreement or Restricted Stock Unit Agreement shall be in such form as may be approved from time to

time by the Administrator and may vary from Participant to Participant provided however that each

Participant and each Restricted Stock Agreement or Restricted Stock Unit Agreement shall comply

with and be subject to the following terms and conditions

Number of Shares The Restricted Stock Agreement or Restricted Stock Unit Agreement

shall state the total number of shares of Stock covered by the Restricted Stock/Restricted Stock

Unit Award

A-7



Risks of Forfeiture The Restricted Stock Agreement or Restricted Stock Unit Agreement

shall set forth the risks of forfeiture or vesting conditions if any including risks of forfeiture or

vesting conditions based on Performance Objectives which shall apply to the shares of Stock

covered by the Restricted Stock/Restricted Stock Unit Award and shall specify the manner in

which such risks of forfeiture shall lapse or vesting conditions shall vest The Administrator may in

its sole discretion and to the extent permitted by applicable tax and securities laws and regulations

accelerate the date on which the risks of forfeiture shall lapse or vesting conditions shall vest but

only with respect to those shares of Stock which are restricted as of the effective date of the

acceleration

Issuance of Shares Rights as Stockholder

With respect to Restricted Stock Award the Company shall cause to be issued

stock certificate representing such shares of Stock in the Participants name and shall deliver

such certificate to the Participant provided however that the Company shall place legend

on such certificate describing the risks of forfeiture and other transfer restrictions set forth in

the Participants Restricted Stock Agreement and providing for the cancellation and return of

such certificate if the shares of Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Award are forfeited

Until the risks of forfeiture have lapsed or the shares subject to such Restricted Stock Award

have been forfeited the Participant shall be entitled to vote the shares of Stock represented

by such stock certificate and shall receive all dividends attributable to such shares but the

Participant shall not have any other rights as stockholder with respect to such shares

ii With respect to Restricted Stock Unit Award as the vesting conditions on the

Restricted Stock Units are satisfied the Administrator shall cause to be issued one or more

stock certificates in the Participants name and shall deliver such certificates to the Participant

in satisfaction of such Restricted Stock Units Until the vesting conditions on the Restricted

Stock Units are satisfied the Participant shall not be entitled to vote any shares of stock

which may be acquired through the Restricted Stock Units shall not receive any dividends

attributable to such shares and shall not have any other rights as stockholder with respect to

such shares

Withholding Taxes The Company or its Affiliate shall be entitled to withhold and deduct

from future wages of the Participant all legally required amounts necessary to satisfy any and all

withholding and employment-related taxes attributable to the Participants Restricted Stock

Restricted Stock Unit Award In the event the Participant is required under the Restricted Stock

Agreement or Restricted Stock Unit Agreement to pay the Company or its Affiliate or make

arrangements satisfactory to the Company or its Affiliate respecting payment of such withholding

and employment-related taxes the Administrator may in its discretion and pursuant to such rules

as it may adopt permit the Participant to satisfy such obligations in whole or in part by delivering

shares of Common Stock including shares of Stock received pursuant to the Restricted Stock

Restricted Stock Unit Award on which the risks of forfeiture have lapsed Such shares shall have

Fair Market Value equal to the minimum required tax withholding based on the minimum

statutory withholding rates for federal and state tax purposes including payroll taxes that are

applicable to the supplemental income resulting from the lapsing of the risks of forfeiture on such

Restricted Stock/Restricted Stock Unit In no event may the Participant deliver shares having

Fair Market Value in excess of such statutory minimum required tax withholding The Participants

election to deliver shares of Common Stock for this purpose shall be made on or before the date

that the amount of tax to be withheld is determined under applicable tax law Such election shall

be approved by the Administrator and otherwise comply with such rules as the Administrator may

adopt to assure compliance with Rule 16b-3 or any successor provision as then in effect of the

General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 if applicable

A-8



Nontransferabilily No Restricted Stock/Restricted Stock Unit Award shall be transferable

in whole or in part by the Participant other than by will or by the laws of descent and

distribution prior to the date the risks of forfeiture described in the Restricted Stock Agreement

or Restricted Stock Unit Agreement have lapsed If the Participant shall attempt any transfer of

any Restricted Stock/Restricted Stock Unit Award granted under the Plan prior to such date such

transfer shall be void and the Restricted Stock/Restricted Stock Unit Award shall terminate

Other Provisions The Restricted Stock Agreement or Restricted Stock Unit Agreement

authorized under this Section 11 shall contain such other provisions as the Administrator shall

deem advisable

SECTION 12

PERFORMANCE AWARDS

Each Performance Award granted pursuant to this Section 12 shall be evidenced by written

performance award agreement the Performance Award Agreement The Performance Award

Agreement shall be in such form as may be approved from time to time by the Administrator and may

vary from Participant to Participant provided however that each Participant and each Performance

Award Agreement shall comply with and be subject to the following terms and conditions

Awards Performance Awards in the form of Performance Units or Performance Shares

may be granted to any Participant in the Plan Performance Units shall consist of monetary awards

which may be earned or become vested in whole or in part if the Company or the Participant

achieves certain Performance Objectives established by the Administrator over specified

Performance Period Performance Shares shall consist of shares of Stock or other Awards

denominated in shares of Stock that may be earned or become vested in whole or in part if the

Company or the Participant achieves certain Performance Objectives established by the

Administrator over specified Performance Period

Performance Objectives Performance Period and Payment The Performance Award

Agreement shall set forth

the number of Performance Units or Performance Shares subject to the Performance

Award and the dollar value of each Performance Unit

ii one or more Performance Objectives established by the Administrator

iii the Performance Period over which Performance Units or Performance Shares may

be earned or may become vested

iv the extent to which partial achievement of the Performance Objectives may result in

payment or vesting of the Performance Award as determined by the Administrator and

the date upon which payment of Performance Units will be made or Performance

Shares will be issued as the case may be and the extent to which such payment or the receipt

of such Performance Shares may be deferred

Withholding Taxes The Company or its Affiliates shall be entitled to withhold and deduct

from future wages of the Participant all legally required amounts necessary to satisfy any and all

withholding and employment-related taxes attributable to the Participants Performance Award In

the event the Participant is required under the Performance Award Agreement to pay the

Company or its Affiliates or make arrangements satisfactory to the Company or its Affiliates

respecting payment of such withholding and employment-related taxes the Administrator may in

its discretion and pursuant to such rules as it may adopt require the Participant to satisfy such

obligations in whole or in part by delivering shares of the Companys Common Stock or by

electing to have the Company withhold shares of Common Stock otherwise issuable to Participant
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as result of the grant of Performance Shares Such shares shall have Fair Market Value equal

to the minimum required tax withholding based on the minimum statutory withholding rates for

federal and state tax purposes including payroll taxes In no event may the Participant deliver

shares having Fair Market Value in excess of such statutory minimum required tax withholding

The Participants election to deliver shares or to have shares withheld for this purpose shall be

made on or before the date that the amount of tax to be withheld is determined under applicable

tax law Such election shall be approved by the Administrator and otherwise comply with such

rules as the Administrator may adopt to assure compliance with Rule 16b-3 or any successor

provision as then in effect of the General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 if applicable

Nontransferabilily No Performance Award shall be transferable in whole or in part by

the Participant other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution If the Participant

shall attempt any transfer of any Performance Award granted under the Plan such transfer shall

be void and the Performance Award shall terminate

No Rights as Stockholder Participant or the Participants successor or successors shall

have no rights as stockholder with
respect to any shares covered by Performance Award until

the date Participant is recorded on the stock transfer books of the Company as the owners of the

shares No adjustment shall be made for dividends ordinary or extraordinary whether in cash

securities or other property distributions or other rights for which the record date is prior to the

date such transfer is actually recorded except as otherwise provided in Section 14 of the Plan

Other Provisions The Performance Award Agreement authorized under this Section 12

shall contain such other provisions as the Administrator shall deem advisable

SECTION 13

STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS

Each Stock Appreciation Right granted pursuant to this Section 13 shall be evidenced by written

stock appreciation right agreement the Stock Appreciation Right Agreement The Stock

Appreciation Right Agreement shall be in such form as may be approved from time to time by the

Administrator and may vary from Participant to Participant provided however that each Participant

and each Stock Appreciation Right Agreement shall comply with and be subject to the following terms

and conditions

Awards Stock Appreciation Right shall entitle the Participant to receive upon exercise

cash shares of Stock or any combination thereof having value equal to the excess of the Fair

Market Value of specified number of shares of Stock on the date of such exercise over ii

specified exercise price Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator the specified exercise

price shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of such shares of Stock on the date of

grant of the Stock Appreciation Right Stock Appreciation Right may be granted independent of

or in tandem with previously or contemporaneously granted Option

Term and Exercisabilily The term during which any Stock Appreciation Right granted

under the Plan may be exercised shall be established in each case by the Administrator The Stock

Appreciation Right Agreement shall state when the Stock Appreciation Right becomes exercisable

and shall also state the maximum term during which such Stock Appreciation Right may be

exercised In the event Stock Appreciation Right is exercisable immediately the manner of

exercise of such Stock Appreciation Right in the event it is not exercised in full immediately shall

be specified in the Stock Appreciation Right Agreement The Administrator may accelerate the

exercisability of any Stock Appreciation Right granted hereunder which is not immediately

exercisable as of the date of grant
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Withholding Taxes The Company or its Affiliate shall be entitled to withhold and deduct

from future wages of the Participant all legally required amounts necessary to satisfy any and all

withholding and employment-related taxes attributable to the Participants Stock Appreciation

Right In the event the Participant is required under the Stock Appreciation Right to pay the

Company or its Affiliate or make arrangements satisfactory to the Company or its Affiliate

respecting payment of such withholding and employment-related taxes the Administrator may in

its discretion and pursuant to such rules as it may adopt permit the Participant to satisfy such

obligations in whole or in part by delivering shares of Common Stock or by electing to have the

Company withhold Common Stock issuable to Participant as result of the exercise of the Stock

Appreciation Right Such shares shall have Fair Market Value equal to the minimum required

tax withholding based on the minimum statutory withholding rates for federal and state tax

purposes including payroll taxes In no event may the Participant deliver shares having Fair

Market Value in excess of such statutory minimum required tax withholding The Participants

election to deliver shares of Common Stock for this purpose shall be made on or before the date

that the amount of tax to be withheld is determined under applicable tax law Such election shall

be approved by the Administrator and otherwise comply with such rules as the Administrator may

adopt to assure compliance with Rule 16b-3 or any successor provision as then in effect of the

General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 if applicable

Non ti-ansferabilily No Stock Appreciation Right shall be transferable in whole or in part

by the Participant other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution If the Participant

shall attempt any transfer of any Stock Appreciation Right granted under the Plan such transfer

shall be void and the Stock Appreciation Right shall terminate

No Rights as Stockholder Participant or the Participants successor or successors shall

have no rights as stockholder with respect to any shares covered by Stock Appreciation Right

until the date of the issuance of stock certificate evidencing such shares No adjustment shall be

made for dividends ordinary or extraordinary whether in cash securities or other property

distributions or other rights for which the record date is prior to the date such stock certificate is

actually issued except as otherwise provided in Section 14 of the Plan

Other Provisions The Stock Appreciation Right Agreement authorized under this

Section 13 shall contain such other provisions as the Administrator shall deem advisable including

but not limited to any restrictions on the exercise of the Stock Appreciation Right which may be

necessary to comply with Rule 16b-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

SECTION 14

RECAPITALIZATIOP SALE MERGER EKCHANGE OR LIQUIDATION

In the event of an increase or decrease in the number of shares of Common Stock resulting from

stock dividend stock split reverse split combination or reclassification of the Common Stock or any

other increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of Common Stock effected without receipt of

consideration by the Company the Administrator may in its sole discretion adjust the number of

shares of Stock reserved under Section hereof the number of shares of Stock covered by each

outstanding Award and if applicable the price per share thereof to reflect such change Additional

shares which may become covered by the Award pursuant to such adjustment shall be subject to the

same restrictions as are applicable to the shares with respect to which the adjustment relates

Unless otherwise provided in the agreement evidencing an Award in the event of an acquisition of

the Company through the sale of substantially all of the Companys assets and the consequent

discontinuance of its business an acquisition of 50% or more of the total combined voting power of all

classes of securities of the Company or merger consolidation exchange reorganization

reclassification extraordinary dividend divestiture including spin-off liquidation recapitalization
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stock split stock dividend or otherwise collectively referred to as transaction the Administrator

may provide for one or more of the following

the equitable acceleration of the exercisability of any outstanding Options or Stock

Appreciation Rights the vesting and payment of any Performance Awards or the lapsing of the

risks of forfeiture on any Restricted Stock Awards

the complete termination of this Plan the cancellation of outstanding Options or Stock

Appreciation Rights not exercised prior to date specified by the Board which date shall give

Participants reasonable period of time in which to exercise such Option or Stock Appreciation

Right prior to the effectiveness of such transaction the cancellation of any Performance Award

and the cancellation of any Restricted Stock Awards for which the risks of forfeiture have not

lapsed

that Participants holding outstanding Options and Stock Appreciation Rights shall receive

with respect to each share of Stock subject to such Option or Stock Appreciation Right as of the

effective date of any such transaction cash in an amount equal to the excess of the Fair Market

Value of such Stock on the date immediately preceding the effective date of such transaction over

the price per share of such Options or Stock Appreciation Rights provided that the Board may in

lieu of such cash payment distribute to such Participants shares of Common Stock of the

Company or shares of stock of any corporation succeeding the Company by reason of such

transaction such shares having value equal to the cash payment herein

that Participants holding outstanding Restricted Stock Awards and Performance Share

Awards shall receive with respect to each share of Stock subject to such Awards as of the

effective date of any such transaction cash in an amount equal to the Fair Market Value of such

Stock on the date immediately preceding the effective date of such transaction provided that the

Board may in lieu of such cash payment distribute to such Participants shares of Common Stock

of the Company or shares of stock of any corporation succeeding the Company by reason of such

transaction such shares having value equal to the cash payment herein

the continuance of the Plan with respect to the exercise of Options or Stock Appreciation

Rights which were outstanding as of the date of adoption by the Board of such plan for such

transaction and the right to exercise such Options and Stock Appreciation Rights as to an

equivalent number of shares of stock of the corporation succeeding the Company by reason of

such transaction

the continuance of the Plan with respect to Restricted Stock Awards for which the risks

of forfeiture have not lapsed as of the date of adoption by the Board of such plan for such

transaction and the right to receive an equivalent number of shares of stock of the corporation

succeeding the Company by reason of such transaction and

the continuance of the Plan with respect to Performance Awards and to the extent

applicable the right to receive an equivalent number of shares of stock of the corporation

succeeding the Company by reason for such transaction

The Administrator may condition any acceleration of exercisability or other right to which Participant is

not entitled upon any additional agreements from Participant including without limitation

Participant agreeing to additional restrictive covenants e.g confidentiality noncompetition

non-solicitation non-circumvention etc and Participant agreeing to continue to perform services for

the Company successor or purchaser of all or any portion of the Companys business or related

assets for substantially the same base salary for period of up to six months

The Administrator may restrict the rights of or the applicability of this Section 14 to the extent

necessary to comply with Section 16b of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Internal Revenue
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Code or any other applicable law or regulation The grant of an Award pursuant to the Plan shall not

limit in any way the right or power of the Company to make adjustments reclassifications

reorganizations or changes of its capital or business structure or to merge exchange or consolidate or

to dissolve liquidate sell or transfer all or any part
of its business or assets

SECTION 15

INVESTMENT PURPOSE

No shares of Stock shall be issued pursuant to the Plan unless and until there has been

compliance in the opinion of Companys counsel with all applicable legal requirements including

without limitation those relating to securities laws and stock exchange listing requirements As

condition to the issuance of Stock to Participant the Administrator may require Participant to

represent
that the shares of Stock are being acquired for investment and not resale and to make

such other representations as the Administrator shall deem necessary or appropriate to qualify the

issuance of the shares as exempt from the Securities Act of 1933 and any other applicable securities

laws and represent that Participant shall not dispose of the shares of Stock in violation of the

Securities Act of 1933 or any other applicable securities laws

As further condition to the grant of any Option or the issuance of Stock to Participant

Participant agrees to the following

In the event the Company advises Participant that it plans an underwritten public offering

of its Common Stock in compliance with the Securities Act of 1933 as amended and the

underwriters seek to impose restrictions under which certain stockholders may not sell or

contract to sell or grant any option to buy or otherwise dispose of part or all of their stock

purchase rights of the Common Stock underlying Awards Participant will not for period not to

exceed 180 days from the prospectus sell or contract to sell or grant an option to buy or otherwise

dispose of any Option granted to Participant pursuant to the Plan or any of the underlying shares

of Common Stock without the prior written consent of the underwriters or its representatives

In the event the Company makes any public offering of its securities and determines in its

sole discretion that it is necessary to reduce the number of issued but unexercised stock purchase

rights so as to comply with any states securities or Blue Sky law limitations with respect thereto

the Board of Directors of the Company shall have the right to accelerate the exercisability of

any Option and the date on which such Option must be exercised provided that the Company

gives Participant prior written notice of such acceleration and ii to cancel any Options or

portions thereof which Participant does not exercise prior to or contemporaneously with such

public offering

In the event of transaction as defined in Section 14 of the Plan Participant will

comply with Rule 145 of the Securities Act of 1933 and any other restrictions imposed under other

applicable legal or accounting principles if Participant is an affiliate as defined in such

applicable legal and accounting principles at the time of the transaction and Participant will

execute any documents necessary to ensure compliance with such rules

The Company reserves the right to place legend on any stock certificate issued in connection

with an Award pursuant to the Plan to assure compliance with this Section 15

SECTION 16

AMENDMENT OF THE PLAN

The Administrator may from time to time insofar as permitted by law suspend or discontinue the

Plan or revise or amend it in any respect provided however that no such revision or amendment

except as is authorized in Section 14 shall impair the terms and conditions of any Award which is
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outstanding on the date of such revision or amendment to the material detriment of the Participant
without the consent of the

Participant Notwithstanding the foregoing no such revision or amendment
shall

materially increase the number of shares subject to the Plan except as provided in Section 14

hereof ii change the designation of the class of employees eligible to receive Awards iii decrease
the price at which Options may be granted or iv materially increase the benefits

accruing to

Participants under the Plan without the approval of the stockholders of the Company if such approval
is

required for compliance with the requirements of any applicable law or regulation Furthermore the
Plan may not without the approval of the stockholders be amended in any manner that will cause
incentive stock

options to fail to meet the requirements of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code

SECTION 17

NO OBLIGATION TO EXERCISE OPTION

The granting of an Option shall impose no obligation upon the Participant to exercise such Option
Further the granting of an Award hereunder shall not impose upon the Company or any Affiliate any
obligation to retain the Participant in its employ for any period
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PART

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statementsthat is statements related to

future not past eventsas defined in Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the

Exchange Act that reflect our current expectations regarding our future growth results of operations

cash flows peiformance and business prospects and opportunities as well as assumptions made by and

information currently available to our management Forward-looking statements include any statement that

does not directly relate to current or historical fact We have tried to identify forward-looking statements by

using words such as anticipate believe plan expect intend wil4 should may plan

and similar expressions but these words are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking

statements These statements are based on information currently available to us and are subject to various

risks uncertainties and other factors including but not limited to those discussed in Item 1A Risk

Factors in Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K that could cause our actual growth results of

operations financial condition cash flows performance and business prospects
and opportunities to differ

materially from those expressed in or implied by these statements Our forward-looking statements may

include or relate to the following our plans to continue to grow our business through organic growth and

integration of previous and future acquisitions ii our beliefs with respect to the sufficiency of our working

capital and our plans to evaluate alternate sources of funding if necessaly iii our ability to comply with

loan covenants iv our expectations relating to construction of new facilities and expansion of existing

facilities our plans with respect to the use of proceeds from financing activities vi our beliefs and

expectations relating to the recent economic downturn and the potential impact it may have on our business

including our customers and vii the anticipated benefits of our remediation efforts on the strength of our

internal control processes
and our plans with respect to future remediation efforts Except as expressly

required by the federal securities laws we undertake no obligation to update such factors or to publicly

announce the results of any of the forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect future events

developments or changed circumstances or for any other reason

ITEM BUSINESS

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K the terms we us our Broadwind and the

Company refer to Broadwind Energy Inc Delaware incorporated company headquartered in

Naperville Illinois and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are supplier of value-added products and services to the North American wind energy sector

as well as other energy-related industries We provide our customers such as leading wind turbine

manufacturers and developers wind farm operators
and service companies with broad range of

component and service offerings Since 2006 we have made significant investments in the growth of our

business through series of acquisitions In doing so we have developed broad U.S.-based supply



chain for wind development in North America Our five businesses are currently organized in two

operating segments Products arid Services

Broadwind

Products

Products

The Products segment includes three subsidiaries that manufacture and sell products such as high
precision gears for wind turbines custom-engineered gearing systems for the mining energy and

industrial sectors structural wind towers internal tower components and large fabricated and

machined components e.g crane parts and dipper buckets Specific services provided include key

technology areas such as grinding and finishing of
gears and gear sets steel plate processing heavy

welding and custom corrosion protection of components Our primary focus is on the wind energy
industry however our Products segment also services mining construction oil and gas and other

industrial energy applications

The Products segment has undergone significant expansion in the last two years and reflects the

operations of Brad Foote Gear Works Inc Brad Foote Tower Tech Systems Inc Tower Tech
and R.B.A Inc RBA As of December 31 2008 the segment had approximately 800 employees
and operated in Wisconsin Texas Illinois and Pennsylvania Taking into account our acquisition of

RBA on October 2007 and Brad Foote on October 19 2007 our Products segment had revenues of

$29804000 and $177114000 in 2007 and 2008 respectively

summary of the three subsidiaries that comprise our Products segment follows

Brad Foote founded in 1924 and acquired by us in October 2007 is the largest precision gear
manufacturer for the wind energy industry in North America Brad Foote produces precision

and custom-engineered gearing systems for wind power generation oil production steel and

transportation industries Brad Foote has two facilities in Cicero Illinois and one in Neville

Island Pennsylvania which represent the largest gear grinding and carburizing capacity in North

America As of December 31 2008 Brad Foote had approximately 435 employees and total

manufacturing space of approximately 569000 square feet

Tower Tech founded in 2003 and acquired by us in February 2006 manufactures utility-scale

wind towers for wind energy development Today Tower Tech is leading manufacturer of wind

towers and specializes in delivering the larger and heavier next generation of wind towers to our

customers Since 2004 Tower Tech has manufactured more than 250 towers for its customers

Tower Tech has strategically located facilities in Manitowoc Wisconsin and Abilene Texas and

partially constructed third wind tower manufacturing facility in Brandon South Dakota Tower

Techs facilities have combined annual production capacity which supports up to 1500MW of

wind energy production on an annual basis As of December 31 2008 Tower Tech had

approximately 293 employees and total manufacturing space of approximately 346000 square
feet in its Manitowoc and Abilene facilities

Services
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RBA founded in 1985 and acquired by us in October 2007 specializes
in heavy steel fabrication

and performs specialty welding services RBA refurbishes assembles and welds heavy equipment

for the crane manufacturing construction marine and mining and metals industries RBAs

specialized welding expertise supports and will assist Tower Tech in developing Tower Techs

technical expertise in providing
future generations

of customized wind towers RBA has facilities

in Manitowoc and Clintonville Wisconsin As of December 31 2008 RBA had approximately

70 employees and total manufacturing space of approximately 100000 square feet

Services

The Services segment was established upon our acquisition of Energy Maintenance Service LLC

EMS in January 2008 and expanded with our acquisition of Badger Transport Inc Badger in

June 2008 This segment specializes in construction operations and maintenance of and component

repair services for the wind industry as well as specialized heavy haul trucking services to installation

sites Services provided include construction and technical support in the erection of wind turbine

generators scheduled and un-scheduled maintenance fiberglass inspections general repair
and training

and the transportation of oversize/overweight equipment and machinery

As of December 31 2008 the segment had approximately 300 employees Currently the Services

segment has service hub locations in South Dakota Texas and Wisconsin and satellite field service

centers in California and Illinois In fiscal year 2008 and taking into account the acquisition of EMS on

January 16 2008 and Badger on June 2008 the Services segment had revenues of $41502000

summary of each of the two subsidiaries that comprise our Services segment follows

EMS founded in 1998 and acquired by us in January 2008 provides construction operations

and maintenance and component repair
services for the wind industry EMS specializes

in wind

turbine repair offerings including major component refurbishing wind turbine maintenance

construction support and engineering and advisory services The companys customers include

turbine and component manufacturers wind farm owners and developers EMS main office is in

Gary South Dakota and it has major repair hubs in Howard South Dakota and Abilene Texas

as well as satellite field service centers in California and Illinois As of December 31 2008 EMS

had approximately 260 employees

Badger founded in 1982 and acquired by us in June 2008 is provider of transportation

services of oversize/overweight equipment and machinery primarily to the wind industry The

company specializes in the transport of tower sections blades nacelles and other oversized

equipment for large industrial applications Badger has been in business for over 25 years with

15
years

in specialized heavy haul and more than 11 years serving the wind industry Badger

operates from its headquarters in Clintonville Wisconsin As of December 31 2008 Badger had

approximately 50 employees and operated or leased total of 64 trailers

See Note 21 Segment Reporting of the notes to our consolidated financial statements for

discussion of summary financial information by segment

BUSINESS AND OPERATING STRATEGY

Our business strategy is to capitalize on the anticipated growth of wind and other energy sectors in

the U.S by providing the highest value-added components and services across the wind and other

energy sector supply chains We seek to expand our market share in the North American wind energy

industry and other energy sectors and to be the leading provider of comprehensive supply solution to

our customers in North America The recent downturn in the economy and the effects of the

disruptions in the global credit markets and financial systems have had negative effect on the wind

industry and global heavy manufacturing industry and has limited our short term growth prospects In



light of these challenges and our belief that we have invested in enough infrastructure to meet our

short term goals our immediate focus is to concentrate on achieving operational excellence within our

existing businesses and to continue to expand our North American market share and to focus our

efforts on maintaining adequate liquidity and working capital

Our strategic objectives include the following

Become the leading provider in the wind supply chain in North America by expanding our suite of

products and services We are dedicated to the identification development and

commercialization of new products and services that utilize our capacity and provide value-added

solutions for our customers Supply chain management is critical for wind turbine manufacturers

who manufacture or will soon manufacture many of the turbines in the U.S Our local presence
in key wind resource states and suite of products and services directly address this critical issue

by limiting exchange rate risk and importation and customs duties and substantially reducing

transportation and working capital costs for our customers With the addition of businesses

providing new products and services in the last two years we have made
progress

in our desire

to provide comprehensive solutions for our customers across the wind supply chain from full

component manufacturing to delivery to site and construction support By maintaining strategic

relationships with our customers we are able to understand and meet their needs across the

supply chain and provide opportunities to deliver them synergies across our operating units

Leverage our customer relationships within the wind industry and related sectors to cross-sell our

products and services The wind ilidustry manufacturing supply chain is characterized by close

customer relationships based on product development and long-term supply agreements We
consider our relationships with our wind customers to be key pillar of our future strategy and

work closely with them to develop and tailor products to their individual needs We engage with

our customers on many levels industry research and development product design key account

management and manufacturing We believe our single-source strategy will help leverage our

existing customer relationships with the worlds leading wind turbine manufacturers and help us

to realize cross-selling opportunities We will continue to seek to capture significant share of

our existing customers demand and to diversify our revenue and customer base

Continue to develop the service and maintenance businesses We believe that the after-market

support business in the wind industry is
currently underdeveloped Most wind turbine

components are currently serviced by wind turbine manufacturers through applicable warranty

periods We believe that as manufacturer warranties expire and as the complexity and size of

wind turbines increase component manufacturers will increasingly be asked to service their own

products We intend to support our customers service strategies to further develop our own
service channels and to capture share of the expanding service and aftermarket support
business on the basis of agreements with wind turbine manufacturers wind farm operators and

independent service providers We have local service centers located close to wind sites that are

centrally-placed with capital-intensive capabilities giving us competitive advantage as we

capitalize on post-warranty growth in wind turbine service and maintenance demand

Continue to improve production technology and operational efficiency and enhance our cost siructure

Our manufacturing facilities include state-of-the-art equipment and lean
processes to reduce

costs Although we have achieved significant cost reductions by emphasizing flexibility in our

manufacturing processes and installing modern and more efficient equipment we remain focused

on further reducing costs We will continue to employ strategies to further optimize the

production processes at our facilities to generate increased output and lower our costs while

maintaining product quality with high technical specifications Ongoing efforts are underway to

continue to improve labor and machine efficiencies at the plant level revise staffing programs
and upgrade scheduling and performance systems to increase efficiency reduce inventories and



improve overall financial returns and cash flow We also intend to continue to construct and

operate lean facilities near project sites to decrease transportation costs

Utilize our capacity to increase market share and satisfy our customers demand for our products and

services During 2008 we took steps to increase our manufacturing capabilities by increasing

production capacity at our Brad Foote manufacturing facilities and by constructing tower

manufacturing plant in Abilene Texas with an additional tower plant partially
constructed in

Brandon South Dakota In addition RBA added an additional manufacturing location in

Clintonville Wisconsin Our service segment increased specialized heavy-haul capacity by over

20% and our EMS subsidiary increased its service capacity through strategic hiring We are

prepared to further expand manufacturing and service capacity to meet customer demand as we

approach capacity constraints However we believe that we are well positioned to take

advantage of the current market conditions and an increase in market growth with our current

infrastructure Going forward we plan to continue to expand our delivery options to benefit

from economies of scale and scope from complementary and growing businesses

Recruit train and retain high quality employees in our current and planned facilities Our business

relies on highly skilled workers to operate sophisticated machinery and provide specialized

service with demanding technical specifications The quality and skills of our personnel have

been critical to our success to date and our continued growth depends on our ability to attract

train and retain capable and dedicated employees We believe we offer attractive employment

opportunities
in the markets in which we operate We provide extensive training programs for

new employees and continuing education for our existing employees Many employees are able

to operate variety of different machines depending on workload and customer orders allowing

us flexibility in our product mix We intend to continue to place an emphasis on building

collaborate culture that fosters passion honesty and teamwork to deliver real value for our

customers and our investors

COMPANY HISTORY

We were incorporated in Nevada in 1996 as Blackfoot Enterprises Inc Blackfoot In February

2006 Blackloot completed reverse shell transaction with Tower Tech whereupon Blackfoot became

holding company for Tower Tech and subsequently changed its name to Tower Tech Holdings Inc In

2008 Tower Tech Holdings Inc reincorporated in Delaware and changed its name from Tower Tech

Holdings Inc to Broadwind Energy Inc Through series of strategic business acquisitions completed

in 2007 and 2008 and organic growth we expanded upon our core platform as wind tower component

manufacturer and have positioned the Company as broad-based supply-chain provider for the wind

and other energy-related industries

SALES AND MARKETING

Our sales and marketing strategy is to develop and maintain long-term relationships with our

customers and to offer comprehensive suite of products and services to them We pursue this strategy

by working closely with our customers in developing and designing customized product manufacturing

and service solutions We also intend for our offerings to fulfill needs that our customers may consider

non-core and do not desire to provide for within their organizations We target long-term agreements

under which we supply our customers with products or services The majority of our customer base

consists of wind turbine manufacturers who supply end-users and wind turbine developers with

completed wind turbines Within the wind industry we have long-standing relationships with customers

engaging them at various levels from key account management site management research and

development product design and manufacturing up to senior management



COMPETITION

We do not believe that any competitors exist that have developed similar suite of products and

services for the North American wind industry as those offered by our businesses However

competition within each of our subsidiaries niches exists and some of our customers maintain internal

capabilities that compete with our offerings Several wind tower manufacturers compete in the United

States including Trinity Industries Inc Ameron International Corporation and DM1 Industries

Approximately five companies worldwide have the proven ability and capacity to compete with Brad

Foote to supply gear sets for the wind industry Brad Foote is major North American supplier of

wind energy gear sets Two of the major European suppliers are owned by wind turbine manufacturers

Hansen owned by Suzlon energy and Winergy/Flender owned by Siemens The competitors of Brad

Foote within the oil and gas exploration industry are slightly more fragmented These companies

compete based upon price quality location available capacity and several other factors Anderson

Trucking Service and Lonestar Trucking are Badgers main competitors while additional competitors

within our Services segment are fragmented

GOVERNMENT REGULATION AND COMPLIANCE

The operations of our businesses are subject to numerous federal state and local environmental

laws and regulations While it is the Companys primary objective to maintain compliance with these

respective laws and regulations it may not be possible to quantify with certainty the potential impact of

actions regarding environmental matters particularly remediation and other compliance efforts that the

Company may undertake in the future We believe that our subsidiaries are in substantial compliance

with such laws and regulations and we do not anticipate any material capital expenditures
for

environmental control facilities

BACKLOG

Many of our products are sold under long-term supply agreements These long-term agreements

have various terms but generally range from several months to three years
with some contracts

carrying automatic renewal provisions As of December 31 2008 the range of our backlog to be

shipped in 2009 was estimated to be between $170 million and $212 million based upon the options

that our customers may exercise during the year In light of the nature of the Companys operations in

2007 management does not believe that providing the backlog number for the preceding fiscal year will

provide useful comparison against the Companys current situation

SEASONALITY

The majority of our business is not affected by seasonality Our Services segment can be affected

by weather-related constraints

EMPLOYEES

The Company had 1127 employees as of December 31 2008 As of December 31 2008 914 of

our employees were in manufacturing service and field support related functions and 213 employees

were in administrative functions Approximately 32% of our employees are covered by two collective

bargaining agreements with local unions These agreements are scheduled to expire
in October 2009

and February 2010 We consider our union and employee relations to be satisfactory

RAW MATERIALS

The primary raw material used in the construction of wind towers and gearing products at our

Tower Tech and Brad Foote businesses respectively is steel in the form of steel plate forgings and



castings Additionally some agreements may allow customers to independently provide steel to Tower

Tech for the construction of wind towers

We operate multiple sourcing strategy and source our raw materials through various suppliers

located throughout the United States and abroad We do not generally have long-term supply

agreements with any of our raw materials suppliers We believe that we will be able to obtain an

adequate supply of steel and other raw materials to meet our manufacturing requirements

CUSTOMERS

We manufacture or construct and provide transportation
and maintenance services to variety of

customers in the wind energy oil and gas mining and industrial industries The majority of our

customer base consists of wind turbine manufacturers who supply end-users and wind turbine

developers with completed wind turbines In the industrial mining and constructions sectors we sell

our products through our technically trained sales force to both owners and operators The wind

turbine market is very concentrated According to the American Wind Energy Associations 2008

industry rankings the top three wind turbine manufacturers in the U.S constituted 77% of the market

and the top five constituted 95% of the market As result we currently have concentrations with

limited number of customers for majority of our revenues Sales to each of Gamesa Clipper and

General Electric Transportation Services represents an amount greater than 10% of our Companys

consolidated revenues and the loss of any such customer could have material adverse effect on the

Company

Our current and historical portfolio of customers and collaborators includes AWE Babcock

Brown Clipper Diversified Energy Solutions FPL Energy Gamesa Garrad Hassan General Electric

Great River Energy Horizon Wind Energy Nordex Reunion Power Siemens Suzlon Vestas Xcel

Energy

WORKING CAPITAL

The Companys primary customers are wind turbine manufacturers and wind energy developers

The industry has historically produced customized and varying terms and conditions for agreements

between suppliers
and customers depending on the specific objectives of each party The Companys

practices mirror this historical industry practice for negotiating agreements on case-by-case basis As

result working capital needs including levels of accounts receivable and inventory can vary

significantly from quarter to quarter based on the contractual terms agreed to by the parties such as

whether the Company is required to purchase and supply steel pursuant to such contractual terms

QUALiTY CONTROL

We have long-standing focus on processes
for ensuring the manufacture of high quality products

To achieve high standards of production and operational quality we implement strict and extensive

quality control and inspection throughout our production processes We maintain full in-house control

over all core manufacturing processes
and carry out quality assurance inspection at the completion of

each major manufacturing step to ensure the quality of our products The manufacturing process at

Brad Foote for example involves transforming forged steel into high technical specification gears

through to rough machining hobbing reinforcing thermal treatment fine machining and fine grinding

We inspect and test raw materials before they enter the assembly process re-test the raw materials

after rough machining test the functioning of gear teeth and cores after thermal treatment and

accuracy test final outputs for product specifications We believe our investment in industry-leading

heat treatment high precision machining specialized grinding technologies and cutting edge welding

has contributed to our high product reliability and consistent performance of our products under

varying operating conditions once installed



CORPORATE INFORMATION

Our principal executive office is located at 47 East Chicago Avenue Suite 332 Naperville

IL 60540 Our phone number is 630 637-0315 and our website address is wwwbroadwindenergy.com

OTHER INFORMATION

On our website at wwwbroadwindenergy.com we make available under the Investors menu

selection free of charge our Annual Reports on Form 10-K and Form 10-KSB Quarterly Reports on

Form 10-0 and Form 10-QSB Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports filed

or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable

after such
reports or amendments are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and

Exchange Commission SEC Materials that we file or furnish to the SEC may also be read and

copied at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street N.E Washington DC 20549 Information

on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at

1-800-SEC-0330 Also the SEC maintains an Internet site at wwwsec.gov that contains reports proxy
and information statements and other information that we file electronically with SEC

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to Our Business

Our businesses and therefore our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected by

the current disruption in the global credit markets and instability of financial systems

The recent disruption in the global credit markets the re-pricing of credit risk and the

deterioration of the financial and real estate markets generally particularly in the U.S and Europe
have all contributed to reduction in consumer spending and decline in the overall U.S economy
Although the recent disruptions were initially in the housing financial and insurance sectors it appears
that this deterioration has further expanded to the general economy and other sectors including the

wind energy sector Tight credit increased unemployment and reduced consumer confidence may have

negative effects on demand for alternative sources of energy and consequently for our product and

service offerings In addition some economists are predicting that the U.S economy and possibly the

global economy has entered into prolonged recession or even depression as result of the

foregoing factors Such prolonged downturn in the U.S or global economy could have material

adverse effect on our business in number of ways including lower sales and renewal cycles if there is

reduction in demand for wind energy and could have material adverse effect on our liquidity

results of operations and financial condition

In addition if these conditions continue or worsen they may result in reduced worldwide demand
for energy and additional difficulties in obtaining financing which may adversely affect our business

Risks we might face could include potential declines in revenues in our business segments due to

reduced orders or other factors caused by economic challenges faced by our customers and prospective

customers and potential adverse impacts on our ability to access credit and other financing sources

and the cost thereof beyond the approved credit lines we currently have Each of these conditions

may also impact our ability to finance future acquisitions or significant capital expenditures relating to

new projects and lines of business

disruption of economic growth in the wind industry could negatively impact our results of operations and

growth

Our business segments are focused on supplying products and services to wind turbine

manufacturers and owners and operators of wind energy generation facilities Currently the wind

industry is dependent upon federal tax incentives and state renewable portfolio standards The federal



government provides
economic incentives to the owners of wind energy facilities including federal

production tax credit an investment tax credit and cash grant equal in value to the investment tax

credit The production tax credit was extended in February 2009 through the American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act of 2009 and provides
the owner of qualifying wind energy facility placed in

operation before the end of 2012 with ten-year tax credit against the owners federal income tax

obligations based on the amount of electricity generated by the qualifying wind energy facility

Alternatively wind project owners may elect to receive 30% investment tax credit for facilities placed

in service before the end of 2012 or apply to receive cash grant
from the Department of Treasury

equal in value to the investment tax credit for facilities placed in service in 2009 and 2010 and also for

facilities placed in service before 2013 if construction begins before the end of 2010

The production tax credit investment tax credit and cash grant provide
material incentives to

develop wind energy generation facilities and thereby impact the demand for our manufactured

products and services and may do so until the credits or incentives lapse The failure of Congress to

extend or renew these incentives beyond 2012 could significantly delay the development of wind energy

generation facilities and the demand for wind turbines towers and related components In addition we

cannot assure you that any subsequent extension or renewal of the production tax credit investment tax

credit or cash grant
would be enacted prior to its expiration or if allowed to expire that any extension

or renewal enacted thereafter would be enacted with retroactive effect It is possible that these federal

incentives will not be extended beyond 2012 Any delay or failure to extend or renew the federal

production tax credit investment tax credit or cash grant in the future could have material adverse

impact on our business results of operations financial performance and future development efforts

Renewable portfolio standards are state-specific statutory provisions requiring state-regulated

electric utilities to supply certain amount of electricity from renewable energy sources or devote

certain portion of their plant capacity to renewable energy sources Additionally certified renewable

energy generators can earn renewable energy credits for every unit of electricity they produce and sell

from renewable generation facilities These standards have spurred significant growth in the wind

energy industry and corresponding increase in the demand for our manufactured products Currently

more than 25 states and the District of Colombia have renewable portfolio standards in place and at

least states have voluntary utility commitments to supply specific percentage of their electricity from

renewable sources The enactment of renewable portfolio standards in additional states or any changes

to existing renewable portfolio standards or the enactment of federal renewable portfolio standard or

carbon trading policy may impact the demand for our products We cannot assure you that government

support for renewable energy will continue The elimination of or reduction in state or federal

government policies
that support renewable energy could have material adverse impact on our

business results of operations financial performance and future development efforts

We are substantially dependent on few significant customers

Each of our segments has significant customers and concentrated sales to such customers If our

relationships
with significant customers should change materially including as result of decreased

customer demand for our products and services due to the impact of current or future economic

conditions on our customers it could be difficult for us to immediately and profitably replace lost sales

in such market where we have significant revenue concentration In addition although our subsidiary

companies operate independently dispute
between significant customer and the Company or one of

our subsidiaries could have negative effect on the business relationship we have with that customer

across our entire organization Among other things such dispute could lead to an overall decrease in

such customers demand for our products and services or difficulty in collecting amounts due to one or

more of our subsidiaries that are otherwise not related to such dispute Moreover material change

in payment terms for accounts receivable of significant customer could have material adverse effect

on the Companys short-term cash flows



Our customers may be sin4ficantly affected by disruptions and volatility in the markets

Current market disruptions and regular market volatility may have adverse impacts on our
customers ability to pay when due the amounts payable to us and could cause related increases in our

cost of capital associated with any increased working capital or borrowing needs we may have if this

occurs We may also have difficulty collecting amounts payable to us in full or at all if any of our
customers fail or seek protection under applicable bankruptcy or insolvency laws In addition our

customers may attempt to renegotiate the terms of contracts or reduce the size of orders with us as

result of disruptions and volatility in the markets Our backlog is substantial and we cannot predict with

any degree of certainty the amount of our backlog that we will be successful in collecting from our
customers

Market disruptions and regular market volatility may also result in an increased likelihood of our
customers bringing warranty or remediation claims in connection with our products or services that they
would not ordinarily bring in more stable economic environment In the event of such claim we
may incur costs if we decide to compensate the affected customer or to engage in litigation against the

affected customer regarding the claim We maintain product liability insurance but there can be no

guarantee that such insurance will be available or adequate to protect against such claims successful

claim against us could result in material adverse effect on our business

Volatile financial markets or our own operating performance and liquidity could restrict our ability to access

capital and may increase our borrowing costs and ability to continue as going concern

In Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on November 10 2008 Tontine Capital Partners L.P

TCP Tontine Capital Overseas Master Fund L.P TMF Tontine Partners L.P TP Tontine

Overseas Fund Ltd TOF and Tontine 25 Overseas Master Fund L.R T25 and collectively with

TP TOF TCP TMF and their affiliates Tontine stated its intention to explore alternatives for the

disposition of its equity interest in the Company Tontine owns approximately 49% of our outstanding

common stock as of December 31 2008 We have from time to time relied on Tontine for financing
cash flows from private placements of our common stock Tontines intentions with

respect to our

common stock may affect our ability to raise cash from financing activities and could affect our

liquidity

We rely on access to both short and long-term capital markets as source of liquidity for capital

requirements not satisfied by cash flows from operations If we are not able to access capital at

competitive rates the ability to implement our business plans may be adversely affected

Unprecedented disruptions in the current credit and financial markets particularly in the United States

and Europe have had significant material adverse impact on number of financial institutions and
have limited access to capital and credit for many companies These

disruptions could make it more
difficult for the Company to obtain debt financing for its operations acquisitions and anticipated

capital expenditures or increase its cost of obtaining financing which could have material adverse

effect on the Companys liquidity results of operations and financial condition

Additionally our current short- and long-term debt agreements contain various financial covenants
Violations of such covenants may restrict our ability to obtain the additional financing we need to

implement our growth strategy In the event of loan covenant violation and inability to obtain

waivers our loans would be due immediately and our ability to obtain financing could be severely

impacted As previously disclosed as result of
restating our financial statements for the quarterly

period ended September 30 2008 Brad Foote was in violation of two of its covenants in its Loan

Agreement dated as of January 17 1997 as amended the Loan Agreement with Bank of America
formerly LaSalle Bank National Association BOA Brad Foote obtained waiver of these covenant
violations from BOA as of September 30 2008 and otherwise was in compliance with the financial and
other covenants contained in the Loan Agreement as of September 30 2008
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On January 16 2009 Brad Foote 1309 South Cicero LLC 1309 and 5100 Neville Road LLC

5100 each wholly-owned subsidiary of Brad Foote entered into an Omnibus Amendment

Agreement dated January 15 2009 the Omnibus Amendment with BOA amending the Loan

Agreement Among other things the Omnibus Amendment provided that BOA waive Brad Footes

violation of the two covenants in the Loan Agreement with which Brad Foote had not been in

compliance for the period from December 31 2008 up to but not including January 20 2009 The

Omnibus Amendment also provided that Brad Footes financial covenants and events of default under

the Loan Agreement be amended and restated

On March 13 2009 Brad Foote 1309 and 5100 entered into Second Omnibus Amendment

Agreement the Second Omnibus Amendment with BOA and in connection therewith the

Company 1309 and 5100 entered into Reaffirmation of agreements and covenants in the Loan

Agreement and related documents the Reaffirmation Among other things the Second Omnibus

Amendment further amended and restated certain financial covenants under the Loan Agreement and

shortened the maturities of certain of the loans outstanding under the Loan Agreement Pursuant to

the Second Omnibus Amendment Brad Foote paid BOA $1.5 million of the amount outstanding on its

revolving note under the Loan Agreement $500000 of which was paid by the Company on behalf of

Brad Foote and will pay an extension fee on monthly basis through the end of 2009 In addition the

Second Omnibus Amendment also provided that the revolving note under the Loan Agreement be

amortized pursuant to monthly payments that the maturity date of the revolving note under the Loan

Agreement be extended to January 15 2011 that BOAs revolving credit commitment under the Loan

Agreement be terminated and that BOA shall have no obligation to make revolving loans to Brad

Foote under the Loan Agreement While we expect that we will be in compliance with the amended

and restated covenants contained in the Loan Agreements there can be no certainty that Brad Foote

will be in compliance with such covenants for any future periods or that Brad Foote will be able to

attain waiver from BOA in the event of violation of one or more such covenants Please see Part II

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for

more detailed discussion of the Loan Agreement

The Board of Directors of the Company has established Finance Committee to among other

things assist the Board in monitoring and evaluating the Companys liquidity short- and long-term

financing plans and capital structure

We may have difficulty raising additional financing when needed or on acceptable terms which could force us

to delay reduce or eliminate some or all of our development plans

Our limited resources and limited operating history may make it difficult to borrow funds to

increase the amount of capital available to us to carry out our business The amount and nature of any

such borrowings would depend on numerous considerations including our capital requirements our

perceived ability to meet debt service on any such borrowings and the then prevailing conditions in the

financial markets as well as general economic conditions There can be no assurance that debt

financing if required or sought would be available on terms deemed to be commercially acceptable by

us and in our best interest

There can be no assurances that our operations will generate sufficient cash flows or that credit facilities will

be available to us in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our indebtedness or to fund other liquidity

needs

Our ability to make scheduled payments on our debt and other financial obligations will depend on

our future financial and operating performance While we believe that we will continue to have

sufficient cash flows to operate our businesses there can be no assurances that our operations will

generate sufficient cash flows or that credit facilities will be available to us in an amount sufficient to

enable us to pay our indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity needs If we cannot make scheduled
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payments on our debt we will be in default and as result among other things our debt holders
could declare all outstanding principal and interest to be due and payable and we could be forced into

bankruptcy or liquidation or required to substantially restructure or alter our business operations or
debt obligations

Our financial and operating performance is subject to prevailing economic and industry conditions and to

financial business and other factors some of which are beyond our controL

If our cash flows and
capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations we will

likely face increased
pressure to dispose of assets seek additional capital or restructure or refinance

our indebtedness These actions could have material adverse effect on our business financial

condition and results of operations In addition we cannot assure that we would be able to take any of
these actions that these actions would be successful and permit us to meet our scheduled debt service

obligations or that these actions would be permitted under the terms of our existing or future debt

agreements since our credit agreements restrict our ability to dispose of assets and use the proceeds
from such dispositions For example we may need to refinance all or portion of our indebtedness on
or before maturity There can be no assurance that we will be able to refinance any of our
indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms or at all In the absence of improved operating results
and access to capital resources we could face substantial liquidity problems and might be required to

dispose of material assets or operations to meet our debt service and other obligations We may not be
able to consummate those

dispositions or to obtain the proceeds realized Additionally these proceeds
may not be adequate to meet our debt service obligations then due

Our credit agreements limit our ability to take various actions and default under our credit agreements
could have materwi adverse impact on our business

Our credit agreements limit our ability to take various actions including paying dividends and

disposing of assets Accordingly we may be restricted from taking actions that management believes
would be desirable and in the best interests of us and our stockholders Our credit agreements also

require us to satisfy specified financial and non-financial covenants breach of any covenants
contained in our credit agreements could result in an event of default under the agreements Upon the

occurrence of an event of default under our credit agreements the lenders may not be required to lend

any additional amounts to us and could elect to declare all borrowings outstanding thereunder together
with accrued and unpaid interest and fees to be due and payable which could also result in an event
of default under our other agreements relating ta our borrowings any of which could have material
adverse effect on our business or financial condition

As result of these covenants we are limited in the manner in which we conduct our business and
we may be unable to engage in favorable business activities or finance future operations or capital
needs Our ability to comply with the covenants and restrictions contained in the agreements governing
our indebtedness may be affected by economic financial and industry conditions beyond our control If

we were unable to refinance these borrowings on favorable terms our results of operations and
financial condition could be adversely impacted by increased costs and less favorable terms including
higher interest rates and more restrictive covenants The instruments governing the terms of any future

refinancing of any borrowings are likely to contain similar or more restrictive covenants

Our level of indebtedness could adversely affect our business and certain of our indebtedness matures in the

near term

As of December 31 2008 our consolidated indebtedness totaled approximately $43.3 million
$11.8 million of which Broadwind has guaranteed for our wholly-owned subsidiaries As of March 13
2009 approximately $36.5 million of outstanding indebtedness was guaranteed by Broadwind We
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cannot assure you that our businesses will generate sufficient cash flow from operations to pay this

debt In addition approximately $14.0 million of our indebtedness is scheduled to mature during 2009

Our significant debt service obligations

may limit our ability to obtain additional financing in excess of our current borrowing capacity

on satisfactory terms to fund working capital requirements capital expenditures acquisitions

debt service requirements capital stock and debt repurchases dividends distributions and other

general corporate requirements or to refinance existing indebtedness

require us to dedicate substantial portion of our cash flows to the payment of principal and

interest on our debt which will reduce the funds we have available for other purposes

limit our liquidity and operational flexibility and our ability to respond to the challenging

economic and business conditions that currently exist or that we may face in the future

may require us in the future to reduce discretionary spending dispose of assets or forgo

acquisitions or other strategic opportunities

impose on us additional financial and operational restrictions

expose us to increased interest rate risk because substantial portion of our debt obligations are

at variable interest rates and

subject us to market and industry speculation as to our financial condition and the effect of our

debt level and debt service obligations on our operations which speculation could be disruptive

to our relationships with customers suppliers employees creditors and other third parties

For more detailed discussion of the indebtedness of Broadwind and its subsidiaries please see

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Part II

Item and Note 12 Debt and Credit Agreements in Part IV Item 15 of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Variable rate indebtedness subjects us to interest rate risk which could cause our debt service obligations to

increase significantly

As of December 31 2008 approximately $31.4 million of our borrowings were at variable rates of

interest and expose us to interest rate risk If interest rates increase our debt service obligations on the

variable rate indebtedness would increase even though the amount borrowed remained the same In

connection with the acquisition of Brad Foote in October 2007 the Company assumed two interest rate

swap agreements These swap agreements related to two outstanding equipment loans with notional

amount totaling $8.6 miilion and involved the exchange of floating interest rate for fixed interest

rate These swaps are scheduled to mature in January 2011 and April 2012 We may use interest rate

derivatives to hedge the variability of the cash flows associated with our existing or forecasted variable

rate borrowings Although we may enter into additional interest rate swaps involving the exchange of

floating for fixed rate interest payments to reduce interest rate volatility we cannot provide assurances

that we will be able to do so or that such swaps will be effective

Growth and diversification through acquisitions and internal expansion may not be successful and could

result in poor financial performance

To execute our business strategy we may acquire new businesses We may not be able to identify

appropriate acquisition candidates or successfully negotiate finance or integrate acquisitions If we are

unable to make acquisitions we may be unable to realize the growth we anticipate Future acquisitions

could involve numerous risks including difficulties in integrating the operations services products and

personnel of the acquired business and the potential loss of key employees customers and suppliers of

13



the acquired business If we are unable to successfully manage these acquisition risks future earnings

may be adversely affected

We may also plan to continue to grow our existing business through increased production levels at

existing facilities and through expansion to new manufacturing facilities and locations such as our

recently completed tower manufacturing facility in Abilene Texas and our partially constructed tower

manufacturing facility in Brandon South Dakota Such expansion and any future expansion will require

coordinated efforts across the Company and continued enhancements to our current operating

infrastructure including management and operations personnel systems and equipment and property

Difficulties or delays in acquiring and effectively integrating any new facilities may adversely affect

future performance Moreover if our expansion efforts do not adequately predict the demand of our

customers and our potential customers our future earnings may be adversely affected

We have limited operating history

In February 2006 the Company completed reverse shell transaction with Tower Tech whereupon

we became holding company for Tower Tech From the third quarter of 2007 through June of 2008

we acquired RBA Brad Foote EMS and Badger all of which had been stand-alone private companies

prior to when they were acquired by Broadwind Our limited operating history and the limited period

of time during which we have operated in our current form makes it difficult to evaluate our business

In addition the uncertainty of our future performance and ability to maintain or improve our financial

sales and operating systems procedures and controls increase the risk that we may be unable to

continue to successfully operate our business In the event that we are not able to manage our growth

and operate as public company due to our limited experience our business may suffer uncertainty

and failures

We face intense competition from industry participants who may have greater resources than we do

Our businesses are subject to risks associated with competition from new or existing industry

participants who may have more resources and better access to capital Many of our competitors and

potential competitors may have substantially greater financial customer support technical and

marketing resources larger customer bases longer operating histories greater name recognition and

more established relationships in the industry than we do Among other things these industry

participants compete with our subsidiaries based upon price quality location and available capacity We
cannot be sure that we will have the resources or expertise to compete successfully in the future Some

of our competitors may also be able to provide customers with additional benefits at lower overall costs

to increase market share We cannot be sure that we will be able to match cost reductions by our

competitors or that we will be able to succeed in the face of current or future competition

We have generated limited revenue and have generated net losses and negative cash flows since our inception

We have experienced operating losses as well as net losses for each of the years during which we

have operated In addition in light of current economic conditions we anticipate that future losses and

negative cash flow is possible for the foreseeable future We have incurred significant costs in

connection with the development of our businesses and there is no assurance that we will achieve

sufficient revenues to offset anticipated operating costs Although we anticipate deriving revenues from

the sale of our products and services no assurance can be given that these products can be sold on

net profit basis If we achieve profitability we cannot give any assurance that we would be able to

sustain or increase profitability on quarterly or annual basis in the future
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Material weaknesses or other deficiencies in our internal con trol over financial reporting including potential

failure to prevent or detect errors or fraud could affect the accuracy of our reported financial results

Management has identified material weaknesses in internal controls over financial reporting in

2008 as referenced in Item 9A Controls and Procedures of this Annual Report filed on Form 10-K

The Company restated certain financial information in its Form 10-0 for the quarter ended

September 30 2008 on account of certain material weaknesses in internal controls over its financial

reporting Internal control weaknesses or deficiencies may continue to affect our ability to close our

financial reporting on timely basis or report accurate numbers In addition acquisitions of companies

lacking sufficient financial and internal control expertise may affect our ability to comply with public

company reporting requirements in the future including meeting filing deadlines established by the

SEC and ensuring that our Company-wide controls and procedures are adequate to provide financial

information in timely and reliable matter We may incur substantial additional costs to bring acquired

companies systems into compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as amended

Sarbanes-Oxley Our ability to attract and retain qualified financial experts will also impact our

ability to comply with financial reporting and Sarbanes-Oxley regulations If we are not able to

maintain the requirements of Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley in timely manner or with adequate

compliance we may be subject to sanctions or investigation by regulatory authorities This type of

action could adversely affect our financial results or investors confidence in our company and our

ability to access capital markets and could cause our stock price to decline

We are required to devote substantial time to compliance initiatives which may divert managements attention

from the growth and operation of our business

As public company we incur significant legal accounting and other expenses and we are subject

to the SECs rules and regulations relating to public disclosure that generally involve substantial

expenditure of financial resources and managerial time In addition Sarbanes-Oxley as well as rules

subsequently implemented by the SEC require changes in corporate governance practices of public

companies Full compliance with these rules and regulations
has significantly increased our legal and

financial compliance costs and has made some activities more time-consuming and costly We may also

incur substantial additional costs to bring acquired companies systems into compliance with

Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley Such additional reporting and compliance costs may negatively impact

our financial results To the extent our earnings suffer as result of the financial impact of our SEC

reporting or compliance costs our ability to develop an active trading market for our securities could

be harmed

As public company we also expect that new rules and regulations may make it more difficult and

expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance in the future and we may be required

to accept reduced policy
limits and coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain the same

coverage As result it may be more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on

our board of directors or as executive officers

It may be time-consuming difficult and costly for us to continue our development and

implementation of the internal controls and reporting procedures required by Sarbanes-Oxley Some

members of our management team have limited or no experience operating company with securities

traded or listed on an exchange or subject to SEC rules and requirements including SEC reporting

practices and requirements that are applicable to publicly traded company We may need to recruit

hire train and retain additional financial reporting internal controls and other personnel in order to

develop and implement appropriate internal controls and reporting procedures
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Our future operating results and the market price of the common stock could be materially adversely affected

if we are required to write down the carrying value of goodwill or intangible assets associated with any of our

operating segments in the future

In accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 142 Goodwill

and Other Intangible Assets SFAS 142 we review our goodwill and intangible balances for

impairment on at least an annual basis through the application of fair-value-based test Our estimate

of fair-value for each of our operating segments is based primarily on projected future results and cash

flows and other assumptions In addition in accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets SFAS 144 we

review long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount

may not be recoverable In October of 2008 we performed our annual test for goodwill impairment

and determined that the goodwill balance related to RBA was impaired This determination indicated

decline in the projected fair value of RBA net assets based upon forecasted operating results Our

analysis indicated that the projected discounted cash flows associated with RBAs net assets did not

exceed their carrying value As result we recorded goodwill impairment charge of approximately

$2.4 million during the fourth quarter of 2008 In the future if our projected discounted cash flows

associated with our operating segments do not exceed the carrying value of their net assets we may be

required to record additional write downs of the carrying value of goodwill intangible assets or other

long-lived assets associated with any of our operating segments in accordance with SFAS 142 and

SFAS 144 and our operating results and the market price of our common stock may be materially

adversely affected

Disruptions in the supply of parts and raw materials or changes in supplier relations may negatively impact

our operating resulls

The Company is dependent upon the supply of certain raw materials used in its production process

and these raw materials are exposed to price fluctuations on the open market Raw material costs for

items such as steel the primary raw material used by the Company have fluctuated significantly and

may continue to fluctuate To reduce price risk caused by market fluctuations the Company has

incorporated price adjustment clauses in certain sales contracts however limitations on availability or

increases or decreases in the cost of raw materials including steel the cost of energy transportation

and other
necessary

services may impact our operating results because our manufacturing businesses

may not be able to fully pass on the costs associated with such increases or decreases to their respective

customer

In addition we may encounter supplier constraints be unable to maintain favorable supplier

arrangements and relations or be affected by disruptions in the supply chain caused by such events as

natural disasters power outages and the effect of labor strikes In the event of significant increases or

decreases in the price of raw materials particularly steel our margins and profitability could be

negatively impacted

Restrictions on transport and significant fluctuations in fuel costs could affect distribution access to certain

geographical areas

Significant fluctuations in fuel costs and transport restrictions could negatively impact transport of

large products such as towers blades and nacelles Depending on the location of our customers and

potential customers wind projects they may choose to limit their transportation expenses by choosing

to source component purchases in geographic areas where our operations are not located In addition

rising fuel costs and transport restrictions could have material effect on the business and operations

of Badger our specialized heavy haul trucking subsidiary
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Trade restrictions may present barriers to entry in certain international markets

Restrictions on trade with certain international markets could affect our ability to expand into

these markets In addition the existence of government subsidies available to our competitors in certain

countries may affect our ability to compete on price basis

We may be unable to keep pace with rapidly changing technology in wind turbine component manufacturing

The global market for wind turbines is rapidly evolving technologically Wind turbines are

progressively becoming larger and more powerful and our component manufacturing equipment and

technology may not be suited for future generations of products being developed by wind turbine

companies To maintain successful business in our field we must keep pace with technological

developments and changing standards of our customers and potential customers and meet their

constantly evolving demands If we fail to adequately respond to the technological changes in our

industry or are not suited to provide components for new types of wind turbines the Companys net

worth financial condition and operating results may be adversely affected

We rely on unionized kibo the loss of which could adversely affect the future success of the Company

We are dependent on the services of unionized labor and have collective bargaining agreements

with certain of our operations workforce The loss of the services of these and other personnel whether

through terminations attrition labor strike or otherwise or material change in our collective

bargaining agreements could have material adverse impact on us and our future profitability

Collective bargaining units in place at our Brad Foote subsidiarys Pittsburgh and Cicero facilities are

under contract through 2009 and 2010 respectively
and represent approximately 32% of the Companys

workforce

The loss of our key personnel could harm our business

Our future success will depend largely on the skills efforts and motivation of our executive

officers and other key personnel Our success also depends in large part upon our ability to attract

and retain highly qualified management and key personnel throughout our organization We face

competition in the attraction and retention of personnel who possess the skill sets that we seek In

addition key personnel may leave our company and subsequently compete against us The loss of the

services of any of our key personnel or our failure to attract and retain other qualified and

experienced personnel on acceptable terms could have material adverse effect on our business

results of operations or financial condition

Our ability to comply with regulatory requirements is critical to our future success and our current level of

controls cannot guarantee that we are in compliance with all such requirements

As manufacturer and distributor of wind and other energy industry products we are subject to

number of industry standard-setting authorities such as the American Gear Manufacturers Association

and the American Welding Society In addition many of our products are or may become subject to

the requirements of federal state and local or foreign regulatory authorities Changes in the standards

and requirements imposed by such authorities could have material adverse effect on us In the event

we are unable to meet any such standards when adopted our business could be adversely affected We

may not be able to obtain all regulatory approvals licenses and permits that may be required in the

future or any necessary
modifications to existing regulatory approvals licenses and permits or maintain

all required regulatory approvals licenses and permits

While we believe that our businesses are currently in compliance with the requirements of federal

state and local or foreign regulatory authorities applicable to them our current internal controls are

likely insufficient to guarantee that our businesses are in full compliance with such requirements We
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continue to develop our internal controls with goal of providing greater degree of certainty that our

businesses are in compliance with applicable governmental and regulatory requirements but our

current level of internal control may fail to reveal to us material instances of non-compliance with such

requirements and such non-compliance could have material adverse effect on our business

Our principal stockholder holds large percentage of our common stock and influences our affairs

sigmflcantly but has publicly stated its intention to liquidate certain of its holdings in various investments

which may include shares of our common stock

Tontine owns approximately 49% of our outstanding common stock as of December 31 2008 As

result Tontine has the voting power to significantly influence our policies business and affairs and the

outcome of any corporate transaction or other matter including mergers consolidations and the sale of

all or substantially all of our assets Tontines significant ownership level may have the effect of

delaying deterring or preventing change in control that otherwise could result in premium in the

price of our common stock Tontine and its affiliates may invest in entities that directly or indirectly

compete with us or companies in which they currently invest may begin competing with us As result

of these relationships when conflicts between the interests of Tontine and the interests of our other

stockholders arise the Tontine-designated directors may have conflicts of interest Although our

directors and officers will have duty of loyalty to us under Delaware law and our certificate of

incorporation transactions that we enter into in which director or officer has conflict of interest are

generally permissible if done in compliance with Delaware law The actions of Tontine may have the

effect of influencing changes in control or changes in management or limiting the ability of our other

stockholders to approve transactions that they may deem to be in their best interest

As stated above Tontine in Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on November 10 2008 stated its

intention to explore alternatives for the disposition of its equity interest in the Company We have

granted Tontine registration rights with
respect to the Broadwind common stock it holds Sales of

substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market or the perception that these sales may
occur could affect the management of our company and could cause the market price of our common
stock to decline

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
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ITEM PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters is located in Naperville Illinois which is suburb located west of

Chicago Illinois In addition our subsidiaries own or lease operating facilities which are presented by

operating segment as follows

Operating Segment and Owned Approximate

Facility 1pe Location Leased Square Footage

Products

Tower Manufacturing Manitowoc WI Leased 200000

Tower Manufacturing Brandon SD1 Owned 146000

Tower Manufacturing Abilene TX Owned 146000

Specialized Welding Manitowoc WI Leased 45000

Specialized Welding Clintonville WI Owned 63000

Gearing Systems Cicero IL Owned 198000

Gearing Systems Cicero IL Leased 301000

Gearing Systems Neville Island PA Owned 70000

Services

Service and Maintenance Gary SD Leased 25000

Service and Maintenance Abilene TX Leased 297000

Service and Maintenance Howard SD Owned 25000

Heavy Haul Trucking Clintonville WI Leased 7000

Service and Maintenance Tehachapi CA Leased 5000

Corporate

Administrative Naperville IL Leased 6800

Brandon South Dakota location is partially constructed wind tower manufacturing facility

We consider that our facilities are in good condition and are adequate for our present
and future

needs

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we anticipate that Broadwind or its subsidiaries may be involved in litigation

relating to claims arising out of its operations in the normal course of business As of December 31

2008 we are not aware of material pending legal proceedings or threatened litigation that would have

material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations although no assurance can

be given with respect to the ultimate outcome of actions

In September 2007 Tower Tech received notice of violation from the Wisconsin Department of

Natural Resources WDNR stating that Tower Tech was in violation of several provisions of the

states air pollution laws and regulations in connection with the construction and operation of two new

paint booths at its Manitowoc Wisconsin facility Tower Tech has entered into negotiations with the

WDNR and currently the WDNR is seeking only monetary penalties and no other relief

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of 2008
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUIT RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND IS SUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is currently listed on the OTC Bulletin Board electronic quotation system

OTCBB under the symbol BWEN The Company changed its name from Tower Tech

Holdings Inc to Broadwind Energy Inc on February 28 2008 On March 2008 and in connection

with the name change shares of the Companys common stock which had previously traded under the

ticker symbol TWRI began trading under the ticker symbol BWEN
The following table sets forth the range of high and low bid quotations for each quarter

within the

last two fiscal years as reported by the OTCBB These quotations reflect inter-dealer prices without

retail mark-up mark-down or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual sale prices

Bid Prices

Common Stock

High Low

2008

First quarter $14.45 $8.45

Second quarter
29.00 8.40

Third quarter
22.00 8.41

Fourth quarter
14.40 4.25

High Low

2007

First quarter
4.20 $1.76

Second quarter
4.70 3.27

Third quarter
5.51 4.15

Fourth quarter
14.50 5.22

The published high and low bid quotations of our common stock as reported on the OTCBB on

March 11 2009 were $3.25 and $3.00 per share respectively As of March 2009 there were 67

holders of record of our common stock

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and have no current plan to do so in the

foreseeable future The declaration and payment of dividends on our common stock are subject to the

discretion of our Board of Directors and are further limited by our existing credit agreements as

described in Part II Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations of this Annual Report on Form 10-K Specifically certain of these credit agreements

restrict the ability of the Companys subsidiaries which are the borrowers under such credit

agreements to distribute funds to Broadwind that might otherwise be used to pay dividends The

decision of our Board of Directors to pay future dividends will depend on general business conditions

the effect of dividend payment on our financial condition and other factors the Board of Directors

may consider relevant The current policy of our Board of Directors is to reinvest earnings in our

operations to promote future growth and to fund potential acquisitions

Repurchases

We did not engage in any repurchases of our common stock during the fourth quarter of 2008
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Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

All unregistered sales of equity securities during the fourth quarter or year
ended December 31

2008 have been previously disclosed on Form 8-K

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

See Part III Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and

Related Stockholder Matters of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for information as of December 31

2008 with respect to shares of our common stock that may be issued under our existing share-based

compensation plans

ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected historical consolidated financial and other data are presented starting in

2006 when we acquired Tower Tech and
present

financial data for the year
ended December 31 2006

The following selected historical consolidated financial and other data are qualified in their entirety by

reference to and should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the

related notes thereto appearing elsewhere herein and Part II Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Our selected statement of operations and

statement of cash flows data set forth below for each of the three
years

ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 and the balance sheet data as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 are derived from

our consolidated financial statements

In thousands except per share data

For the Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Selected Statement of Operations Data

Revenues $217321 $29804 4023

Cost of sales 183951 25865 4822

Gross margin deficit 33370 3939 799

Gross margin deficit percentage
15.4% 13.2% 19.9%

Selling general and administrative expenses 41545 5724 1501

Goodwill impairment1 2409

Intangible amortization 11159 1750 21

Operating loss 21743 3535 2321

Operating loss margin percentage 10.0% 11.9% 57.7%

Total other expense net 2480 866 414
Provision benefit for income taxes 1062 1039

Net loss 25285 3362 2735

Net loss per sharebasic and diluted 0.28 0.07 0.08

Weighted average shares outstandingbasic and diluted 89899 51535 33772
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As of December 31

2008 2007 2006

Selected Balance Sheet Data

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $15253 5782 125

Accounts receivable net 36709 13541 161

Inventory 41895 12983 288

Total current assets 98219 34752 588

Property and equipment net 144707 58890 2799
Goodwill and intangibles net 136547 111633

Total assets 379748 205818 3895

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 50611 22593 3149
Total current liabilities 85742 62449 8402
Total long-term debt net of current maturities 25792 17620 807

Total liabilities 117592 81282 9209

Working capital deficit $12477 27697 $7814

Total stockholders equity deficit $262156 $124536 $5314

For the Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Selected Statement of Cash Flows Data

Net cash used in provided by operating activities 2359 521 711
Net cash used in investing activities 106696 82828 408
Net cash provided by financing activities 118526 87964 1078
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 117389 65400

Capital expenditures 83720 5854 408

Cash paid for acquisitions net of acquired cash 23016 76474

2008 2007 2006

Selected Other DataNon GAAP Financial Measures

EBITDAS2 $4327 $103 $1643
EBITDAS margin percentage3 2.0% 0.3% 40.8%

During the year ended December 31 2008 we recorded goodwill impairment charge of $2409
related to our Products segment See Note 10 Goodwill and Intangible Assets of the notes to

our financial statements for further discussion of the impairment
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For any period earnings before interest taxes depreciation amortization and share-based

compensation EBITDAS are calculated as presented below Additionally the calculation of

EBITDAS excludes the effect of any goodwill
and intangible impairment charges

For the Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Net loss $25285 $3362 $2735
Provision benefit for income taxes 1062 1039
Interest income 584 400
Interest expense 2860 1239 411

Goodwill impairment 2409

Depreciation and amortization 21866 3523 328

Share-based compensation 1999 142 353

EBITDAS 4327 103 $1643

EBITDAS margin percentage equals
EBITDAS divided by total revenue We believe that

EBITDAS is particularly meaningful due principally to the role acquisitions have played in our

development Historically our growth through acquisitions has resulted in significant non-cash

depreciation
and amortization expense because significant portion of the purchase price of our

acquired businesses is generally allocated to depreciable fixed assets and long-lived assets which

primarily consists of goodwill and amortizable intangible assets Please note that neither EBITDAS

nor EBITDAS margin percentage should be considered alternatives to nor is there any implication

that they are more meaningful than any measure of performance or liquidity promulgated under

accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The discussion below contains forward-looking statements as defined in Section 21E of the

Exchange Act that reflect our current expectations regarding our future growth results of operations cash

flows performance and business prospects and opportunities as well as assumptions made by and

information currently available to our management We have tried to identify forward-looking statements by

using words such as anticipate believe plan expect intend will and similar expressions but

these words are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements These statements are

based on information currently available to us and are subject to various risks uncertainties and other

factors including but not limited to those matters discussed in Item 1A Risk Factors in Part of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K that could cause our actual growth results of operations cash flows

performance and business prospects and opportunities to differ materially from those expressed in or

implied by these statements Except as expressly required by the federal securities laws we undertake no

obligation to update such factors or to publicly announce the results of any of the forward-looking

statements contained herein to reflect future events developments or changed circumstances or for any
other reason

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K the terms we us our Broadwind and the

Company refer to Broadwind Energy Inc and our wholly-owned subsidiaries

Dollars are presented in thousands unless otherwise stated

INTRODUCTION

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsMDA is intended to assist the reader in better understanding our business results of operations

financial condition changes in financial condition critical accounting policies and estimates and

significant developments MDA is provided as supplement to and should be read in conjunction

with our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes thereto appearing elsewhere

herein This section is organized as follows

Our Businessan overview of our business discussion of current business and industry

opportunities challenges and risks and discussion of significant developments affecting our

business

Resulls of Operationsan analysis and comparison of our consolidated results of operations for

the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 as reflected in our consolidated statements

of operations

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimatesa discussion of accounting policies and

estimates that we believe require managements most subjective or complex judgments

Liquidity Financial Position and Capital Resourcesa discussion of our primary sources and uses

of cash for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 discussion of selected changes in our

financial position and summary of our future contractual obligations

OUR BUSINESS

Overview

We are supplier of value-added products and services to the North American wind energy sector

as well as other energy-related industries We provide our customers such as leading wind turbine

manufacturers and developers wind farm operators and service companies with broad range of

component and service offerings Since 2006 we have made significant investments in the growth of our

platform through series of acquisitions In doing so we have developed broad U.S.-based supply
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chain for wind energy development in North America Our five businesses are currently organized in

two operating segments Products and Services

Products

The Products segment includes three subsidiaries that manufacture and sell products such as high

precision gears for wind turbines custom-engineered gearing systems for the mining energy and

industrial sectors structural wind towers internal tower components and large fabricated and

machined components e.g crane parts and dipper buckets Specific services provided include key

technology areas such as grinding and finishing of gears
and gear sets steel plate processing heavy

welding and custom corrosion protection of components Our primary focus is on the wind energy

industry however our Products segment also services mining construction oil and gas and other

industrial energy applications

The Products segment has undergone significant expansion in the last two years and reflects the

operations of Tower Tech RBA and Brad Foote As of December 31 2008 the segment had

approximately 800 employees and operated in Wisconsin Texas Illinois and Pennsylvania

Services

The Services segment was established upon our acquisition of EMS in January 2008 and expanded

with our acquisition of Badger in June 2008 This segment specializes in construction operations and

maintenance and component repair services for the wind industry as well as specialized heavy haul

trucking services to installation sites Services provided include construction and technical support in

the erection of wind turbine generators scheduled and un-scheduled maintenance fiberglass

inspections general repair and training and the transportation of oversize/overweight equipment and

machinery

As of December 31 2008 the segment had approximately 300 employees Currently the Services

segment has service hub locations in South Dakota Texas and Wisconsin and satellite field service

centers in California and Illinois

See Note 21 Segment Reporting of the notes to our consolidated financial statements for further

discussion

Summary of 2008

Below is summary of some of the key events and trends from 2008

We established our Services segment through the acquisition of EMS which was completed in

January 2008 and Badger which was completed in June 2008 The acquisition of EMS enabled

the Company to provide construction operations and maintenance and component repair

services for the wind industry and the acquisition of Badger enabled the Company to provide

transportation and logistical services for the delivery of wind turbines towers blades and other

oversized equipment for large industrial applications
These acquisitions support our

development of broad U.S.-based supply chain for wind energy development in North

America

The Company made significant capital expenditures in its existing and newly acquired

subsidiaries during the year ended December 31 2008 in the aggregate amount of $83720

These capital expenditures primarily consisted of the construction of Tower Techs tower

manufacturing facility in Abilene Texas and the partial construction of its tower manufacturing

facility in Brandon South Dakota as well as the build-out of additional facility capacity and

gearing equipment expenditures at our Brad Foote subsidiary In addition the Company invested

in new trailer and escort vehicles at its Badger subsidiary and expenditures at its EMS subsidiary
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related to purchases of equipment and service vehicles purchase of previously leased facility

and construction of new servicing facility

The Company appointed new senior management to existing positions and created new

leadership positions including Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer Senior Vice

President Human Resources General Counsel Controller and Director of Compliance as well

as corporate-level operations oversight positions at our subsidiary companies

We committed significant resources during 2008 to enhance the control environment within the

Company An assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys internal controls as of the end

of the 2008 fiscal
year

is included in Item 9A Controls and Procedures of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

significant portion of the cash used to fund the Companys acquisitions working capital needs

and operations described above was received through financing provided by Tontine parties

pursuant to Securities Purchase Agreements entered into between the Company and certain

Tontine parties in January 2008 and April 2008 Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreements
the Tontine parties purchased an aggregate of 14594064 unregistered shares of our common
stock in private placements for an aggregate purchase price of $117225 Also in April 2008
certain Tontine parties converted the original notional amount of their respective 9.5% related

party notes for an aggregate of 3333332 in shares of the Companys unregistered common
stock In connection with the conversion accrued interest of $1223 on the notes was paid by the

Company to such Tontine parties On November 10 2008 Tontine filed Schedule 13D with the

SEC in which it announced its intention to explore alternatives for the disposition its equity

interest in the Company Tontine has previously been the primary source of capital for

acquisitions and expansion projects for the Company and there can be no assurance the

Company will be successful in securing replacement source of equity capital to continue our

growth and acquisition plans

Our operating results and business strategy particularly in the fourth quarter of 2008 were

affected by the downturn in the economy and the effects of the disruptions in the global credit

markets and financial systems and the corresponding effect on the wind industry and global

heavy manufacturing industry These conditions limited our ability to further expand upon our

growth and operating strategy and restricted our ability to raise additional financing for our

operations In light of these challenges we changed our immediate business and operating focus

from rapidly growing the Company through strategic acquisitions and increased capital

expenditures to concentrating on achieving operational excellence within our existing businesses

evaluating and restructuring our financing arrangements and focusing our efforts on maintaining

adequate levels of liquidity and working capital

Revenues during the year ended December 31 2008 were $217321 an increase of $187517

compared to revenues of $29804 during the year ended December 31 2007 The increase in revenues

was primarily attributable to full year operating results and incremental growth at Brad Foote
increased wind tower revenues at Tower Tech and the incremental revenues resulting from our

acquisitions of EMS and Badger during 2008

Gross margin increased $29431 from $3939 or 13.2% of revenue during the year ended

December 31 2007 to $33370 or 15.4% of revenue during the year ended December 31 2008 The

increase in gross margin and gross margin percentage was primarily the result of an overall increase in

revenues in our operating segments and attributable to the inclusion of
gross margin contributed by our

newly-created Services segment in 2008

Operating loss increased from $3535 during the
year

ended December 31 2007 to $21743 during

the year ended December 31 2008 primarily as result of an increase in amortization expense full
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year selling general and administrative expenses at Brad Foote and an increase in corporate general

and administrative expenses

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31 2008 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2007

The summary of selected financial data table below should be referenced in connection with

review of the following discussion of our results of operations for the year ended December 31 2008

compared to the year
ended December 31 2007

For the Year Ended December 31

of Total of Total
2008 vs 2007

2008 Revenue 2007 Revenue Change Change

Revenues $217321 100.0% $29804 100.0% $187517 629.2%

Cost of sales 183951 84.6% 25865 86.8% 158086 611.2%

Gross margin 33370 15.4% 3939 13.2% 29431 747.2%

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative

expenses 41545 19.1% 5724 19.2% 35821 625.8%

Goodwill impairment 2409 1.1% 0.0% 2409 100.0%

Intangible amortization 11159 5.2% 1750 5.9% 9409 537.7%

Total operating expenses 55113 25.4% 7474 25.1% 47639 637.4%

Operating loss 21743 10.0% 3535 11.9% 18208 515.1%

Other income expense

Interest income 584 0.3% 400 1.3% 184 46.0%

Interest expense 2860 1.3% 1239 4.1% 1621 130.8%

Other net 204 0.1% 27 0.1% 177 655.6%

Other expense net 2480 1.1% 866 2.9% 1614 186.4%

Net loss before provision
for income

taxes 24223 11.1% 4401 14.8% 19822 450.4%

Provision benefit for income taxes 1062 0.5% 1039 3.5% 2101 202.2%

Net loss $25285 11.6% $3362 11.3% $21923 652.1%
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The following table presents our results of operations by reportable segment for the year ended

December 31 2008 as follows

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

Corporate

Products1 Services1 and Other2 Total

Revenues $177114 $41502 1295 $217321

Cost of sales 153782 30622 453 183951

Gross margin deficit 23332 10880 842 33370

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses 14369 10507 16669 41545

Goodwill impairment 2409 2409

Intangible amortization 8184 2975 11159

Total operating expenses 24962 13482 16669 55113

Operating income loss 1630 2602 17511 21743

Other expense income net 4181 670 2371 2480

Net loss before provision for income taxes 5811 3272 15140 24223
Provision benefit for income taxes 1932 74 796 1062

Net loss 7743 3198 $14344 25285

The Companys reportable segments have been revised as compared to the reportable segments

filed in our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-KSB to reflect changes in the management reporting

structure of the organization as result of the acquisitions completed during 2008 The revised

operating structure includes two reportable segments Products formerly included in the

Towers and Fabrication and Gearing Systems segments and Services Services is new

operating segment to account for our acquisitions during 2008 of EMS and Badger which provide

construction support and maintenance and heavy-haul trucking services respectively

Corporate and Other includes corporate administrative expenses and intercompany eliminations

Corporate selling general and administrative expenses includes corporate salaries and benefits

share-based compensation and professional fees

Revenues

Revenues increased $187517 from $29804 during the year ended December 31 2007 compared to

revenues of $217321 during the year ended December 31 2008 The increase in revenues is primarily

attributable to full year operating results at Brad Foote as well as incremental Brad Foote gear

production volume growth during the fourth quarter of 2008 versus the fourth quarter of 2007 Tower

Tech experienced an increase in wind tower revenues due to volume increases and the inclusion of

materials in the selling price of wind towers during the second half of 2008 as part of providing

continued value-added services for customers prior to which Tower Tech had substantively provided

only labor and facility services to manufacture wind towers In addition revenues increased due to our

acquisitions of EMS and Badger in January 2008 and June 2008 respectively

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased $158086 from $25865 during the year ended December 31 2007 compared
to cost of sales of $183951 during the year ended December 31 2008 The increase in cost of sales is

primarily attributable to full year operating results at Brad Foote higher cost of sales at Tower Tech

related to volume increases and the inclusion of materials in the cost of wind towers during the second
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half of 2008 The company also incurred significant start-up overhead costs during the fourth quarter of

2008 associated with the hiring and training of employees and facility commissioning of the Abilene

Texas wind tower manufacturing location In addition cost of sales increased due to the cost of sales

associated with our acquisitions of EMS and Badger in January 2008 and June 2008 respectively

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses increased from $5724 during the year
ended

December 31 2007 to $41545 during the year ended December 31 2008 The increase in selling

general
and administrative expenses in primarily attributable to an increase in corporate salary and

benefits professional fees to assist with the administrative functions and reporting associated with being

public company and share based compensation as compared to the previous year The Company

incurred significant administrative and third party support and consulting costs during 2008 to integrate

the four acquisitions completed between October 2007 and June 2008 These acquisitions were

previously privately-held businesses and required substantial expense during the year to integrate them

into publicly-held company and meet the respective public company reporting requirements Tower

Tech incurred an increase in selling general and administrative expenses as result of start-up costs

relating to new wind tower manufacturing facilities being constructed in 2008 Additionally selling

general and administrative expenses increased due to full year administrative expenses at Brad Foote

and administrative expenses as result of our acquisitions
of EMS and Badger during 2008

Goodwill Impairment

During 2008 the Company recorded goodwill impairment charge of $2409 to our Products

segment During the fourth quarter of 2008 we performed our annual impairment test our analysis

indicated that the goodwill attributable to our RBA subsidiary was impaired as result of projected

discounted cash flows from RBAs results of operations did not exceed the carrying value of its net

assets

Intangible Amortization

Intangible amortization increased from $1750 during the year ended December 31 2007 to

$11159 during the year
ended December 31 2008 The increase in intangible amortization is primarily

attributable to higher amortization expense of customer relationship intangibles as result of our

acquisitions of Brad Foote and EMS

Other Expense net

Other expense net increased from $866 during the year ended December 31 2007 to $2480

during the year
ended December 31 2008 The increase in other expense net is primarily due to

higher interest expense on outstanding debt at Brad Foote and interest expense incurred during the

first quarter of 2008 with respect to related party
note payable

Provision for Income Taxes

The Company recorded provision for income taxes of $1062 during the year
ended

December 31 2008 as compared to benefit for income taxes of $1039 during the year
ended

December 31 2007 The increase in income tax expense is primarily attributable to higher state income

taxes and temporary timing differences related to our indefinite-lived intangibles

Net Loss

Net loss for the
year

ended December 31 2008 was $25285 an increase of $21923 compared to

net loss of $3362 during the year ended December 31 2007 as result of the factors as described

above

29



Year Ended December 31 2007 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2006

The summary of selected financial data table below should be referenced in connection with

review of the
following discussion of our results of operations for the year ended December 31 2007

compared to the year ended December 31 2006

For the Year Ended December 31

%of %of
Total Total

vs

2007 Revenue 2006 Revenue Change Change

Revenues $29804 100.0% 4023 100.0% $25781 640.8%

Cost of sales 25865 86.8% 4822 119.9% 21043 436.4%

Gross margin deficit 3939 13.2% 799 19.9% 4738 593.0%

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative

expenses 5724 19.2% 1501 37.3% 4223 281.3%

Intangible amortization 1750 5.9% 21 0.5% 1729 8233.3%

Total-operating expenses 7474 25.1% 1522 37.8% 5952 391.1%

Operating loss 3535 11.9% 2321 57.7% 1214 52.3%

Other income expense
Interest income 400 1.3% 0.0% 400 100.0%

Interest expense 1239 4.1% 411 10.2% 828 201.5%

Other net 27 0.1% 0.1% 24 800.0%

Other expense net 866 2.9% 414 10.3% 452 109.2%

Net loss before benefit for income taxes 4401 14.8% 2735 68.0% 1666 60.9%

Benefit for income taxes 1039 3.5% 0.0% 1039 100.0%

Net loss $3362 11.3% $2735 68.0% 627 22.9%
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The following table presents our results of operations by reportable segment for the year ended

December 31 2007 as follows

For the Year Ended December 31 2007

Corporate

Products1 Services1 and Other2 Total

Revenues $29804 $29804

Cost of sales 25865 25865

Gross margin 3939 3939

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses 5406 318 5724

Intangible amortization 1750 1750

Total operating expenses 7156 318 7474

Operating loss 3217 318 3535

Other expense net 378 488 866

Net loss before provision for income taxes 3595 806 4401
Provision benefit for income taxes 103 1142 1039

Net loss 3698 336 3362

During 2008 management changed the Companys reportable segments as compared to the

reportable segments filed in our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-KSB to reflect changes in the

management reporting structure of the organization as result of the acquisitions completed

during 2008 The revised operating structure includes two reportable segments Products

formerly included in the Towers and Fabrication and Gearing Systems segments and

Services Services is new operating segment to account for our acquisitions during 2008 of

EMS and Badger which provide construction support and maintenance and heavy haul trucking

services respectively

Corporate and Other includes corporate administrative expenses and intercompany eliminations

Corporate selling general and administrative expenses includes corporate salaries and benefits

share-based compensation and professional fees

Revenues

Revenues increased $25781 or 641% from $4023 during the year ended December 31 2006

compared to revenues of $29804 during the year ended December 31 2007 The increase in revenues

is primarily attributable to our acquisition of Brad Foote in October 2007 along with an increase in

revenues at Tower Tech resulting from higher production volumes during 2007

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased $21043 or 436% from $4822 during the year ended December 31 2006

to $25865 during the year ended December 31 2007 The increase in cost of sales is primarily

attributable to our acquisition of Brad Foote along with the increase in cost of sales at Tower Tech as

result of higher production volumes during 2007

Selling General and Administrative Expense

Selling general and administrative expense increased $4223 or 281% from $1501 during the year

ended December 31 2006 to $5724 during the year ended December 31 2007 primarily as result of
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the inclusion of selling general and administrative expenses associated with the acquisition of Brad

Foote in October 2007 an increase in legal and accounting expenses related to the costs associated

with being public company and higher payroll and benefits expenses due to the addition of senior

management and the hiring of administrative employees during 2007 As percentage of revenues

selling general and administrative expense decreased from 37.3% during the
year ended December 31

2006 compared to 19.2% during the year ended December 31 2007

Intangible Amortization

Intangible amortization increased from $21 during the
year

ended December 31 2006 to $1750

during the year ended December 31 2007 primarily as result of intangible amortization as result of

our acquisitions of RBA and Brad Foote in October 2007

Other Expense net

The increase in other expense net is primarily attributable to interest expense due to the increase

in notes payable capital leases and other debt primarily related to the Brad Foote acquisition in 2007

Benefit for Income Taxes

During the year ended December 31 2007 the Company recorded an income tax benefit of $1039

compared to zero for the year ended December 31 2006 The income tax benefit was primarily

attributable to an increase in federal and state deferred tax assets associated with the acquisition of

RBA in October 2007 Our consolidated effective income tax rate was 23.6% for the year ended

December 31 2007 as compared to 0.0% for the comparable prior-year period

Net Loss

Net loss for the year ended December 31 2007 was $3362 an increase of $627 or 23% compared

to net loss of $2735 during the year ended December 31 2006 as result of the factors described

above

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The methods estimates and judgments that we use in applying our critical accounting policies have

significant impact on the results that we report in our financial statements Some of our accounting

policies require us to make difficult and subjective judgments often as result of the need to make

estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain We also have other policies that we consider

key accounting policies such as those for revenue recognition including the deferral of revenue on

sales to distributors however these policies typically do not require us to make estimates or judgments

that are difficult or subjective

We have identified the accounting policies and estimates listed below as those that we believe

require managements most subjective and complex judgments in estimating the effect of inherent

uncertainties This section should also be read in conjunction with Note Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies of the notes to our consolidated financial statements which includes discussion

of these and other significant accounting policies

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when the earnings process
is complete and when persuasive evidence of an

arrangement exists transfer of title has occurred or services have been rendered the selling price is

fixed or determinable collectability is reasonably assured and delivery has occurred per the tenns of
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the contract Customer deposits and other receipts are deferred and recognized when the revenue is

realized and earned

In some instances products are sold under terms included in bill and hold sales arrangements that

result in different timing for revenue recognition Assuming all other revenue criteria are met revenue

is recognized upon completion of product manufacture and customer acceptance certificate The

Company has reviewed SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No 104 SAB 104 and concludes that its

revenue recognition policy to be in compliance with SAB 104

Warranty Liability

Within our Products segment we provide warranty terms that
generally range from two to seven

years for various products relating to workmanship and materials
supplied by the Company From time

to time customers may submit warranty claims against the Company In certain contracts we have

recourse provisions for items that would enable
recovery from third parties for amounts paid to

customers under warranty provisions As of December 31 2008 and 2007 our estimated product

warranty liability was $890 and $242 respectively and is recorded within accrued liabilities in our

consolidated balance sheets

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Any excess of cost over market value is

included in the Companys inventory allowance Market value of inventory and managements
judgment of the need for reserves encompasses consideration of other business factors including

physical condition inventory holding period contract terms and usefulness Inventories are valued

based on an average cost method that approximates the first-in first-out FIFO basis

Inventories consist of raw materials work-in-process and finished goods Raw materials consist of

components and parts for general production use Work-in-process consists of labor and overhead

processing costs purchased subcomponents and materials purchased for specific customer orders

Finished goods consist of components purchased from third parties as well as components
manufactured by the Company that will be used to produce final customer products

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair market value of identifiable net assets acquired

through business purchases In accordance with SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

SFAS 142 we perform our annual goodwill impairment test during the fourth
quarter of each year

or more frequently when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the Companys
assets may not be recovered The Company tests intangible assets for impairment when events or

circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the Companys assets may not be recovered In

evaluating the recoverability of the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets we must

make assumptions regarding the fair value of our reporting units as defined under SFAS 142 Our
method of determining the fair value was based upon our estimate of the projected future discounted

cash flows of our reporting units

We perform our annual impairment test of goodwill as of October 31 of each year Based upon
our results we determined that there was impairment to goodwill at our RBA subsidiary Our goodwill

impairment results indicated that projected future discounted cash flows related to RBAs results of

operations were less than the carrying value of RBAs net assets As result we recorded goodwill

impairment charge of $2409 during the fourth quarter to our Products segment

If our fair value estimates or related assumptions change in the future we may be required to

record additional impairment charges related to goodwill and intangible assets
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Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

SFAS 144 we review property and equipment and other long-lived assets for impairment whenever

events or circumstances indicate that carrying amounts may not be recoverable If such events or

changes in circumstances occur we will recognize an impairment loss if the undiscounted future cash

flows expected to be generated by the asset are less than the carrying value of the related asset The

impairment loss would adjust the asset to its fair value

In evaluating the recoverability of long-lived assets we must make assumptions regarding estimated

future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of such assets If our fair value estimates

or related assumptions change in the future we may be required to record impairment charges related

to property and equipment and long-lived assets

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes

SFAS 109 SFAS 109 requires the recognition of deferred income tax assets and liabilities based

upon the income tax consequences of temporary differences between financial reporting and income tax

reporting by applying enacted statutory income tax rates applicable to future years to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities

SFAS 109 also requires that deferred income tax assets be reduced by valuation allowance if it is

more likely than not that some portion of the deferred income tax asset will not be realized

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements we are required to

estimate our income tax liability for each of the tax jurisdictions
in which we operate This

process

involves estimating our actual current income tax expense and assessing temporary differences resulting

from differing treatment of certain income or expense items for income tax reporting and financial

reporting purposes We also recognize as deferred income tax assets the expected future income tax

benefits of net operating loss carry forwards In evaluating the realizability of deferred income tax

assets associated with net operating loss
carry forwards we consider among other things expected

future taxable income the expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary reporting differences

and the expected impact of tax planning strategies that may be implemented to prevent the potential

loss of future income tax benefits Changes in among other things income tax legislation statutory

income tax rates or future taxable income levels could materially impact our valuation of income tax

assets and liabilities and could cause our income tax provision to vary significantly among financial

reporting periods

On January 2007 we adopted the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes FIN 48 which is an

interpretation of SFAS 109 FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized

in an entitys financial statements in accordance with SFAS 109 and prescribes recognition threshold

and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax position

taken or expected to be taken in an income tax return FIN 48 also provides guidance on

derecognition classification interest and penalties accounting in interim periods disclosure and

transition The initial application of FIN 48 to our tax positions had no effect on our results of

operations or our stockholders equity
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The following is summary of recent accounting pronouncements including the expected dates of

adoption and estimated effects if any on our consolidated financial statements

SFAS 141R

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 141R

Business Combinations SFAS 141R which establishes principles and requirements for how the

acquirer of business recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets

acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree SFAS 141R also

provides guidance for recognizing and measuring the goodwill acquired in the business combination and

determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the

nature and financial effects of the business combination SFAS 141R is effective for fiscal years

beginning after December 15 2008 Early adoption is not permitted SFAS 141R is to be applied

prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the first reporting

period beginning on or after December 15 2008 The adoption of this standard is not anticipated to

have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

SFAS 157-2

In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No 157-2 FSP 157-2 which delayed

the effective date by which companies must adopt certain provisions of Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 FSP 157-2 defers the effective

date of SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities except for items that are

recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis to fiscal years

beginning after November 15 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years The adoption of this

standard is not anticipated to have material impact on our financial position results of operations or

cash flows

SFAS 161

In March 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 161 Disclosures

about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities SFAS 161 This statement is intended to enhance

required disclosures regarding derivatives and hedging activities including enhanced disclosures

regarding how an entity uses derivative instruments derivative instruments and related hedged

items are accounted for under FASB Statement No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities and derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entitys financial

position financial performance and cash flows SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim

periods beginning after November 15 2008 We are currently evaluating the effect of adoption of

SFAS 161 but do not presently believe that it will have material effect on our consolidated financial

position or results of operations

SFAS 162

In May 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 162 The

Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Princples SFAS 162 SFAS 162 identifies the sources of

accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial

statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles in the United States We do not expect any significant changes to our financial

accounting and reporting as result of the issuance of SFAS 162

35



LIQUIDITY FINANCIAL POSITION AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31 2008 cash and cash equivalents totaled $15253 Our cash flows from

operations
and financing activities have been adequate to fulfill our liquidity requirements We finance

acquisitions primarily through funding from equity offerings and cash generated from operations We

anticipate that we will be able to satisfy the cash requirements associated with among other things our

working capital needs capital expenditures debt and lease commitments through at least the next

12 months primarily with cash generated by operations
and existing cash balances We expect to

improve upon our liquidity and financial position
based on the following

Due to the current economic downturn and continued negative effects of the global credit

markets the Company has also encountered challenging environment for amending its existing

debt and credit facilities or entering into new facilities However the Company was able to

amend and extend its debt agreements with the primary lenders for Brad Foote and Tower Tech

as of March 13 2009 as further described in the respective Brad Foote and Tower Tech credit

facilities discussions below Brad Foote and Tower Tech are also subject to certain covenants

within the agreements and while there can be no certainty that we will be able to meet our

obligations under these covenants we expect
that they will be met during 2009 The Company

plans to continue efforts to restructure its debt obligations and capital expenditure commitments

to ensure that the Company has adequate liquidity and the financial resources to fund working

capital requirements capital expenditures and business acquisitions As previously disclosed

during the third quarter of 2008 the Company also announced the hiring of Morgan

Stanley Co Incorporated to advise the Company on certain acquisition growth and financing

opportunities as well as advise the Company on issues related to the Schedule 13D filing by

Tontine and Tontines intent to explore alternatives for the disposition of its ownership position

in Broadwind

The Company experienced significant one-time corporate and operating cash outflows as result

of integrating four acquisitions during 2008 We expect to see significant reduction in these

types
of cash outflows during 2009

The Company made capital investments of $83720 during 2008 These investments resulted in

significant capacity expansion across all business lines These major investments in 2008 serve to

reduce our expected capital expenditure needs during 2009

Additionally we are currently in the process of attempting to restructure our existing financing

obligations and capital expenditure commitments to provide the Company with additional liquidity and

capital resources Due to the current economic downturn and continued negative effects of the global

credit markets the Company has encountered challenging environment for amending its existing debt

and credit facilities or entering into new facilities However the Company was successful as of

March 13 2009 in amending its debt agreements with the primary lenders for Brad Foote and Tower

Tech respectively as discussed below The Company plans to continue its efforts to restructure its debt

obligations and capital expenditure commitments to ensure that the Company has adequate liquidity

and the financial resources to fund working capital requirements capital expenditures and business

acquisitions

Sources and Uses of Cash

Operating Cash Flows

During the year ended December 31 2008 net cash flows used in operating
activities totaled

$2359 compared to net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31 2007

which totaled $521 The decrease in net cash provided by operating activities as compared to the prior

year was attributable to an increase in administrative expenses and increases in our accounts receivable
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and inventory balances as we ramped-up production and expanded our facilities and revenues During

the fourth quarter of 2008 we recorded non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $2409 During the

year
ended December 31 2008 depreciation and amortization expense increased approximately

$18343 from $3523 during the year ended December 31 2007 to $21866 during the year ended

December 31 2008 The overall increase in depreciation and amortization was primarily due to an

increase in equipment depreciation expense and an increase in customer relationships intangible

amortization as result of our acquisitions of Brad Foote and RBA in October 2007 and the

acquisition of EMS in January 2008 The Company also entered into an agreement with customer in

December 2008 to release $9436 from restricted cash down-payment on an order The cash was

being held under letter of credit The release of these funds provided liquidity for working capital

and capital expenditure commitments The details of this agreement are described further in Note to

our consolidated financial statements

While our agreements with customers call for specified payments terms the effects of the global

economic crisis may result in our customers modifying or attempting to modify their payment terms

which could adversely affect our liquidity position during 2009 Although we anticipate that we will be

able to satisfy cash requirements for working capital needs capital expenditures and commitments

through at least 2009 primarily with cash generated by our operations and existing cash balances the

Company will need to restructure its existing debt and credit agreements or seek additional sources of

capital to fund capital commitments business acquisitions and working capital requirements in future

years

Investing Cash Flows

During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 net cash flows used in investing activities

totaled $106696 and $82828 respectively The increase in net cash used in investing activities as

compared to the prior year was primarily attributable to the increase of $77866 in capital expenditures

which primarily related to the construction of wind tower manufacturing facility in Abilene Texas and

the partial construction of wind tower manufacturing facility in Brandon South Dakota at our

Tower Tech subsidiary and the expansion of capacity through equipment additions at Brad Foote

Cash paid for acquisitions net of cash received decreased from $76474 during the year ended

December 31 2007 to $23016 during the
year

ended December 31 2008 The decrease is primarily

attributable to smaller acquisitions completed during 2008 as compared to 2007 In January 2008 the

Company acquired EMS for $32250 exclusive of $536 in acquisition-related costs The purchase price

consisted of $18429 in cash and 1629834 in unregistered shares of the Companys common stock at

price per share of $8.48 In June 2008 the Company acquired Badger for $11811 exclusive of $184 in

acquisition-related costs The purchase price consisted of $5811 in cash and 581959 in unregistered

shares of the Companys common stock at price per share of $10.31

The Company has firm capital commitments that come due in 2009 which approximate $12711

and additional discretionary capital investment estimates that approximate $18000 As of February 28

2009 $6000 of the firm commitments have been funded and fulfilled We plan to fund the firm

commitments through operating cash and lease financing The discretionary investments are not

required to meet our current obligations to customers or to meet known regulatory requirements

Financing Cash Flows

During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 net cash flows provided by financing

activities totaled $118526 and $87964 respectively The increase in net cash flows provided by

financing activities was primarily attributable to approximately $117389 in private equity placements

completed during the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $65400 in private equity placements

completed during the year ended December 31 2007 To finance the purchase price of the EMS
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acquisition the Company completed private equity placement offering in January 2008 with TP and

T25 for an aggregate amount of $17225 or 2031250 shares of the Companys unregistered common

stock at price per share of $8.48 pursuant to previously disclosed Amended and Restated Securities

Purchase Agreement In addition the Company completed transactions resulting in the sale of an

aggregate of $100500 of its unregistered common stock of which $500 or 62814 shares was

purchased by Charles Beynon member of the Companys Board of Directors and an aggregate of

$100000 or 12562814 shares were purchased by TCF T1 T25 and TOE Thomas Weisel Partners

issued fairness opinion in connection with these transactions

Proceeds from lines of credit and notes payable decreased from $25283 during the year ended

December 31 2007 to $9273 during the
year

ended December 31 2008 primarily as result of

$25000 related
party note conversion by TF TOF and TME In April 2008 TR TOF and TMF each

converted the original notional amount of their respective 9.5% related
party note for an aggregate of

3333332 shares of the Companys unregistered common stock Accrued interest of $1223 on the notes

was paid by the Company to TF TOF and TMF in cash on the date of conversion

On November 10 2008 Tontine filed Schedule 13D with the SEC in which it announced its

intention to explore alternatives for the disposition of its equity interest in the Company Tontine has

previously been the primary source of capital for acquisitions and expansion projects for the Company
and there can be no assurance the Company will be successful in securing replacement source of

capital to continue its long-term growth plans

The Company has completed much of its current capacity and infrastructure expansion projects

and in light of current market conditions has turned its focus to optimizing current operations and

liquidity needs which is expected to result in improvements to operating cash flows While the

Company has also restructured some capital expenditure commitments with vendors we expect the

remaining capital expenditure commitments will be funded through operating cash lease financing and

additional debt

Credit Facilities

Brad Foote

In connection with our acquisition of Brad Foote in October 2007 the Company assumed

approximately $25500 of outstanding senior debt and available lines of credit including the following

loans that Brad Foote had obtained from BOA pursuant to Loan and Security Agreement dated as

of January 17 1997 as previously amended and/or stated the Loan Agreement $10000

$4000 at December 31 2008 revolving line of credit loan the Revolving Loan ii consolidated

term loan in the original principal sum of approximately $7900 the Term Loan iii an $11000

non-revolving equipment line of credit loan the Equipment Loan and iv $9000 non-revolving

equipment line of credit loan with term conversion feature the Equipment Loan No The

promissory notes evidencing the Revolving Loan the Term Loan The Equipment Loan and the

Equipment Loan No are referred to collectively below as the BOA Notes As described more fully

below 1309 South Cicero Avenue LLC Delaware limited liability company 1309 and 5100

Neville Road LLC Delaware limited liability company 5100 each wholly-owned subsidiary of

Brad Foote subsequently executed Term Note with BOA in the amount of $2075 dated January 31

2008 as previously amended and/or restated the Subsidiary Note

The Revolving Loan which was originally scheduled to mature on June 30 2008 had

approximately $5700 outstanding at closing of the Brad Foote acquisition with $4000 outstanding at

December 31 2008 The Revolving Loan was extended on September 29 2008 to maturity date of

January 15 2009 and further extended on January 16 2009 to maturity date of March 15 2009

Interest on the Revolving Loan is payable monthly The Term Loan which matures on January 31

2011 had approximately $5300 outstanding at closing of the Brad Foote acquisition with $3291
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outstanding at December 31 2008 and requires monthly principal and interest payments The monthly

amount of principal due on the Term Loan is $132 The Equipment Loan had approximately $10000

outstanding at closing of the Brad Foote acquisition with $7333 outstanding at December 31 2008

The Equipment Loan included an option to convert the obligation to term note on April 29 2007

This conversion was effected making the outstanding principal balance of the Equipment Loan payable

in monthly principal installments of $183 commencing on May 31 2007 maturing on April 30 2012

Interest accrues on the outstanding balance of the converted term loan The Equipment Loan No
which matures on June 30 2013 had approximately $4500 outstanding at closing of the Brad Foote

acquisition with $8138 outstanding at December 31 2008 The Equipment Loan No included an

option to convert the obligation to term note which conversion was effected Interest on the

Equipment Loan No was payable monthly until June 30 2008 at which point Brad Foote began

making monthly principal payments of $150 plus interest which accrues on the outstanding balance of

the Equipment Loan No Pursuant to the Omnibus Amendment described below for interest periods

beginning after January 20 2009 the interest rate payable under the BOA Notes and under the

Subsidiary Note is equal to the greater of the rate per annum equal to the British Bankers

Association LIBOR Rate plus five percent 5% and six percent 6% the Current Interest

Rate

On September 29 2008 Brad Foote entered into thirty-first amendment to the Loan Agreement

with BOA Pursuant to such amendment Brad Foote had an obligation to pay down $3000 of the

outstanding principal amount under the Revolving Loan by September 30 2008 and made the required

payment of such amount on October 2008 Brad Foote received waiver from BOA with respect to

the required payment Additionally the Company failed compliance with two of its covenants

specifically its EBITDA coverage ratio and its cash flow coverage ratio calculations The Company

obtained waiver from BOA of these covenant violations as of September 30 2008

On December 2008 Brad Foote entered into thirty-second amendment to the Loan

Agreement with BOA the Loan Agreement Amendment In connection with the Loan Agreement

Amendment Brad Foote and BOA also entered into an Amended and Restated Renewal Revolving

Note and Note Modification Agreements pertaining to the BOA Notes together the Additional Loan

Agreements Under the terms of the Loan Agreement Amendment and the Additional Loan

Agreements Brad Foote and BOA agreed to permanently reduce the amount of the Revolving Loan

from $10000 to $7000 ii to waive Brad Footes violation of the covenants concerning EBITDA

coverage ratio and cash flow coverage ratio calculations set forth in the Loan Agreement the Loan

Agreement Covenants iii to modify the interest rate charged on the BOA Notes to equal Adjusted

LIBOR generally defined as the rate at which U.S dollar deposits in comparable amount are

offered generally in the London Interbank Eurodollar market plus 2.5 percent pursuant to the

Omnibus Amendment described below such interest rate was subsequently revised to equal the

Current Interest Rate iv that Brad Foote pay down $3000 of the outstanding balance on the

Revolving Loan from loan with the Company and that Brad Foote pay to BOA covenant waiver

fee in the amount of $25 Under the terms of the Loan Agreement Amendment and the Additional

Loan Agreements BOA waived Brad Footes violation of the Loan Agreement Covenants for the

nine-month period ended September 30 2008

On January 16 2009 Brad Foote 1309 and 5100 entered into an Omnibus Amendment

Agreement dated January 15 2009 the Omnibus Amendment with BOA further amending the

Loan Agreement Among other things the Omnibus Amendment provided that BOA waive

Brad Footes violation of the Loan Agreement Covenants for the period from December 31 2008 up to

but not including January 20 2009 ii the maximum amount that Brad Foote may borrow under the

note evidencing the Revolving Loan is $4000 iii the termination date of the Loan Agreement be

extended to March 15 2009 or such earlier time upon which the note evidencing the Revolving Loan

becomes due and payable iv that for interest periods beginning after January 20 2009 the interest
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rate payable for the BOA Notes and for the Subsidiary Note be equal to the Current Interest Rate

Brad Footes financial covenants and events of default be amended and restated and

vi Brad Foote pay BOA an amendment and waiver fee in the amount of $25 as well as all reasonable

fees and expenses of BOA incurred in connection with the drafting negotiation execution delivery and

effectiveness of the Omnibus Amendment

In connection with the Omnibus Amendment Brad Foote 1309 5100 the Company and BOA

entered into additional agreements on January 16 2009 including Pledge Agreement pursuant to

which the Company granted BOA first priority security interest in all shares of stock of Brad Foote

and all indebtedness to the Company and any promissory notes and/or instruments representing such

indebtedness ii an Unconditional Guaranty executed by the Company in favor of BOA whereby the

Company guaranteed the payment of Brad Footes indebtedness under the Loan Agreement and

certain other loan documents certain agreements designed to protect 1309 and 5100 against

fluctuations in interest rates currency exchange rates or commodity prices and any treasury

management services provided to 1309 and/or 5100 by BOA or any affiliate of BOA iii an

Unconditional Guaranty executed by each of 1309 and 5100 in favor of BOA whereby each of 1309

and 5100 guarantees the payment of Brad Footes indebtedness under the Loan Agreement and

iv mortgages from 1309 5100 and Brad Foote to BOA each of through iv above dated as of

January 15 2009

On March 13 2009 Brad Foote 1309 and 5100 entered into the Second Omnibus Amendment

with BOA further amending the Loan Agreement and in connection therewith the Company 1309

and 5100 entered into the Reaffirmation Among other things the Second Omnibus Amendment

further amended and restated certain financial covenants under the Loan Agreement and set forth

certain additional covenants including minimum monthly cumulative EBITDA covenant for

Brad Foote The Second Omnibus Amendment also provided that BOA waive Brad Footes

violation of the minimum EBITDA covenant for the period ending December 31 2008 ii Brad Foote

pay to $1500 of the amount outstanding on the Revolving Loan $500 of which was paid by the

Company on behalf of Brad Foote and that the maturity date of the Revolving Loan be extended to

January 15 2011 iii the Revolving Loan be amortized pursuant to monthly payments iv BOAs

revolving credit commitment under the Loan Agreement be terminated resulting in BOA having no

obligation to make revolving loans to Brad Foote under the Loan Agreement the maturity dates of

the Equipment Note Equipment Note No and Subsidiary Note be shortened to December 31 2011

and vi Brad Foote pay BOA an extension fee on monthly basis through the end of 2009

The Loan Agreement states that the Revolving Loan Term Loan Equipment Loan and

Equipment Loan No are secured by all of the assets of Brad Foote and that Brad Foote must

maintain insurance on the collateral The Loan Agreement requires Brad Foote to comply with

standard covenants including financial covenants relating to ratios of cash flow coverage and senior

debt to EBITDA to provide monthly financial reporting and to submit our annual audited financial

statements to BOA at the close of each fiscal year Each of the Revolving Loan Term Loan

Equipment Loan and Equipment Loan No become immediately due and payable upon breach of any

covenants or representations made by Brad Foote in the Loan Agreement and upon other customary

events of default

In addition to the covenants described in the preceding paragraph covenants contained in the

Loan Agreement include restrictions on Brad Footes ability to make distributions or dividends incur

indebtedness or make subordinated debt payments as well as limitations on Brad Footes ability to

make capital expenditures any of which could ultimately affect our ability to undertake additional debt

or equity financing
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Tower Tech

In October 2007 Tower Tech obtained secured line of credit the ICB Line from Investors

Community Bank ICB in the amount of $2500 which was increased to $5500 on March 21 2008

The ICB Line is secured by substantially all of the assets of Tower Tech and RBA Draws on the ICB

Line bear interest at variable rate equal to the greater of 4.25% or 1.75% above The

Previous Month Average 30 Day Libor Rate published in The Wall Street Journal Pursuant to

Commercial Debt Modification Agreement dated as of October 22 2008 Tower Tech and ICB

extended the maturity date of the ICB Line to April 22 2009 In connection with the extension

Broadwind provided re-executed guaranties to ICB for all debt owed by each of Tower Tech and RBA

to ICB In addition Tower Tech re-executed its guaranty for debts owed by RBA to ICB and RBA

re-executed its guaranty for debts owed to ICB by Tower Tech We anticipated that each of Tower Tech

and RBA would be in violation of certain financial covenants relating to net worth and debt to net

worth ratio as of December 31 2008 Tower Tech and RBA each received waivers on December 29

2008 from ICB for the anticipated violations On March 13 2009 ICB extended the maturity date of

the ICB Line to March 13 2010 the ICB Line Extension Agreement Pursuant to the ICB Line

Extension Agreement Tower Tech agreed to establish new financial covenants with respect to minimum

debt service coverage ratio and minimum tangible net worth Tower Tech also agreed to retain their

primary deposit accounts with ICB and that no additional loans or leases be entered into by Tower

Tech without the prior approval of ICB

RBA

On April 2008 RBA executed four promissory notes in favor of ICB the ICB Notes in

the aggregate principal amount of approximately $3781 as follows term note in the maximum

principal amount of approximately $421 bearing interest at per annum rate of 6.85% with maturity

date of October 2012 ii term note in the maximum principal amount of $700 bearing interest at

per annum rate of 5.65% with maturity date of April 25 2013 iii term note in the maximum

principal amount of $928 bearing interest at per annum rate of 5.65% with maturity date of

April 25 2013 and iv line of credit note in the maximum principal amount of $1732 bearing interest

at per annum rate of 4.48% until May 2008 and thereafter at The Previous Month Average 30

Day Libor Rate published in The Wall Street Journal with maturity date of April 2009 the Line

of Credit Note The ICB Notes provide for multiple advances and are secured by substantially all of

the assets of RBA As of December 31 2008 the total amount of indebtedness outstanding under the

ICB Notes was $3564 On March 13 2009 ICB extended the maturity date of the Line of Credit Note

to March 13 2010 the ICB Note Extension Agreement Pursuant to the ICB Note Extension

Agreement RBA agreed to establish new financial covenants with respect to minimum debt service

coverage ratio and minimum tangible net worth RBA also agreed to retain their primary deposit

accounts with ICB and that no additional loans or leases be entered into by RBA without the prior

approval of ICB

EMS

On January 16 2008 we assumed approximately $2500 of outstanding senior debt in connection

with our acquisition of EMS The debt comprised of various loans maturing on dates from May 2008

to April 2013 In September 2008 EMS paid all outstanding term notes due to DNB National Bank in

the amount of $2425 which included accrued interest of $5

Badger

On March 2006 Badger executed secured promissory note payable to Dairymans State Bank

in the principal amount of approximately $134 bearing interest at per annum rate of 9.25% with

maturity date of March 2011 this loan had approximately $68 outstanding as of December 31 2008
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and requires monthly principal and interest payments On October 27 2008 Badger executed secured

promissory note payable to First National Bank FNB in the principal amount of approximately

$109 bearing interest at per annum rate of 6.75% with maturity date of September 27 2009 this

loan had approximately $89 outstanding at December 31 2008 and requires monthly principal and

interest payments On June 20 2008 Badger executed secured promissory note payable to FNB for

revolving line of credit the FNB Line in the maximum principal amount of approximately $488

bearing interest at per annum rate equal to the greater of 5.0% and 1.0% over the prime

rate from time to time with maturity date of June 20 2009 this loan had approximately $467

outstanding at December 31 2008 and requires monthly principal
and interest payments

Contractual Obligations

As of December 31 2008 minimum future cash payments due under contractual obligations

including among others our debt and credit agreements non-cancelable operating and capital lease

agreements and other long-term arrangements were as follows

2014

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total

Debt and credit agreements12 $14969 $15909 $10022 599 797 $42296

Operating lease obligations 3537 3291 3095 3112 2402 7464 22901

Capital lease obligations1 1315 1167 1128 963 760 5333

Purchase commitments 12711 12711

Total contractual cash obligations $32532 $20367 $14245 $4674 $3959 $7464 $83241

Debt and credit agreements and capital lease obligations include both the future principal payment

amount and an amount calculated for expected future interest payments

In March 2009 we amended certain credit agreements which resulted in debt maturities of $7728

being extended from 2009 to 2010 and beyond In addition we have updated our calculated

expected future interest payments to reflect the change in interest rates related to these amended

credit agreements

Debt and Credit Agreements Debt and credit agreements include outstanding borrowings under

our lines of credit term notes related to vehicle and equipment purchases and note payable related

to purchase agreement for manufacturing equipment See Note 12 Debt and Credit Agreements of

the notes to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion of our outstanding

indebtedness and credit agreements

Operating Lease Obligations We lease the majority of our facilities and certain equipment under

operating leases expiring at various dates through 2023 Lease terms generally range from two to

15 years with renewal options for extended terms The amounts in the table above represent future

minimum lease payments for non-cancelable operating leases

Capital Lease Obligations We have capital lease obligations related to certain manufacturing

equipment and vehicles expiring at various dates through 2013 As of December 31 2008 the balance

of our outstanding capital lease obligations was approximately $5333 which includes accrued interest

of approximately $834

Purchase Commitments Purchase commitments represent building and equipment purchase

contracts related to the construction of two new wind tower manufacturing facilities at our Tower Tech

subsidiary
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31 2008 we were not party to any off-balance sheet financing or contingent

payment arrangements nor do we have any unconsolidated subsidiaries

ITEM 7A QUANTITATiVE AND QUALITATiVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to financial market risks which primarily include changes in interest rates on our

variable rate obligations We use various techniques to manage our market risk including the use of

derivative financial instruments We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative

purposes

Interest Rate Exposure

The majority of our third party borrowings under our credit and term note agreements bear annual

interest at variable rates tied to the prime rate and LIBOR The outstanding borrowings under these

variable rate obligations were $31377 and $55753 as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Our

potential interest rate exposure over one year period that would result from hypothetical

instantaneous and unfavorable change of 100 basis points in the interest rate of our variable rate

obligations would be approximately $313 on pre-tax
basis

In order to minimize the exposure of interest rate fluctuations on certain of our variable interest

rate obligations the Company utilizes two interest rate swap agreements Our interest rate swap

agreements involve the exchange of variable for fixed interest rates over the life of the debt obligation

without the exchange of the underlying notional amounts The Company did not elect hedge accounting

treatment as prescribed
under the pronouncement criteria of SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities SFAS 133 and accordingly the change in the fair value of the

swap agreements is recognized in our consolidated results of operations The unrealized loss related to

the change in fair value of the swap agreements was approximately $194 and $153 for the
years

ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively and the fair market value of the swap agreements of $582

and $388 is recorded as long-term liability in our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively Our potential derivative financial instrument exposure over one year

period that would result from hypothetical instantaneous and unfavorable change of 100 basis points

in the interest rate associated with these respective swap agreements would be approximately $97 on

pre-tax basis

We estimate that the book value of our debt instruments and derivative financial instruments

approximated their fair values as of December 31 2008 and 2007 We believe that the exposure of our

consolidated financial position and results of operations and cash flows to adverse changes in interest

rates is not significant Additionally we believe that there are no significant counter party
risks

associated with our interest rate swap agreements

Credit Risk Exposure

The Company is exposed to credit risk on its accounts receivable balances Historically our

accounts receivable are highly concentrated with select number of customers During the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 sales to three or fewer customers accounted for approximately

72% 70% and 97% respectively of consolidated revenues Additionally as of December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 three or fewer customers comprised approximately 61% 63% and 78% respectively of our

outstanding accounts receivable balances
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Commodity Risk Exposure

The Company is dependent upon the supply of certain raw materials used in its production

processes and these raw materials are exposed to price fluctuations on the open market The primary

raw material used by the Company is steel To reduce price risk caused by market fluctuations the

Company has incorporated price adjustment clauses in certain sales contracts Management believes

hypothetical 10% change in the price of steel and other raw materials would not have significant

effect on the Companys consolidated annual results of operations or cash flows because these costs are

generally passed through to its customers

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial information required by Item is contained in Part IV Item 15 of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

1TEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Material Weaknesses Previously Disclosed

As discussed in Item 8A of our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-KSB as of December 31 2007

we identified certain material weaknesses relating to our accounting policies and procedures IT

environment general ledger system financial close and reporting internal financial expertise

application access segregation of duties user developed applications and
process level controls In

addition although we were not required to and did not perform complete assessment of the internal

controls of Brad Foote as of December 31 2007 we identified certain material weaknesses at Brad

Foote relating to inventory cost accounting accounts receivable billing and sales capital expenditures

internal financial expertise and accounting policies and procedures

On June 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of Badger This acquired business has

been excluded from managements assessment of internal control as of and for the period ended

December 31 2008 Badgers assets and liabilities acquired were $18060 and $6065 respectively

Badger was mid-year acquisition that was not significant to the overall operations and was not

included in our evaluation of the effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures for 2008 Though

management did not perform complete assessment from date of acquisition through our fiscal year

end we have identified several items that represent material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in

the internal control over financial reporting at Badger These material weaknesses related to internal

financial expertise accounting policies and procedures information technology environment and

segregation of duties The Company has begun remediation efforts to mitigate the effects of these

deficiencies

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e

under the Exchange Act that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our

reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time

periods specified in the SECs rules and forms This information is also accumulated and

communicated to management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as

appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure Our management under the

supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
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evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the most recent fiscal quarter reported on herein which did not include an evaluation of the

effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting for Badger Based on that evaluation our

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and

procedures were not effective as of December 31 2008 because of the material weaknesses discussed

below

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Throughout 2008 we used outside consultants to supplement the expertise in our internal staff and

hired additional experienced and qualified financial professionals in our assessment of internal controls

to strengthen the accounting and finance functions In addition we have relied on compensating

measures including enhanced communication and involvement of outside legal counsel in reporting and

disclosure matters and the continued involvement of our Audit Committee the chair of which is

financial expert with extensive accounting and auditing experience Further to these efforts during the

second quarter
of 2008 we hired an internal General Counsel and Director of Compliance to assist

in leading efforts surrounding public company reporting and compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley

During the second quarter of 2008 we implemented comprehensive Enterprise Resource

Planning ERP software system at Tower Tech and RBA as well as at our corporate headquarters

As part of the new system implementation access controls were limited and are supplemented by

other compensating controls where necessary Where possible we have established compensating

controls to mitigate the risk presented by inadequate segregation of duties In addition we realigned

certain personnel and security access rights to help remediate the control deficiency

We identified all of our user developed applications and remediated the control deficiencies

through controls in the user developed applications themselves and implemented compensating

controls These efforts along with the implementation of the new ERP system which eliminates the

user developed applications in critical processes will continue into 2009 The control deficiencies

previously reported are no longer deemed material weaknesses

Based on the testing performed at our Brad Foote subsidiary management has remediated the

material weaknesses previously disclosed associated with accounts receivable billing and sales capital

expenditures internal financial expertise and accounting policies and procedures Management

implemented number of enhancements to the controls around inventory and cost accounting

however they were not sufficient to remediate the material weaknesses in inventory and cost

accounting previously disclosed The material weaknesses are discussed in further detail in the following

section

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting for the Company as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f of the

Exchange Act Internal control over financial reporting is
process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles Internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records

that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of

the Company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and

that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the Company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding
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prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition
of the Companys assets

that could have material effect on the financial statements

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial

reporting objectives because of its inherent limitations Internal control over financial reporting is

process
that involves human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and

breakdowns resulting from human failures Internal control over financial reporting can also be

circumvented by collusion or improper management override Because of such limitations there is

risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on timely basis by internal controls

over financial reporting Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate However these inherent

limitations are known features of the financial reporting process Therefore it is possible to design into

the process safeguards to reduce though not eliminate these risks

material weakness as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act is deficiency or

combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting such that there is reasonable

possibility that material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be

prevented or detected on timely basis

Management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2008 which did not include an evaluation of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting for Badger Transport which was acquired in June 2008 In

making this assessment management used the criteria described in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based

on this assessment management concluded that the Companys internal control over financial reporting

was not effective as of December 31 2008

Management has identified the following material weaknesses in internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008 some of these internal control deficiencies may also constitute

deficiencies in our disclosure controls

Inventory and Cost Accounting

As previously disclosed in Item 8A of our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-KSB material

weakness exists at our Brad Foote subsidiary relating to routine physical inventory counts the

reconciliations of book to physical adjustments the process for maintenance of perpetual inventory

records and related accounting for scrap
and cost of goods sold In conjunction with the filing of

the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2008

management conducted physical inventory at our Brad Foote subsidiary Based on additional

review subsequent to the filing date it was determined that the valuation file used to value the

inventory contained unit of measure conversion errors and other errors As of December 31 2008

material weaknesses with respect to inventory and cost accounting still existed at our Brad Foote

subsidiary Management is continuing to enhance the control structure to address these previously

identified material weaknesses and there can be no assurances that enhanced controls will

remediate these material weaknesses

IT Controls

The Company did not maintain effective internal control over information systems at its

Brad Foote Gear Works subsidiary General computing controls were first implemented in the

fourth quarter of 2008 Such timing did not allow the Company to obtain sufficient sample size

to test controls and as result could not be assessed for operating effectiveness In addition the

controls over application
controls resulted in previously indentified material weaknesses reported in
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the Companys Quarterly report on Form 10-0/A The lack of general computing controls

combined with the errors previously noted rise to an aggregated material weakness

Income Taxes

In conjunction with the filing of Amendment No on Form 10-0/A for the quarter ended

September 30 2008 we identified material weakness in income taxes The Company did not

maintain effective controls over the completeness and
accuracy

of the income tax provision and

related balance sheet accounts Specifically the Companys controls over the
processes

and

procedures related to the determination and review of the quarterly tax provisions were not

adequate to ensure that the income tax provision was prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Non-routine Transactions

In conjunction with the filing of Amendment No on Form 10-0/A for the quarter ended

September 30 2008 we identified material weakness associated with the controls over

non-routine transactions and the related accounting treatment of those transactions was

appropriately reviewed to ensure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles

Remediation Activities

Management has worked closely with personnel and has begun remediation efforts to reduce

the risks presented by the existing material weaknesses Since year-end we have added cost

accountant at our Brad Foote subsidiary responsible for the tracking of inventory and further

enhanced managements review of the inventory process Standard costs for inventory parts are

reviewed by the new cost accountant and by management on quarterly basis In the third quarter

of 2008 management began performing quarterly physical inventories at Brad Foote practice

that management anticipates will be performed throughout 2009

Management will continue to work with the Companys tax advisors to have more active and

timely review of the tax provision

The impact of the remediation efforts initiated by management will not be fully known until

our assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009
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ITEM 9B REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Broadwind Energy Inc

We have audited Broadwind Energy Inc.s Delaware Corporation internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO Broadwind Energy Inc.s management is responsible for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over

Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on Broadwind Energy Inc.s internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

Our audit of and opinion on Broadwind Energy Inc.s internal control over financial reporting

does not include internal control over financial reporting of Badger Transport Inc wholly-owned

subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets constituting 7% percent and total revenues

constituting 5% of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended

December 31 2008 As discussed in Item 9A Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Badger Transport Inc was acquired during 2008 and therefore managements assertion on the

effectiveness of Broadwind Energy Inc.s internal control over financial reporting excluded internal

control over financial reporting of Badger Transport Inc

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained

in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process effected by those charged with

governance management and other personnel designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in

reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and those charged with governance and provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets

that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject

to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

material weakness is deficiency or combination of control deficiencies in internal control over

financial reporting such that there is reasonable possibility that material misstatement of the
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companys annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis

The following material weaknesses have been identified and included in managements assessment

The Company did not maintain effective internal control over accounting for inventory valuation at

its Brad Foote Gear Works subsidiary and identified errors in routine physical inventory counts

reconciliation for book to physical inventory adjustments and maintenance of perpetual inventory

records

The Company did not maintain effective internal control over accounting for income taxes

Subsequent to filing its consolidated financial statements for the third quarter 2008 the company

determined that the consolidated financial statements contained errors The Company identified

ineffective controls over the completeness and accuracy of the income tax provision and related balance

sheet accounts and determined the provision was not prepared in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

The Company did not maintain effective internal control over accounting for non-routine

transactions Subsequent to filing its consolidated financial statements for the third
quarter 2008 the

company determined that the consolidated financial statements contained errors The Company

controls over the procedures for identifying and review of non-routine transaction for compliance with

generally accepted accounting principles were ineffective

In addition the Company did not maintain effective internal control over information systems at

its Brad Foote Gear Works subsidiary Controls were established late in the year and were not able to

be adequately assessed The lack of pervasive controls over the general computing and application level

controls were in
part contributing factor to the above noted restatement We consider these lack of

general computing and application level controls combined with the financial errors noted rise to an

aggregated material weakness

In our opinion because of the effect of the material weaknesses described above on the

achievement of the objectives of the control criteria Broadwind Energy Inc has not maintained

effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established

in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by COSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of Broadwind Energy Inc as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two

years in the period ended December 31 2008 The material weaknesses identified above were

considered in determining the nature timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2008

financial statements and this report does not affect our report dated March 16 2009 which expressed

an unqualified opinion on those financial statements

Is GRANT THORNTON LLP

Milwaukee Wisconsin

March 16 2009
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ITEM 9C OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors and Executive Officers

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the discussion

under the headings Election of Nominees for Director Corporate Governance and Section 16a
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed in

connection with our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the 2009 Proxy Statement

Code of Ethics

We have adopted Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that applies to all of our directors

executive officers and senior financial officers including our chief executive officer chief financial

officer chief accounting officer controller and any person performing similar functions The Code of

Ethics and Business Conduct is available on our website at wwwbroadwindenergy.com under the caption

Investors and is available in print free of charge to any stockholder who sends request for paper

copy to Broadwind Energy Inc Attn Investor Relations 47 East Chicago Avenue Suite 332

Naperville IL 60540 Broadwind intends to include on our website any amendment to or waiver from

provision of our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that applies to our principal executive officer

principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar

functions that relates to any element of the code of ethics definition enumerated in Item 406b of

Regulation S-K

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding director and executive compensation is incorporated by reference from the

discussion under the headings 2008 Director Compensation and Executive Compensation in the

2009 Proxy Statement

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Certain of the information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the

discussion under the heading Principal Stockholders and Management Stockholdings in the 2009

Proxy Statement
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The following table provides information as of December 31 2008 with respect to shares of our

common stock that may be issued under our existing equity compensation plans

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Number of securities

remaining available for

Number of securities future issuances under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation

exercise of exercise price of plans excluding
outstanding options outstanding options securities reflected in

Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights column

Equity compensation plans approved by

stockholders 21575001 $11.55 13350002

Total 2157500 $11.55 1335000

Includes outstanding stock options to purchase shares of our common stock and outstanding

restricted stock awards pursuant to the Broadwind Energy Inc Employee Incentive Plan EIP
which was approved by the Companys Board of Directors in October 2007 and by the Companys
stockholders in June 2008

The EIP reserves maximum amount of 3500000 shares of common stock for grants to officers

directors and other key employees

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the discussion

under the headings Certain Transactions and Corporate Governance in the 2009 Proxy Statement

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the discussion

under the headings Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm in

our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed in the 2009 Proxy Statement

PART 1V

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The financial statements listed on the Index to Financial Statements page 53 are filed as part of

this Annual Report

Financial Statement Schedules

These schedules have been omitted because the required information is included in the

consolidated financial statements or notes thereto or because they are not applicable or not required

Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the Index to Exhibits pages 99 through 106 are filed as part of this Annual

Report
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized on the 16th day of March 2009

BROADWIND ENERGY INC

By Is CAMERON DREcOLL

CAMERON DRECOLL
Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated
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Is CAMERON DRECOLL Chief Executive Officer and Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and

Stockholders of Broadwind Energy Inc and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Broadwind Energy Inc

Delaware corporation as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of

operations stockholders equity deficit and cash flows for each of the two years
in the period ended

December 31 2008 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An
audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all

material respects the financial position of Broadwind Energy Inc as of December 31 2008 and 2007
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended

December 31 2008 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Broadwind Energy Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as

of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report

dated March 16 2009 expressed an adverse opinion

Is GRANT THORNTON LLP

Milwaukee Wisconsin

March 16 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and

Shareholders of Tower Tech Holdings Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Tower Tech Holdings Inc and its

subsidiary as of December 31 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations

stockholders deficit and cash flows for the year then ended These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement

The Company is not required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control

over financial reporting Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting

as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the financial position of Tower Tech Holdings Inc and its subsidiary as of December 31 2006 and the

results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year

then ended in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Is Carver Moquist OConnor LLC

Plymouth Minnesota

March 30 2007

55



BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

In thousands except share data

As of December 31

2008 2007

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $15253 5782

Restricted cash 500 500

Accounts receivable net 36709 13541

Inventories net 41895 12983

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3862 1946

Total current assets 98219 34752

Property and equipment net 144707 58890

Goodwill 30954 27611

Intangible asset net 105593 84022

Other assets 275 543

TOTAL ASSETS $379748 $205818

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILmES

Lines of credit and notes payable 3340 440

Current maturities of long-term debt 9711 12693

Notes payable to related parties 25000

Current portions of capital lease obligations 978 300

Accounts payable 40225 10136

Accrued liabilities 10386 12457

Customer deposits 21102 1423

Total current liabilities 85742 62449

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt net of current maturities 25792 17620

Long-term capital lease obligations net of current portions 3521 686

Interest rate swap agreements 582 388

Deferred income tax liabilities 1497 139

Other 458

Total long-term liabilities 31850 18833

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITh
Common stock $0.001 par value 150000000 and 100000000 shares authorized as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively 96470415 and 76260912 shares issued and

outstanding as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively 96 76

Additional paid-in capital 297222 133033

Accumulated deficit 35162 9877
Interest in variable interest entity 1304

Total stockholders equity 262156 124536

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $379748 $205818

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

In thousands except per share data

For the Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Revenues $217321 $29804 4023

Cost of sales 183951 25865 4822

Gross margin deficit 33370 3939 799

OPERATING EXPENSES

Selling general and administrative 41545 5724 1501

Goodwill impairment 2409

Intangible amortization 11159 1750 21

Total operating expenses 55113 7474 1522

Operating loss 21743 3535 2321

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE net

Interest income 584 400

Interest expense 2860 1239 411
Other net 204 27

Total other expense net 2480 866 414

Net loss before provision benefit for income taxes 24223 4401 2735
PROVISION BENEFIT FOR INCOME TAXES 1062 1039

NET LOSS $25285 $3362 $2735

NET LOSS PER COMMON SHAREBasic and diluted 0.28 0.07 0.08

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDINGBasic

and diluted 89899 51535 33772

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUB SIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY DEFICIT
In thousands except share data

BALANCE December 31 2005

Recapitalization of shares issued by

Blackfoot prior to merger
Stock issued for

merger transaction costs

Share-based compensation

Contributed capitalmanagement
salaries

Net loss

BALANCE December 31 2006

Stock issuance for private placement to

accredited investors net of costs of

$1209

Stock issued for satisfaction of

third-party debt

Stock issued for satisfaction of

related-party debt

Stock issued for acquisition of Brad

Foote Gear Works Inc

Share-based compensation

Capital contributions

Net loss

BALANCE December 31 2007 76260912

Stock issued for restricted stock

Stock issued for the acquisition of

Energy Maintenance Service LLC
Stock issued for

acquisition of Badger
Transport Inc

Stock issued for the conversion of

related-party notes

Stock issued in private equity placements
net of costs of $336

Share-based compensation

Acquisition of variable interest
entity

Net loss

BALANCE December 31 2008 96470415

10 10
248

250
353

353

64146

142

1399 1399

3267 95 3362

9877 1304 124536

13821

6000

24997 25000

14 117375 117389
1999 1999

1304 1304
25285 25285

$96 $297222 $35162 $262156

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Common Stock

Shares

Issued and Issued

Outstanding Amount

22750000 $23

Additional

Paid-in

Capital

428

Accumulated

Deficit

3875

Interest in

Variable

Interest

Entity

9750000

2500000

235500

Total

3424

242

_____ 2735

323550O 35 1261 610

242

2735

5314

22766667

1500000

722295

16036450

22 64169 64191

2248 2250

1083 1084

16 64130

142

133033

13819

7500

1629834

581959 5999

3333332

14656878
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

In thousands

For the Years Ended

December 31

2008 2007 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss 25285 3362 $2735

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization expense
21866 3523 328

Goodwill impairment
2409

Change in valuation of interest rate swap
194 153

Deferred income taxes
506 139

Stock-based compensation
1785 142 353

Contributed services by shareholders
243

Stock issued for merger costs
250

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1703 175

Inventory reserve

Loss on disposal of assets
113

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 16355 4963 19

Inventories 28419 715

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1323 453

Other noncurrent assets 63 508 493

Accounts payable
21586 2266 406

Accrued liabilities
2656 259 947

Customer deposits
18201 1135 18

Unearned revenue
1473 106

Net cash used in provided by operating activities 2359 521 711

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash paid for acquisitions net of cash received 23016 76474

Purchases of property and equipment
83720 5854 408

Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment
40

Increase in restricted cash 500

Net cash used in investing activities 106696 82828 408

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of stock 117389 65400

Payment on lines of credit and short term notes payable 1847 3796

Proceeds from lines of credit and short term notes payable 9273 25283 1169

Payments on related party notes payable 1365

Proceeds from long-term debt
42 3759

Payments on long-term debt 4490 2496 91

Principal payments on capital leases 690 186

Issuance of restricted stock grants
214

Net cash provided by financing activities 118526 87964 1078

NET INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 9471 5657 41

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS beginning of the year 5782 125 166

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS end of the year 15253 5782 125

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Interest paid net of capitalized interest 2969 783 308

Income taxes paid
65

Non-cash financing activities

Stock issued for acquisitions
19821 64146

Conversion of related party notes payable to equity
25000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except share and per share data

DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K the terms we us our Broadwind and the

Company refer to Broadwind Energy Inc Delaware incorporated company headquartered in

Naperville Illinois and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

We are supplier of value-added products and services to the North American wind energy sector
as well as other energy-related industries We provide our customers such as leading wind turbine
manufacturers and developers wind farm operators and service companies with broad range of

component and service offerings Since 2006 we have made significant investments in the growth of our
business through series of acquisitions In doing so we have developed broad U.S.-based supply
chain for wind development in North America Our five businesses are currently organized in two
operating segments Products and Services

We have limited history of operations and have incurred operating losses since inception We
anticipate that the Companys current cash resources and cash to be generated from operations in 2009
will be adequate to meet the Companys liquidity needs for at least the next twelve months As
discussed in Note 12 the Company has amended several of its primary debt agreements subsequent to
December 31 2008 which have resulted in reducing the debt obligations coming due in 2009 However
if sales and subsequent collections from several large customers as well as revenues generated from
new customer orders are not materially consistent with managements plans we may encounter cash
flow and liquidity issues Additional funding may not be available when needed or on terms acceptable
to us If we are unable to obtain additional

capital we will
likely be required to delay reduce the scope

of or eliminate our plans for expansion and growth and could affect our overall operations Any
additional

equity financing if available may be dilutive to stockholders and additional debt financing
if available will likely require covenants that restrict us and certain of such covenants may materially
restrict us

Products

The Products segment includes three subsidiaries that manufacture and sell products such as high
precision gears for wind turbines custom-engineered gearing systems for the mining energy and
industrial sectors structural wind towers internal tower components and large fabricated and
machined components e.g crane parts and dipper buckets Specific services provided include key
technology areas such as grinding and finishing of

gears and gear sets steel plate processing heavy
welding and custom corrosion protection of components Our primary focus is on the wind energy
industry however our Products segment also services mining construction oil and gas and other
industrial energy applications

The Products segment has undergone significant expansion in the last two years and reflects the
operations of Brad Foote Gear Works Inc Brad Foote Tower Tech Systems Inc Tower Tech
and R.B.A Inc RBA
Services

The Services segment was established upon our acquisition of Energy Maintenance Service LLCEMS in January 2008 and expanded with our acquisition of Badger Transport Inc Badger in
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except share and per share data

DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY Continued

June 2008 This segment specializes
in construction operations

and maintenance of and component

repair services for the wind industry as well as specialized heavy haul trucking services to installation

sites Services provided include construction and technical support in the erection of wind turbine

generators scheduled and un-scheduled maintenance fiberglass inspections general repair and training

and the transportation of oversize/overweight equipment and machinery

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Broadwind and its wholly-owned

subsidiaries All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in

consolidation The results of operations of all acquired businesses have been consolidated for all

periods subsequent to the date of acquisition

Reclassifications

Where appropriate certain reclassifications have been made to prior years financial statements to

conform to the current year presentation

Managements Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the U.S GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the date of

the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period

Significant estimates among others include revenue recognition future tax rates inventory reserves

warranty reserves stock option fair value allowance for doubtful accounts and allocation of purchase

price to the fair value of net assets and liabilities acquired in connection with business combinations

Although these estimates are based upon managements best knowledge of current events and actions

that we may undertake in the future actual results could differ from these estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of cash balances maintained at financial institutions in

all cash accounts Cash equivalents
consist of money market account funds and are generally invested

for short-term duration based upon operating requirements

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash down payments pertaining to certain contracts with respect to

which the use of such cash is restricted as per the terms of the contract As of December 31 2008 we

had restricted cash in the amount of $500 which relates to bailment agreement with customer This

agreement is scheduled to be completed during 2009
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except share and per share data

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when the earnings process is complete and when persuasive evidence of an

arrangement exists transfer of title has occurred or services have been rendered the selling price is

fixed or determinable collectability is
reasonably assured and

delivery has occurred per the terms of
the contract Customer

deposits and other
receipts are deferred and recognized when the revenue is

realized and earned

In some instances products are sold under terms included in bill and hold sales arrangements that
result in different

timing for revenue recognition Assuming all other revenue criteria are met revenue
is recognized upon completion of product manufacture and customer acceptance certificate The
Company has reviewed SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No 104 SAB 104 and concludes that its

revenue recognition policy to be in compliance with SAB 104

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales represents all direct and indirect costs associated with the production of products for
sale to customers These costs include operation repair and maintenance of our equipment direct and
indirect labor and benefit costs insurance equipment rentals freight in and depreciation Freight out
to customers is classified as selling expense and is excluded from cost of sales For the years ended
December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 freight out was $235 $65 and $7 respectively

Accounts Receivable

The Company generally grants uncollateralized credit to customers on an individual basis based

upon the customers financial condition and credit history Credit is typically on net 30-day terms and
customer deposits are frequently required at various stages of the production process to minimize
credit risk

Historically our corresponding accounts receivable are highly concentrated to select number of
customers During the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 sales to three or fewer
customers accounted for approximately 72% 70% and 97% respectively of consolidated revenues In

addition as of December 31 2008 and 2007 three or fewer customers comprised approximately 61%
and 63% respectively of our total outstanding accounts receivable balances

Allowance
for Doubtful Accounts

Based upon past experience and judgment we establish an allowance for doubtful accounts with

respect to account receivables Our standard allowance estimation methodology considers number of
factors that based on our collections experience we believe have an impact on our credit risk and the

realizability of our accounts receivable These factors include individual customer circumstances history
with the Company and other relevant criteria

We monitor our collections and write-off experience to assess whether or not adjustments to our
allowance percentage estimates are necessary Changes in trends in any of the factors that we believe

impact the realizability of our accounts receivable as noted above or modifications to our credit
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except share and per share data

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

standards collection practices
and other related policies may impact our allowance for doubtful

accounts and our financial results Bad debt expense for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 was $1196 $2983 and $0 respectively

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Any excess of cost over market value is

included in the Companys inventory allowance Market value of inventory and managements

judgment of the need for reserves encompasses consideration of other business factors including

physical condition inventory holding period contract terms and usefulness Inventories are valued

based on an average cost method that approximates the first-in first-out FIFO basis

Inventories consist of raw materials work-in-process
and finished goods Raw materials consist of

components and parts
for general production use Work-in-process consists of labor and overhead

processing costs purchased subcomponents and materials purchased for specific customer orders

Finished goods consist of components purchased from third parties as well as components

manufactured by the Company that will be used to produce final customer products

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is

recognized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets for

financial reporting purposes and an accelerated method for income tax reporting purposes

Expenditures for additions and improvements are capitalized
while replacements maintenance and

repairs
that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed as incurred

We capitalize interest costs incurred on indebtedness used to construct property plant
and equipment

in accordance with the pronouncement provisions
of SFAS No 34 Capitalization of Interest Cost

SFAS 34 Capitalized interest is recorded as part of the asset to which it relates and is amortized

over the assets estimated useful life Interest cost capitalized was $230 and $18 for the years
ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Property or equipment sold or disposed of is removed from

the respective property accounts with any corresponding gains and losses recorded to other income or

expense in our consolidated statement of operations

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment on at least an annual basis by applying

fair-value-based test In evaluating the recoverability of the carrying value of goodwill and other

intangible assets we must make assumptions regarding the fair values of our reporting units as defined

under the provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 142 Goodwill and

Other Intangible Assets SFAS 142 Our estimate of the fair value of each of our reporting units is

based primarily on projected future operating results and cash flows and other assumptions The failure

of reporting unit to achieve projected future operating results and cash flows or adjustments to other

valuation assumptions could change our estimate of reporting unit fair value in which case we may be

required to record an impairment charge related to goodwill and other intangible assets

63



BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except share and per share data

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Warranty Liability

Within the Products segment we provide warranty terms that generally ranges from two to seven

years for various products relating to workmanship and materials supplied by the Company From time

to time customers may submit warranty claims against the Company In certain contracts we have

recourse provisions for items that would enable
recovery from third parties for amounts paid to

customers under warranty provisions As of December 31 2008 and 2007 our estimated product

warranty liability was $890 and $242 respectively and is recorded within accrued liabilities in our

consolidated balance sheets

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes

SFAS 109 SFAS 109 requires the recognition of deferred income tax assets and liabilities based

upon the income tax consequences of temporary differences between financial
reporting and income tax

reporting by applying enacted statutory income tax rates applicable to future years to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts and the income tax basis of existing assets and

liabilities SFAS 109 also requires that deferred income tax assets be reduced by valuation allowance
if it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred income tax asset will not be realized

On January 2007 we adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes FIN 48 which is an interpretation of SFAS 109 FIN 48 clarifies the

accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entitys financial statements in accordance
with SFAS 109 and prescribes recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial

statement recognition and measurement of tax position taken or expected to be taken in an income
tax return FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition classification interest and penalties

accounting in interim periods disclosure and transition The initial application of FIN 48 to our tax

position had no effect on our results of operations or stockholders equity

Derivative Financial Instruments

We
currently use derivative financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps to minimize the

effect of interest rate fluctuations on certain of our outstanding debt and account for our derivative

financial instruments in accordance with SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities SFAS 133 as amended Our derivative financial instruments are recognized on our
consolidated balance sheet at fair value These derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting
treatment as defined under SFAS 133 accordingly all respective gains or losses on these derivative

financial instruments are reported in other income or expense in our consolidated statements of

operations

Share-Based Compensation

On January 2006 we adopted the provisions of SFAS No 123 revised Share-Based Payment

SFAS 123R SFAS 123R replaced our previous accounting for share-based awards under Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees for periods beginning in
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except share and per share data

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

2006 SFAS 123R requires that all share-based payments to employees and non-employee directors

including grants of stock options and shares of non-vested stock be recognized in the financial

statements based on the estimated fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued

See Note 20 Share-Based Compensation of these notes to our consolidated financial statements

for further discussion of our share-based compensation plans the nature of share-based awards issued

under the plans and our accounting for share-based awards

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table presents
reconciliation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 as follows

For the Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Basic earnings per share calculation

Net loss to common stockholders $25285 3362 2735

Weighted average of common shares outstanding 89899 51535 33772

Basic net loss per share 0.28 0.07 0.08

Diluted earnings per share calculation

Net loss to common stockholders $25285 $3362 $2735

Weighted average of common shares outstanding 89899 51535 33772

Common stock equivalents

Stock options and non-vested stock awards1

Convertible promissory note2

Weighted average of common shares outstanding 89899 51535 33772

Diluted net loss per share 0.28 0.07 0.08

Stock options and restricted stock units granted and outstanding of 2157500 and 965000

as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively are excluded from the computation of

diluted earnings due to the anti-dilutive effect as result of the Companys net loss for

these respective years

Common stock equivalents of 685000 with respect to the conversion feature of the senior

subordinated convertible promissory notes outstanding as of December 31 2007 were

excluded from the computation of diluted earnings due to the anti-dilutive effect as

result of the Companys net loss for the year
ended December 31 2007
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except share and per share data

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

2008 Acquisitions

Energy Maintenance Service LLC

On January 16 2008 the Company acquired all of the outstanding membership interests in EMS
South Dakota-based company engaged in construction support engineering and maintenance services

for the wind energy industry The aggregate purchase price was $32250 excluding $536 of transaction-

related costs The purchase price consisted of $18429 of cash and 1629834 unregistered shares of the

Companys common stock at price per share of $8.48 The Company entered into registration rights

agreement with the former owners of EMS which provides the former owners with demand and

piggyback registration rights The cash portion of the purchase price was financed by private

placement of the Companys common stock See Note 18 Stockholders Equity for further discussion

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the EMS assets acquired and liabilities

assumed on the date of the acquisition

Current assets 4712
Property and equipment 1549
Intangibletrade name 1790
Intangiblecustomer relationships 24700
Goodwill

4561

Total assets acquired 37312
Current liabilities 3545
Long term liabilities 981
Total purchase consideration $32786

The Company may adjust goodwill as necessary as it finalizes purchase price allocations for

acquisitions Typical adjustments include outstanding professional fees and fixed asset valuations

Goodwill of $4561 and other intangibles of $26490 are expected to be deductible for income tax

purposes over 15 years

The Company does not have any contingent payments or commitments in relation to the

acquisition of EMS with the exception of certain stock options that were awarded as result of the

acquisition Stock options are share-based compensation expense and are subject to accounting
treatment under SFAS No 123R as discussed in Note 20 Share-based compensation

Badger Transport Inc

On June 2008 the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Badger Wisconsin
based provider of transportation services for oversized/overweight equipment and machinery primarily
to the wind industry for an aggregate purchase price of $11811 excluding $184 of transaction-related

acquisition costs The purchase price consisted of $5811 of cash and 581959 unregistered shares of

Broadwind common stock at price per share of $10.31 The Company entered into registration

rights agreement with the former owner of Badger that provides the former owner with limited
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except share and per share data

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS Continued

piggyback registration rights The Company financed the cash portion of the acquisition with cash on

hand

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the Badger assets acquired and

liabilities assumed on the date of the acquisition

Current assets 1496

Property and equipment 5232

Intangibletrade name 370

Intangiblecustomer relationships 4380

Intangiblenon-compete agreement 1490

Goodwill 5154

Total assets acquired 18122

Current liabilities 2178

Capital lease obligations 1052

Long term debt 2544
Deferred tax liability 353

Total purchase consideration $11995

The Company may adjust goodwill as necessary as it finalizes purchase price allocations for

acquisitions Typical adjustments include outstanding working capital professional fees and fixed asset

valuations Goodwill and intangible assets associated with the purchase of Badger are not expected to

be deductible for income tax purposes

In connection with the Badger acquisition the Company was required to fund approximately

$4400 of equipment purchases that Badger had on order for expansion The Company has funded

$4384 of this commitment which is complete

2007 Acquisitions

R.B.A Inc

On October 2007 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of RBA Wisconsin

based fabricator of components for energy related industries The aggregate consideration paid for the

RBA acquisition was $5197 which includes transaction related acquisition costs of $197
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BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except share and per share data

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS Continued

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the RBA assets acquired and liabilities

assumed on the date of the acquisition

Current assets $1400
Property and equipment 1845

Intangibletrade name 120

Intangiblecustomer relationships 2020
Other assets 49

Goodwill 2409

Total assets acquired 7843
Current liabilities 1082
Deferred tax liabilities 1564
Total purchase consideration 5197

None of the goodwill associated with the purchase of RBA is expected to be deductible for income

tax purposes

Brad Foote Gear Works Inc

On October 19 2007 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Brad Foote an

Illinois-based manufacturer of gearing systems for the wind turbine oil and gas and energy-related

industries The aggregate consideration paid for the Brad Foote acquisition was $131730 which

includes $538 of transaction-related acquisition costs

Total consideration included $64146 of the Companys common stock which was valued based

upon fairness opinion received from an independent valuation firm as the majority of the Companys
stock was held by limited number of stockholders and the shares are thinly traded on the OTC
Bulletin Board

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed on the date of the acquisition

Current assets 22077
Property and equipment 47853
Intangibletrade name 7999
Intangiblecustomer relationships 75538
Other long-term assets 163

Goodwill 21239

Total assets acquired 174869
Current liabilities 26292
Long term liabilities 16847
Total purchase consideration $131730
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Of the $21239 of goodwill
associated with the purchase of Brad Foote approximately $21000 is

expected to be deductible for income tax purposes

The following table represents the consolidated financial information for the Company on pro

forma basis assuming that the acquisition of Brad Foote EMS and Badger had occurred as of

January 2007 The Company is excluding the pro forma results of the RBA acquisition because the

impact of this acquisition is not material to our consolidated results of operations
for the year ended

December 31 2007 The historical financial information has been adjusted to give effect to pro forma

items that are directly attributable to the acquisition and expected to have continuing impact on the

consolidated results These items include among others adjustments to increase depreciation
related to

the stepped-up basis in machinery and equipment adjust inventory to fair market value record

amortization of intangible assets increase interest expense for certain long-term notes payable and

reclassify certain items to conform to the Companys financial reporting presentation Additionally the

following table sets forth unaudited financial information and has been compiled from historical

financial statements and other information but is not necessarily indicative of the results that actually

would have been achieved had the transactions occurred on the dates indicated or that may be

achieved in the future

For the Year Ended December 31

2008 2007

Pro-forma Pro-forma

As adjustments Pro-forma As adjustments Pro-forma

reported Unaudited Unaudited reported Unaudited Unaudited

Revenues $217321 5710 $223031 $29804 $95565 $125369

Net loss 25285 1826 27111 3362 6501 9863
Loss per share

Basic and diluted 0.28 0.02 0.30 0.07 0.12 0.19

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

SFAS 141R

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141R Business Combinations SFAS 141R which

establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer of business recognizes and measures in

its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling

interest in the acquiree SFAS 141R also provides guidance for recognizing and measuring the goodwill

acquired in the business combination and determines what information to disclose to enable users of

the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination

SFAS 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 Early adoption is not

permitted SFAS 141R is to be applied prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition

date in on or after the first reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2008 The adoption of

this standard is not anticipated to have material impact on our financial position results of

operations or cash flows
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SFAS 157-2

In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No 157-2 FSP 157-2 which delayed

the effective date by which companies must adopt certain provisions of SFAS No 157 Fair Value

Measurements SFAS 157 FSP 157-2 defers the effective date of SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets

and nonfinancial liabilities except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the

financial statements on recurring basis to fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2008 and interim

periods within those fiscal years The adoption of this standard is not anticipated to have material

impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

SFAS 161

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities SFAS 161 This statement is intended to enhance required disclosures regarding

derivatives and hedging activities including enhanced disclosures regarding how an entity uses

derivative instruments derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under

FASB Statement No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities and

derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entitys financial position financial

performance and cash flows SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal
years and interim periods beginning after

November 15 2008 We are currently evaluating the effect of adoption of SFAS 161 but do not

presently believe that it will have material effect on our consolidated financial position or results of

operations

SFAS 162

In May 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles SFAS 162 SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework

for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities

that are presented in conformity with GAAP We do not expect any significant changes to our financial

accounting and reporting as result of the issuance of SFAS 162

CASH AND CASH EQUiVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents were $15253 and $5782 as of December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31 2008 consisted of cash in operating

accounts of $8006 and $7247 in money market account funds compared to cash in money market

account funds of $5782 as of December 31 2007

The Companys policy is to invest excess cash into money market account funds which are

generally of short-term duration based upon operating requirements Income earned on these

investments is recorded to interest income in our consolidated statements of operations For the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 interest income was $584 $400 and $0 respectively

Additionally the Company is currently evaluating its risk management policies in terms of the potential

impact of any significant credit risk associated with cash deposits at various financial institutions which

are in excess of federally insured amounts
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ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The activity in the accounts receivable allowance for the years
ended December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 consists of the following

For the Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Balance at beginning of year 2983

Bad debt expense 1196 156

Write-offs 2899

Other1 224 2827

Balance at end of year
$1504 $2983

Other represents opening balance sheet allowances for doubtful accounts as part
of the

acquisitions of EMS and Badger in January 2008 and June 2008 respectively and Brad

Foote in 2007

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value and primarily consist of raw material

work-in-process and finished goods Work-in-process consists of labor and overhead processing costs

purchased subcomponents and materials purchased for specific customer orders Finished goods consist

of components purchased from third parties as well as components manufactured by the Company that

will be used to produce final customer products

The components of inventories as of December 31 2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows

As of December 31

2008 2007

Raw materials $16429 4230

Restricted raw material1 9936

Work-in-process 16226 8976

Finished goods
401 873

42992 14079

Less Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory 1097 1096

Net inventories $41895 $12983

In December 2008 Tower Tech entered into an agreement pursuant to which it agreed to

convey to customer ownership of certain raw materials the Bailment Materials that

Tower Tech had acquired for use in constructing wind turbine towers for such customer

in exchange for the release of down payment of $9936 paid by the customer pursuant

to the terms of purchase order In connection with the transaction the customer caused

the release/cancellation of letter of credit securing the down-payment the L/C in
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order for the cash being held by the L/C issuer as security for the L/C to be released to

Tower Tech The customer also granted Tower Tech security interest in portion of the

Bailment Materials in the event the purchase order is not fully performed by the

customer for any reason other than the breach or default of Tower Tech Tower Tech
issued new performance letter of credit in the amount of $500 as guarantee of

complete performance by Tower Tech of its obligations under the purchase order The
Bailment Materials continue to be held by Tower Tech as bailment for the sole and

exclusive benefit and use of the customer and are intended to be used by Tower Tech for

construction of the wind turbine towers for such customer under the purchase order As
result of this transaction $9436 was released from restricted cash and made available for

other purposes

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is

recognized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets for

financial
reporting purposes and an accelerated method for income tax reporting purposes

Expenditures for additions and improvements are capitalized while replacements maintenance and

repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed as incurred
The Company capitalizes interest costs incurred on indebtedness used to construct property plant and

equipment in accordance with the pronouncement provisions of SFAS No 34 Capitalization of Interest

Cost SFAS 34 Capitalized interest is recorded as part of the asset to which it relates and is

amortized over the assets estimated useful life Interest cost capitalized was $230 and $18 for the years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Property or equipment sold or disposed of is removed
from the respective property accounts with any corresponding gains and losses recorded to other

income or expense in our consolidated statement of operations

The cost basis and estimated lives of property and equipment as of December 31 2008 and 2007
are as follows

As of December 31

2008 2007 Life

Land 2556 15

Buildings 6456 4018 39 years

Machinery and equipment 94019 51332 10
years

Office furniture and equipment 1641 640 20
years

Leasehold improvements 2052 1919 Asset life or life of lease

Construction in
progress 51004 3442

157728 61366
Less-accumulated depreciation 13021 2476

$144707 $58890

72



BROADWIND ENERGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands except share and per share data

10 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Changes in the carrying value of goodwill during the years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007 are

as follows

Products Services

segment segment Total

Goodwill balance as of December 31 2006

Goodwill related to acquisitions 27611 27611

Goodwill balance as of December 31 2007 27611 27611

Purchase accounting adjustments 3963 3963
Goodwill related to acquisitions 9715 9715

Impairment charge 2409 2409

Goodwill balance as of December 31 2008 $21239 $9715 $30954

The increase in goodwill
in 2008 in the Services segment is related to the acquisition of Badger

and EMS The negative adjustment in the Products segment relates to purchase price allocation

adjustments recorded in connection with the acquisition
of Brad Foote in October 2007 These

adjustments were recorded during 2008 to adjust the fair value of certain machinery and equipment to

record additional acquisition-related costs and to adjust the purchase price

The increase in goodwill in 2007 in the Products segment is related to the acquisition of Brad

Foote See Note Business Acquisitions of these notes to our consolidated financial statements for

further discussion of these respective acquisitions

Since our adoption of the provisions of SFAS 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets we

perform our annual impairment test of goodwill as of October 31 of each year or more frequently

when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the Companys assets may not be

recovered The Company tests intangible assets for impairment only when events or circumstances

indicate that the carrying value of these assets may be impaired During the fourth quarter
of 2008 we

performed our annual impairment test of goodwill Our analysis indicated that the goodwill attributable

to our RBA subsidiary was impaired as result of projected decline in the discounted cash flows in

RBAs results of operations Our analysis indicated that projected
fair value of RBA assets did not

exceed the carrying value of RBAs net assets Our method in determining the fair value was based

upon our estimate of the projected future discounted cash flows of our reporting units As result we

recorded goodwill impairment charge of $2409 during the fourth quarter to our Products segment

The impairment charge was recorded to operating expenses in our consolidated statement of operations

for the year ended December 31 2008
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As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the cost basis accumulated amortization and net book value
of intangible assets were as follows

Intangible assets

Customer relationships $77558 $1573
Trade names 8119 82
Noncompete agreements

Intangible assets

_______
$85677 $1655

The increase in intangible assets in 2008 is related to the acquisition of Badger and EMS See
Note Business Acquisitions of these notes to our consolidated financial statements for further

discussion of these respective acquisitions

Intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which

range from to 20 years Amortization expense was $11159 $1750 and $21 for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively As of December 31 2008 estimated future

amortization expense is as follows

Total

$12996

12996

12706

12499

12499

41897

$105593

December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Net Net
Accumulated Book Accumulated Book

Cost Amortization Value Cost Amortization Value

$106638

10279

1490

$118407

$11939

585
290

$12814

94699

9694

1200

$105593

$75985

8037

$84022

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014 and thereafter
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11 ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities as of December 31 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following

December 31

2008 2007

Accrued operating expenditures
1110 4217

Accrued payroll and benefits 3631 1894

Accrued capital expenditures
2204

Reimbursement due under Brad Foote purchase agreement 5171

Accrued warranty
890 242

Accrued other 2551 933

Total accrued liabilities $10386 $12457

12 DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS

The Companys outstanding debt balances as of December 31 2008 and 2007 consist of the

following1

December 31

2008 2007

Lines of credit $10831 8327

Term loans and notes payable 28012 22426

Related party note 25000

38843 55753

LessCurrent portion 13051 38133

Long-term debt net of current maturities 25792 $17620

As of December 31 2008 future annual principal payments of our outstanding debt obligations are

as follows1

2009 $13051

2010 14819

2011 9492

2012 506

2013 975

Total $38843

The tables above reflect the revised maturity dates related to credit agreements amended on

March 13 2009 as further described below and in Note 24 Subsequent Events
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Credit Facilities

Brad Foote

In connection with our acquisition of Brad Foote in October 2007 the Company assumed

approximately $25500 of outstanding senior debt and available lines of credit including the following

loans that Brad Foote had obtained from Bank of America formerly known as LaSalle Bank National

Association BOA pursuant to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of January 17 1997 as
previously amended and/or stated the Loan Agreement $10000 now $4000 revolving line of

credit loan the Revolving Loan ii consolidated term loan in the original principal sum of

approximately $7900 the Term Loan iii an $11000 non-revolving equipment line of credit loan

the Equipment Loan and iv $9000 non-revolving equipment line of credit loan with term

conversion feature the Equipment Loan No The promissory notes evidencing the Revolving

Loan the Term Loan The Equipment Loan and the Equipment Loan No are referred to collectively

below as the BOA Notes As described more fully below 1309 South Cicero Avenue LLC
Delaware limited liability company 1309 and 5100 Neville Road LLC Delaware limited liability

company 5100 each wholly-owned subsidiary of Brad Foote subsequently executed Term Note

with BOA in the amount of $2075 dated January 31 2008 as previously amended and/or restated the

Subsidiary Note

The Revolving Loan which was originally scheduled to mature on June 30 2008 had

approximately $5700 outstanding at closing of the Brad Foote acquisition with $4000 outstanding at

December31 2008 The Revolving Loan was extended on September 29 2008 to maturity date of

January 15 2009 and further extended on January 16 2009 to maturity date of March 15 2009
Interest on the Revolving Loan is payable monthly The Term Loan which matures on January 31
2011 had approximately $5300 outstanding at closing of the Brad Foote acquisition with $3291

outstanding at December 31 2008 and requires monthly principal and interest payments The monthly
amount of principal due on the Term Loan is $132 The Equipment Loan had approximately $10000

outstanding at closing of the Brad Foote acquisition with $7333 outstanding at December 31 2008
The Equipment Loan included an option to convert the obligation to term note on April 29 2007
This conversion was effected making the outstanding principal balance of the Equipment Loan payable

in monthly principal installments of $183 commencing on May 31 2007 maturing on April 30 2012
Interest accrues on the outstanding balance of the converted term loan The Equipment Loan No
which matures on June 30 2013 had approximately $4500 outstanding at closing of the Brad Foote

acquisition with $8138 outstanding at December 31 2008 The Equipment Loan No included an

option to convert the obligation to term note which conversion was effected Interest on the

Equipment Loan No was payable monthly until June 30 2008 at which point Brad Foote began

making monthly principal payments of $150 plus interest which accrues on the outstanding balance of

the Equipment Loan No Pursuant to the Omnibus Amendment described below for interest periods

beginning after January 20 2009 the interest rate payable under the BOA Notes and under the

Subsidiary Note is equal to the greater of the rate per annum equal to the British Bankers

Association LIBOR Rate plus five percent 5% and six percent 6% the Current Interest

Rate

On September 29 2008 Brad Foote entered into thirty-first amendment to the Loan Agreement
with BOA Pursuant to such amendment Brad Foote had an obligation to pay down $3000 of the
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outstanding principal amount under the Revolving Loan by September 30 2008 and made the required

payment of such amount on October 2008 Brad Foote received waiver from BOA with respect to

the required payment Additionally the Company failed compliance with two of its covenants

specifically its EBITDA coverage ratio and its cash flow coverage ratio calculations The Company

obtained waiver from BOA of these covenant violations as of September 30 2008

On December 2008 Brad Foote entered into thirty-second amendment to the Loan

Agreement with BOA the Loan Agreement Amendment In connection with the Loan Agreement

Amendment Brad Foote and BOA also entered into an Amended and Restated Renewal Revolving

Note and Note Modification Agreements pertaining to the BOA Notes together the Additional Loan

Agreements Under the terms of the Loan Agreement Amendment and the Additional Loan

Agreements Brad Foote and BOA agreed to permanently reduce the amount of the Revolving Loan

from $10000 to $7000 ii to waive Brad Footes violation of the covenants concerning EBITDA

coverage ratio and cash flow coverage ratio calculations set forth in the Loan Agreement the Loan

Agreement Covenants iii to modify the interest rate charged on the BOA Notes to equal Adjusted

LIBOR generally defined as the rate at which U.S dollar deposits in comparable amount are

offered generally in the London Interbank Eurodollar market plus 2.5 percent pursuant to the

Omnibus Amendment described below such interest rate was subsequently revised to equal the

Current Interest Rate iv that Brad Foote pay down $3000 of the outstanding balance on the

Revolving Loan from loan with the Company and that Brad Foote pay to BOA covenant waiver

fee in the amount of $25 Under the terms of the Loan Agreement Amendment and the Additional

Loan Agreements BOA waived Brad Footes violation of the Loan Agreement Covenants for the

nine-month period ended September 30 2008

On January 16 2009 Brad Foote 1309 and 5100 entered into an Omnibus Amendment

Agreement dated January 15 2009 the Omnibus Amendment with BOA further amending the

Loan Agreement Among other things the Omnibus Amendment provided that BOA waive Brad

Footes violation of the Loan Agreement Covenants for the period from December 31 2008 up to but

not including January 20 2009 ii the maximum amount that Brad Foote may borrow under the note

evidencing the Revolving Loan is $4000 iii the termination date of the Loan Agreement be extended

to March 15 2009 or such earlier time upon which the note evidencing the Revolving Loan becomes

due and payable iv that for interest periods beginning after January 20 2009 the interest rate

payable for the BOA Notes and for the Subsidiary Note be equal to the Current Interest Rate

Brad Footes financial covenants and events of default be amended and restated and vi Brad

Foote pay BOA an amendment and waiver fee in the amount of $25 as well as all reasonable fees and

expenses of BOA incurred in connection with the drafting negotiation execution delivery and

effectiveness of the Omnibus Amendment

In connection with the Omnibus Amendment Brad Foote 1309 5100 the Company and BOA

entered into additional agreements on January 16 2009 including Pledge Agreement pursuant to

which the Company granted BOA first priority security interest in all shares of stock of Brad Foote

and all indebtedness to the Company and any promissory notes and/or instruments representing such

indebtedness ii an Unconditional Guaranty executed by the Company in favor of BOA whereby the

Company guaranteed the payment of Brad Footes indebtedness under the Loan Agreement and

certain other loan documents certain agreements designed to protect 1309 and 5100 against
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fluctuations in interest rates currency exchange rates or commodity prices and any treasury

management services provided to 1309 and/or 5100 by BOA or any affiliate of BOA iii an
Unconditional Guaranty executed by each of 1309 and 5100 in favor of BOA whereby each of 1309
and 5100 guarantees the payment of Brad Footes indebtedness under the Loan Agreement and

iv mortgages from 1309 5100 and Brad Foote to BOA each of through iv above dated as of

January 15 2009

On March 13 2009 Brad Foote 1309 and 5100 entered into the Second Omnibus Amendment
with BOA further amending the Loan Agreement and in connection therewith the Company 1309
and 5100 entered into the Reaffirmation Among other things the Second Omnibus Amendment
further amended and restated certain financial covenants under the Loan Agreement and set forth

certain additional covenants including minimum monthly cumulative EBITDA covenant for Brad
Foote The Second Omnibus Amendment also provided that BOA waive Brad Footes violation of

the minimum EBITDA covenant for the period ending December 31 2008 ii Brad Foote pay to
BOA $1500 of the amount

outstanding on the Revolving Loan $500 of which was paid by the

Company on behalf of Brad Foote and that the maturity date of the Revolving Loan be extended to

January 15 2011 iii the Revolving Loan be amortized pursuant to monthly payments iv BOAs
revolving credit commitment under the Loan Agreement be terminated resulting in BOA having no

obligation to make revolving loans to Brad Foote under the Loan Agreement the maturity dates of

the Equipment Note Equipment Note No and Subsidiary Note be shortened to December 31 2011
and vi Brad Foote pay BOA an extension fee on monthly basis through the end of 2009

The Loan Agreement states that the Revolving Loan Term Loan Equipment Loan and

Equipment Loan No are secured by all of the assets of Brad Foote and that Brad Foote must
maintain insurance on the collateral The Loan Agreement requires Brad Foote to comply with

standard covenants including financial covenants relating to ratios of cash flow coverage and senior

debt to EBITDA to provide monthly financial reporting and to submit our annual audited financial

statements to BOA at the close of each fiscal year Each of the Revolving Loan Term Loan
Equipment Loan and Equipment Loan No become immediately due and payable upon breach of any
covenants or representations made by Brad Foote in the Loan Agreement and upon other customary
events of default

In addition to the covenants described in the preceding paragraph covenants contained in the
Loan Agreement include restrictions on Brad Footes ability to make distributions or dividends incur

indebtedness or make subordinated debt payments as well as limitations on Brad Footes ability to

make capital expenditures any of which could ultimately affect our ability to undertake additional debt
or equity financing

On December 31 2008 Brad Foote entered into an agreement with vendor whereby amongst
other provisions it agreed to payment schedule for certain equipment ordered from such vendor in
the amount of $2784 This amount is included in notes payable on the Companys Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of December 31 2008 The note requires monthly payment of $232 bears an
interest rate of six percent and matures in December 2009

As further described in Note 19 Related Party Transactions in February 2008 Brad Foote

purchased two real estate parcels located in Cicero Illinois and Pittsburg Pennsylvania and assumed
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related debt the balance of which was $1695 and is included in debt on the Companys Consolidated

Balance Sheet at December 31 2008 The notes require monthly payments of $36 and as of March 13

2009 bear an interest rate of of Libor plus 5% or six percent whichever is greater and matures in

December 2011

Tower Tech

In October 2007 Tower Tech obtained secured line of credit the ICB Line from Investors

Community Bank ICB in the amount of $2500 which was increased to $5500 on March 21 2008

As of December 31 2008 Tower Tech had drawn $4664 on the ICB Line The ICB Line is secured by

substantially all of the assets of Tower Tech and RBA Draws on the ICB Line bear interest at

variable rate equal to the greater of 4.25% or 1.75% above The Previous Month Average

30 Day Libor Rate published in The Wall Street Journal Pursuant to Commercial Debt

Modification Agreement dated as of October 22 2008 Tower Tech and ICB extended the maturity date

of the ICB Line to April 22 2009 In connection with the extension Broadwind provided re-executed

guaranties to ICB for all debt owed by each of Tower Tech and RBA to ICB In addition Tower Tech

re-executed its guaranty for debts owed by RBA to ICB and RBA re-executed its guaranty for debts

owed to ICB by Tower Tech We anticipated that each of Tower Tech and RBA would be in violation of

certain financial covenants relating to net worth and debt to net worth ratio as of December 31 2008

Tower Tech and RBA each received waivers on December 29 2008 from ICB for the anticipated

violations On March 13 2009 ICB extended the maturity date of the ICB Line to March 13 2010 the

ICB Line Extension Agreement Pursuant to the ICB Line Extension Agreement Tower Tech

agreed to establish new financial covenants with respect
to minimum debt service coverage ratio and

minimum tangible net worth Tower Tech also agreed to retain their primary deposit accounts with ICB

and that no additional loans or leases be entered into by Tower Tech without the prior approval of

ICB

RBA

On April 2008 RBA executed four promissory notes in favor of ICB the ICB Notes in

the aggregate principal amount of approximately $3781 as follows term note in the maximum

principal amount of approximately $421 bearing interest at per annum rate of 6.85% with maturity

date of October 2012 ii term note in the maximum principal amount of $700 bearing interest at

per annum rate of 5.65% with maturity date of April 25 2013 iii term note in the maximum

principal amount of $928 bearing interest at per annum rate of 5.65% with maturity date of

April 25 2013 and iv line of credit note in the maximum principal amount of $1732 bearing interest

at per annum rate of 4.48% until May 2008 and thereafter at The Previous Month Average

30 Day Libor Rate published in The Wall Street Journal with maturity date of April 2009 the

Line of Credit Note The ICB Notes provide for multiple advances and are secured by substantially

all of the assets of RBA As of December 31 2008 the total amount of indebtedness outstanding

under the ICB Notes was $3564 On March 13 2009 ICB extended the maturity date of the Line of

Credit Note to March 13 2010 the ICB Note Extension Agreement Pursuant to the ICB Note

Extension Agreement RBA agreed to establish new financial covenants with respect to minimum debt

service coverage ratio and minimum tangible net worth RBA also agreed to retain their primary
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deposit accounts with ICB and that no additional loans or leases be entered into by RBA without the

prior approval of ICB

EMS

On January 16 2008 we assumed approximately $2500 of outstanding senior debt in connection

with our acquisition of EMS The debt comprised of various loans maturing on dates from May 2008

to April 2013 In September 2008 EMS paid all outstanding term notes due to DNB National Bank in

the amount of $2425 which included accrued interest of $5

Badger

On March 2006 Badger executed secured promissory note payable to Dairymans State Bank
in the principal amount of approximately $134 bearing interest at per annum rate of 9.25% with

maturity date of March 2011 this loan had approximately $68 outstanding as of December 31 2008
and requires monthly principal and interest payments On October 27 2008 Badger executed secured

promissory note payable to First National Bank FNB in the principal amount of approximately

$109 bearing interest at per annum rate of 6.75% with maturity date of September 27 2009 this

loan had approximately $89 outstanding at December 31 2008 and requires monthly principal and

interest payments On June 20 2008 Badger executed secured promissory note payable to FNB for

revolving line of credit the FNB Line in the maximum principal amount of approximately $488

bearing interest at per annum rate equal to the greater of 5.0% and 1.0% over the prime

rate from time to time with maturity date of June 20 2009 this loan had approximately $467

outstanding at December 31 2008 and requires monthly principal and interest payments

Badger has also entered into various equipment notes and other debt agreements with monthly

payment amounts ranging from $1 to $12 various interest rates ranging from 7.7% to 9.3% and

maturity dates in 2010 through 2013 The total amount of these notes at December 31 2008 was

$1984 and is included within debt on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet

Summary of Term Loans and Notes Payabl

As of December 31 2008 we had outstanding term loans and notes payable totaling $28012
These term loans and notes payable were used to finance building equipment and vehicle expenditures

and were primarily attributable to the assumption of debt as part of our acquisitions completed during

2007 and 2008 In addition to the term loans and notes payable specifically described above the

Company also has outstanding various other term loans and notes payable primarily associated with the

purchase of equipment and vehicles Of the $28012 in outstanding term loans and notes payable

approximately $7466 had fixed interest rate and $20547 had floating interest rate primarily based

on the prime rate of interest less one percentage point The weighted average interest rate for all

outstanding term loans and note payable was 3.30% and the weighted average maturity was

approximately 3.4 years
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12 DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS Continued

Related party note

These notes to our consolidated financial statements make reference herein below to the following

parties Tontine Capital Partners L.P TCP Tontine Partners L.P TP Tontine Overseas

Fund Ltd TOF Tontine Capital Overseas Master Fund L.P TMF and Tontine 25 Overseas

Master Fund L.P T25 and collectively with TMF TCP TP TOF TMF and their affiliates

Tontine

During 2007 in connection with our acquisition of Brad Foote in October 2007 we issued to TP

TMF and TOF senior subordinated convertible promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of

$25000 the Notes Pursuant to their terms the Notes were to accrue interest at 9.5% per annum

until July 19 2008 and 13.5% thereafter and were to mature on October 19 2010 Under the terms of

the Notes Broadwind was required to pay 10% of the original principal amount on the first anniversary

of issuance 40% of the original principal amount on the second anniversary of issuance and the

remaining outstanding balance on the third anniversary of issuance Pursuant to the respective notes

each Note holder had the right to convert the outstanding principal of its Note into newly issued shares

of our common stock at conversion rate of $7.50 per share the Conversion Rights The

Conversion Rights became effective January 19 2008 and were fully exercised on April 24 2008 by TP

TOF and TMF who received an aggregate of 3333332 shares of Broadwind common stock which

represented $25000 in outstanding principal as of the conversion date At that time Broadwind also

paid $1223 worth of related accrued interest on the Notes with cash

See Note 18 Stockholders Equity of the notes to our consolidated financial statements for

further discussion regarding transactions between the Company and Tontine See Note 19 Related

Party Transactions for further discussion regarding transactions between the Company and other

related parties

13 LEASES

The Company leases various property and equipment under operating lease arrangements Lease

terms generally range from to 15
years

with renewal options for extended terms We are required to

make additional payments under certain property leases for taxes insurance and other operating

expenses incurred during the operating lease period Rental expense for the years
ended December 31

2008 2007 and 2006 was $3090 $611 and $400 respectively

In addition we have also entered into capital lease arrangements to finance property and

equipment and assumed capital lease obligations in connection with certain acquisitions The cost basis

and accumulated depreciation of assets recorded under capital leases which are included in property

and equipment are as follows as of December 31 2008 and 2007

December 31

2008 2007

Cost $6592 $1589

Accumulated depreciation 507 25
Net book value $6085 $1564
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13 LEASES Continued

Depreciation expense recorded in connection with assets recorded under capital leases was $482
$25 and $0 for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

As of December 31 2008 future minimum lease payments under capital leases and operating
leases are as follows

Capital Operating
Leases Leases Total

2009
$1315 3537 4852

2010
1167 3291 4458

2011
1128 3095 4223

2012
963 3112 4075

2013
760 2402 3162

2014 and thereafter
7464 7464

Total
5333 $22901 $28234

Lessportion representing interest at weighted average annual rate of

8.89% 834
Principal 4499
Lesscurrent portion 978
Capital lease obligations noncurrent portion $3521

14 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Customer disputes

During 2008 the Company was involved in
pricing dispute with customer which included

accumulated unpaid accounts receivable balances totaling approximately $2249 The Company and the
customer have reached tentative resolution on this matter which resulted in write-off of these

accounts receivable balances during the fourth
quarter of 2008

Purchase commitments

Tower Tech has issued building and equipment purchase commitments associated with the
construction of new wind tower manufacturing facilities located in Brandon South Dakota and Abilene
Texas

totaling approximately $12711 These purchase commitments are scheduled to be completed in
2009

During 2007 Brad Foote entered into purchase contract for equipment with
foreign vendor

During the year ended December 31 2007 Brad Foote recorded net foreign currency loss of $15 due
to the decline in the value of the U.S Dollar relative to the Euro The commitment was converted
from Euros to U.S dollars during the

quarter ended September 30 2008 and no further foreign

currency exposure exists with regard to this commitment On December 31 2008 the purchase
agreement was amended to cancel certain previously agreed upon purchase commitments As

part of
this amended purchase agreement the Company agreed to equipment purchases totaling $3674 of
which $978 was paid as down payment and the remaining $2784 in principal plus accrued interest at

6% per annum is to be paid in twelve equal monthly installments through December 2009 The
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14 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Continued

Company has accounted for this purchase agreement as promissory note and it is included in lines of

credit and notes payable in the current liabilities section of our consolidated balance sheets as of

December 31 2008

Legal proceedings

The Company is subject to legal proceedings in the normal course of business We periodically

evaluate the need to record liabilities in connection with loss contingencies including but not limited

to settlement of legal proceedings and regulatory compliance matters In accordance with SFAS No

Accounting for Contingencies we accrue for costs related to loss contingencies when such costs are

probable and reasonably estimable

Environmental compliance and remediation liabilities

Our operations and products are subject to variety of environmental laws and regulations in the

jurisdictions in which we operate and sell products governing among other things air emissions

wastewater discharges the use handling and disposal of hazardous materials soil and groundwater

contamination employee health and safety and product content performance and packaging Also

certain environmental laws can impose the entire or portion of the cost of investigating and cleaning

up contaminated site regardless of fault upon any one or more of number of parties including the

current or previous owner or operator of the site These environmental laws also impose liability on

any person who arranges for the disposal or treatment of hazardous substances at contaminated site

Third parties may also make claims against owners or operators
of sites and users of disposal sites for

personal injuries and property damage associated with releases of hazardous substances from those

sites

In September 2007 Tower Tech received notice of violation from the Wisconsin Department of

Natural Resources WDNR stating that Tower Tech was in violation of several provisions of the

states air pollution laws and regulations in connection with the construction and operation of two new

paint booths at its Manitowoc Wisconsin facility Tower Tech has entered into negotiations with the

WDNR and currently the WDNR is seeking only monetary penalties and no other relief

Other

Approximately 32% of our employees are covered by two collective bargaining agreements with

local unions These agreements are scheduled to expire in October 2009 and February 2010

15 DER1VAT1VE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As part of our acquisition of Brad Foote in October 2007 the Company assumed two interest rate

swap agreements These swap agreements are intended to minimize the impact of interest rate

fluctuations on certain debt instruments Interest rate swap agreements involve exchanges of fixed or

floating rate interest payments periodically over the life of the agreement without the exchange of the

underlying principal amounts Under the provisions of SFAS 133 all derivatives are measured at fair

value and recognized as either assets or liabilities on the Companys balance sheet The accounting for

changes in the fair value of derivative is dependent upon the use of the derivative and its resulting
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15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Continued

designation Unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met changes in fair value must be recognized

currently in earnings The Companys interest rate swaps do not qualifr for hedge accounting under

SFAS 133 Therefore the Company is required to recognize the swap at its fair market value and

record the fluctuations in the fair value of the swap in current earnings The unrealized loss related to

these fluctuations was approximately $194 and $153 for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively The fair market value of the interest rate swaps of $582 and $388 is recorded as

long-term liability as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

16 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Effective January 2008 the Company implemented SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements

SFAS 157 related to its financial assets and liabilities which defines fair value establishes

framework for its measurement and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The adoption

of SFAS 157 did not have an impact on the measurement of the Companys financial assets and

liabilities but did result in additional disclosures

In 2007 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FAS 157-2 FSP 157-2 which provided one

year deferral for the implementation of SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value that are recorded or disclosed on non-recurring basis The Company elected to apply the

FSP 157-2 deferral and accordingly will not apply SFAS 157 to its goodwill impairment testing

intangibles impairment testing other long-lived assets and non-financial assets or liabilities measured at

fair value in business acquisitions until 2009 The Company is still evaluating the financial statement

impact of the implementation of SFAS 157 for our non-financial assets and liabilities

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer

liability i.e exit price in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

date SFAS 157 requires disclosures that categorize assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one

of three different levels depending on the assumptions i.e inputs used in the valuation Level

provides the most reliable measure of fair value while Level generally requires significant

management judgment Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest

level of input significant to the fair value measurement The SFAS 157 fair value hierarchy is defined as

follows

Level 1Valuations are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

Level 2Valuations are based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or

quoted prices in markets that are not active for which significant inputs are observable either directly

or indirectly

Level 3Valuations are based on prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both

unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement Inputs reflect managements best

estimate of what market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability at the measurement

date
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16 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS Continued

The following table represents the fair values of the Companys financial liabilities

As of December 31 2008

Level Level Level III Total

Liabilities

Interest rate swaps
582 582

Fixed interest rate debt obligations 7438 7438

Total liabilities at fair value $8020 $8020

Effective January 2008 the Company implemented SFAS 159 The Fair Value Option for

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities SFAS 159 which allows companies the option to report

selected financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value The adoption of SFAS 159 had no impact

on our consolidated financial statements

17 INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes pursuant to SFAS No 109 which provides for an asset

and liability approach to accounting for income taxes Deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the

future tax consequences of the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities versus the tax basis of assets and liabilities Under this method deferred tax assets are

recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards

Deferred liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are reduced by

valuation allowance when in the opinion of management it is more likely than not that some portion

or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized The impact of the tax rate changes on deferred tax

assets and liabilities is recognized in the year that the change is enacted

The provision for income taxes for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 consists of

the following

For the Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Current provision

Federal

State 554

Total current provision 554

Deferred credit

Federal 7666 1541 380
State 444 229 56
Total deferred credit 8110 1770 436

Increase in deferred tax valuation allowance 8618 731 436

Total provision benefit for income taxes $1062 $1039
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17 INCOME TAXES Continued

The increase in the valuation allowance was $8618 $731 and $436 for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The deferred tax benefit of $1039 for the year ended

December 31 2007 was related to the change in valuation allowance due to changed expectations about

the realization of deferred tax assets as result of the acquisition of RBA

The tax effects of the temporary differences and net operating losses that give rise to significant

portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows

December 31

2008 2007

Deferred income tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwards $15225 2458
Accrual and reserves 2216 241

Other 410

Total deferred tax assets 17851 2699
Valuation allowance 7368 1167
Deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance 10483 1532

Deferred income tax liabilities

Fixed assets 9624 877
Intangible assets 2356 794

Total deferred tax liabilities 11980 1671

Net deferred tax liability 1497 139

Valuation allowances of $7368 and $1167 have been provided for deferred income tax assets for

which realization is uncertain as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

As of December 31 2008 the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of

approximately $41000 expiring in various years through 2028 The majority of the net operating loss

carry forwards will expire in 2027 and 2028
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The reconciliation of the tax provision benefit computed at the statutory rate to the effective tax

rate is as follows

For the Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Statutory U.S federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State and local income taxes net of federal income tax

benefit 0.4 5.2 4.6

Permanent differences 5.0 0.4 4.1
Loss from

pass through 8.4

Change in valuation allowance 34.6 16.6 15.9
Other 0.6 OA 1L2

Effective income tax rate 4.4% 23.6% 0.0%

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 2007 FIN 48 clarifies the

accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing minimum recognition threshold for tax

provision taken or expected to be taken in tax return that is required to be met before being

recognized in the financial statements FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition measurement

classification interest and penalties accounting in interim periods disclosure and transition The

change in the FIN 48 liability for the year ended December 31 2008 consists of the following

2008

Balance as of January 2008

Tax positions related to current year

Additions 31

Reductions

31

Tax positions related to prior years

Additions 32

Reductions

Settlements

Lapses in statutes of limitations

Additions from current year acquisitions 130

162

Balance as of December 31 2008 $193

It is the Companys policy to include interest and penalties in tax expense During the year
ended

December 31 2008 the Company recognized and accrued approximately $53 of interest and penalties
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17 INCOME TAXES Continued

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S federal and state jurisdictions As of

December 31 2008 open tax years
in the federal and some state jurisdictions date back to 1996 due to

the taxing authorities ability to adjust operating loss carryforwards No changes in settled tax years

have occurred through December 31 2008 The Company does not anticipate there will be material

change in the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months

18 STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

2008 Transactions

On January 16 2008 to finance the cash portion of the EMS acquisition the Company sold an

aggregate of 2031250 shares of unregistered common stock in private placement to TP and T25 at

$8.48 per share for total purchase price of $17225 pursuant to previously disclosed Amended and

Restated Securities Purchase Agreement with TCF TP and T25

In connection with the acquisition of EMS on January 16 2008 the Company issued 1629834

shares of unregistered common stock to the members of EMS calculated at $8.48 per share for total

stock consideration of $13821 The Company entered into registration rights agreement with the

former owners of EMS which provides the former owners with demand and piggyback registration

rights Upon consummation of the Companys acquisition of EMS 7500 shares of restricted stock units

previously granted to certain Company executives vested another 7500 restricted shares vested as of

January 16 2009

In the second quarter of 2008 the Company completed transactions resulting in the sale of an

aggregate of $100500 of its unregistered common stock as follows $500 or 62814 shares was

purchased by member of the Companys Board of Directors at price of $7.96 per share in

connection with this transaction the Company entered into registration rights agreement with the

applicable director that provides the director with piggyback registration rights and an aggregate of

$100000 worth or 12562814 shares was purchased by TCI TE TOF and T25 at price of $7.96 per

share

On April 24 2008 TMF T1 and TOF each converted the full original principal amount of their

respective 9.5% notes into shares of Company common stock Upon conversion an aggregate of

3333332 shares of the Companys common stock were issued to TMF TP and TOE

On June 2008 the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Badger for total

purchase price of $11811 exclusive of transaction-related acquisition costs portion of the purchase

price consisted of 581959 unregistered shares of Broadwinds common stock at price per share of

$10.31 The Company entered into registration rights agreement with former owner of Badger that

provides the former owner with limited piggyback registration rights

On June 25 2008 at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the stockholders of the Company

approved an amendment to the Companys Articles of Incorporation which increased the authorized

number of shares of common stock from 100000000 to 150000000
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2007 Transactions

On March 2007 the Company sold an aggregate of 10266667 shares of its unregistered

common stock in private placement to TCP and TOF at $1.50 per share for total purchase price of

$15400 the March 2007 Tontine Transaction

portion of these proceeds in the amount of $3815 was used to extinguish all third party notes

and portion of related party notes payable The remaining related party notes payable were

extinguished with the issuance of 722295 shares of unregistered common stock at $1.50 per share as

repayment of $1084 of debt owed to certain of the Companys then directors and officers Additionally

certain long-term debt totaling $510 was paid off with the exception of long-term note owed to

Wisconsin Business Development Finance Corporation The remaining proceeds of approximately

$11000 were used to purchase equipment provide working capital and for general corporate purposes

In conjunction with the March 2007 Tontine Transaction an additional 1500000 shares of

unregistered common stock at $1.50 per share were issued to Integritas Inc Integritas for

reimbursement of short term loans and advances totaling $447 for finders fee for Integritas efforts

in finding the two accredited investors for the private placement totaling $1209 and for entering into

consulting service agreement that was to provide on-going marketing services through December 31

2008 totaling $312 The Company terminated this consulting service agreement with Integritas during

June 2007 and expensed the remainder of the agreement cost

On October 19 2007 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Brad Foote The

aggregate consideration paid for the Brad Foote acquisition was $133179 which includes $538 of

transaction related acquisition costs Total consideration included $64146 of the Companys common

stock The Company entered into registration rights agreement with the former owner of Brad Foote

which provides the former owners with certain demand and piggyback registration rights

On October 19 2007 in connection with the acquisition of Brad Foote the Company completed

private placement of 12500000 shares of its unregistered common stock at $4.00 per share totaling

$50000 to TCP TOF TP T25 and TME

Tontine Registration Rights Agreement

In connection with the March 2007 Tontine Transaction the Company entered into Registration

Rights Agreement as amended the Tontine Registration Rights Agreement with TCP and TOE
The Tontine Registration Rights Agreement was subsequently amended on October 19 2007 July 18

2008 September 12 2008 and October 31 2008 Pursuant to the Tontine Registration Rights

Agreement the Company has agreed to register Tontines shares for resale and has provided Tontine

with certain demand and piggyback registration rights The amendment to the Tontine Registration

Rights Agreement dated October 31 2008 extended the deadline for the Companys obligation to file

registration statement to December 31 2008 On January 2009 Tontine executed Waiver the

Waiver relating to the Registration Rights Agreement The Waiver waives the requirement that the

Company file registration statement to register shares held by Tontine no later than December 31
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2008 and extends the deadline for the Companys obligation to file such registration statement to

March 31 2009

See Note 12 Debt and Credit Agreements for further discussion regarding transactions between

the Company and Tontine See Note 19 Related Party Transactions for further discussion regarding

transactions between the Company and other related parties

19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 interest expense of $1226 $547 and

$287 respectively was incurred on shareholder and related party notes

In April 2008 EMS purchased its Howard West facility from the former majority owner of EMS
and its former president and concurrently terminated its lease agreement which required monthly

payment of $5 EMS continues to lease its primary administrative offices machine shop residential

property and
storage

facilities from the former majority owner of EMS and its former president The

agreement provides for one year lease term expiring on December 31 2009 and requires monthly

payment of $10

In February 2008 Brad Foote completed the purchase of two real estate parcels located in Cicero

Illinois and Pittsburgh Pennsylvania Brad Foote previously leased these properties pursuant to lease

agreements dated August 22 2007 Brad Foote acquired the Cicero property from BFG Cicero LLC
an Illinois limited liability company BFG Cicero and acquired the Pittsburgh property from BFG

Pittsburgh LLC Pennsylvania limited liability company BFG Pittsburgh pursuant to two Real

Property Purchase Agreements that were executed on February 14 2008 and effective February 11

2008 together the Purchase Agreements The sole member of each of BFG Cicero and BFG

Pittsburgh is BFG Acquisition LLC an Illinois limited liability company whose sole member is the wife

of the Companys Chief Executive Officer

Prior to the real estate purchase from BFG Cicero and BFG Pittsburgh Brad Foote leased the

properties and the Company accounted for this agreement under the provisions of FASB Interpretation

No 46 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities FIN 46 As defined by FIN 46 BFG Cicero and

BFG Pittsburgh were deemed variable interest entities as Brad Foote was considered the primary

beneficiary The Company accordingly consolidated the assets and liabilities of these entities which

primarily consisted of land buildings and third party debt BFG Cicero and BFG Pittsburgh were

jointly and severally liable on the debt although there were no recourse provisions or guarantees of the

debt by Brad Foote or the Company As of December 31 2007 the interest rate on the debt was

6.25% and there was $65 of interest accrued Additionally the Company recognized pre-tax losses of

$95 for the
year

ended December 31 2007 as result of consolidating BFG Cicero and BFG

Pittsburgh

As of December 31 2007 amounts due from shareholders totaling $282 were included within

other current assets on our consolidated balance sheets This amount represented payments made by

the Company on behalf of four shareholders in connection with the March 2007 sale of stock by each

of the shareholders During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company wrote off these amounts
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19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS Continued

During the year ended December 31 2006 the Companys shareholders provided managerial

services to the Company without charge The Company determined the fair value of these services to

be $243 These amounts were recorded as selling general and administrative expense and contributed

capital No managerial services were provided without charge during the years
ended December 31

2008 or 2007

See Note 18 Stockholders Equity for further discussion regarding transactions between the

Company and related parties

20 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Overview of Share-Based Compensation Plan

The Company grants incentive stock options and other equity awards pursuant to the Broadwind

Energy Inc 2007 Equity Incentive Plan the EIP which was approved by the Companys Board of

Directors in October 2007 and by the Companys stockholders in June 2008 In August 2008 the

Companys Board of Directors approved certain non-material amendments to the EIP that clarify the

terms and conditions of restricted stock awards under the EIP and provide that the administrator of

the EIP has the authority to effect future amendments to the ElF The EIP reserves 3500000 shares of

common stock for grants to officers directors and other key employees As of December 31 2008 we

have reserved 2030000 shares for the exercise of stock options outstanding 135000 shares for

restricted stock awards and 1335000 additional shares for future stock option awards under the ElF

Stock Options The exercise price of stock options granted under the EIP is equal to the closing

price of our common stock on the date of grant Through December 31 2008 we have granted stock

options that become exercisable ratably over five-year service period beginning on the date of grant

and stock options expire ten years
after the date of grant If plan participants employment is

terminated for any reason during the vesting period he or she forfeits the right to unvested stock

option awards

Restricted Stock The granting of restricted stock units is provided for under the EIF and except

as discussed below such units that have been granted through December 31 2008 vest ratably over

five-year service period on the anniversary of the grant date The fair value of each grant is equal to

the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant and is expensed ratably over the term of

the restricted stock award If plan participants employment is terminated for any reason during the

vesting period he or she forfeits the right to any unvested portion of the restricted stock units

During the fourth quarter of 2007 restricted stock units were granted to certain executives in

connection with the Companys acquisition of EMS Half of the restricted stock vested upon the closing

of the Companys acquisition of EMS which occurred on January 16 2008 The remaining half of these

restricted stock units vest one year from the closing date of the acquisition
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Stock option activity during the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 under the EIP was as

follows

Weighted Average

Options Exercise Price

950000 7.92

950000 7.92

1165000 $14.59

85000 $11.38

2030000 $11.60

206667

Exercise Price Ranges

$4.60 $5.51

$8.00 $12.85

$17.21 $18.20

$25.20 $26.30

Number of options

outstanding

55000

1522500

297500

155000

2030000

Outstanding as of December 31 2006

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Cancelled

Outstanding as of December 31 2007

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Cancelled

Outstanding as of December 31 2008

Exercisable as of December 31 2008

Weighted Average

Remaining
Contractual Term

9.2 years

8.8 years

Aggregate Intrinsic

Value

in thousands

$79

$177.92

The following table summarizes information with respect to all outstanding and exercisable stock

options under the EIP as of December 31 2008

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average

Weighted Average Remaining Number Weighted Average
Exercise Price Contractual Term Exercisable Exercise Price

4.68 8.8 years 10000 $4.60

9.10 9.1 years 196667 8.09

18.03 9.5 years

26.26 9.4 years

$11.60 9.2 years 206667 $7.92
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The following table summarizes information with
respect to outstanding restricted stock units as of

December 31 2008 and 2007

Weighted Average

Grant.Date Fair Value

Number of Units Per Units

Outstanding as of December 31 2006

Granted 15000 $10.90

Forfeited

Outstanding as of December 31 2007 15000 $10.90

Granted 120000 $10.70

Vested 7500 $10.90

Forfeited

Outstanding as of December 31 2008 127500 $10.71

Share-Based Award Assumptions

In accordance with the pronouncement provisions of SFAS 123R the fair value of each stock

option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model Our

detennination of the fair value of each stock option is affected by our stock price on the date of grant

as well as assumptions regarding number of highly complex and subjective variables These variables

include but are not limited to our expected stock price volatility over the expected life of the awards

and actual and projected stock option exercise behavior The weighted average fair value per share of

stock option awards granted during the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 and assumptions

used to value stock options are as follows

For the Year

Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate 3.1% 4.1%

Weighted average volatility 65.5% 60.0%

Expected life in years 6.5 5.0

Weighted average grant date fair value per share of options

granted $7.18 $4.34

Dividend yield is zero as the Company currently does not pay dividend

Risk-free rate is based on the implied yield currently available on U.S Treasury zero coupon issues

with remaining term equal to the expected life of the award

Volatility is estimated based on comparable volatility averages for the energy related sector at the

time of grant During the year ended December 31 2008 we utilized range of expected volatility
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20 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION Continued

assumptions for purposes of estimating the fair value of stock options awarded during the period Such

volatility assumptions ranged from 60% to 70%

The expected life of each stock option award granted during the
year

ended December 31 2008

was derived using the simplified method for estimating the expected term of vanilla-option in

accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB No 107 Share-Based Payment as amended by

SAB No 110 Share-Based Payment The expected life of each stock option award granted during the

year ended December 31 2007 was estimated based on the service period of the stock option award

The fair value of each unit of restricted stock is equal to the fair market value of our common

stock as of the date of grant

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense included in our consolidated

statements of operations for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 as follows

For the Year

Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Share-based compensation expense

Selling general and administrative $1999 $142

Income tax benefit1

Net effect of share-based compensation expense on net loss $1999 $142

Reduction in earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share2 0.02 $0.00

Income tax benefit is not illustrated because the Company is currently operating at loss

and actual income tax benefit may not be realized for the years ended December 31 2008

and 2007 The result of the loss situation creates timing difference resulting in

deferred tax asset which is fully reserved for in the valuation allowance

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 does not

include common stock equivalents due to its anti-dilutive nature as result of the

Companys net losses for these respective periods Accordingly basic earnings per share

and diluted earnings per share are identical for all periods presented

As of December 31 2008 we estimate that pre-tax compensation expense for all unvested share

based awards including both stock options and restricted stock units in the amount of approximately

$12375 will be recognized through the year 2013 We expect to satisfy the exercise of stock options and

future distribution of shares of restricted stock by issuing new shares of common stock
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21 SEGMENT REPORTING

Per the pronouncement criteria in SFAS No 131 Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and

Related Information SFAS 131 we have identified two reportable operating segments consisting of

Products and Services

Products includes the manufacturing of components for the wind and energy-related industries

including tower support structures gearing systems and mining and other heavy equipment

Services includes construction operations support maintenance and component repairs for wind

turbines and specialized heavy-haul trucking services

As previously reported in our 2007 Annual Report filed on Form 10-KSB the Company had two

reportable segments Towers and Fabrication and Gearing Systems In January 2008 we acquired

EMS which provides construction support engineering and maintenance services and in June 2008 we

acquired Badger which provides specialized heavy haul trucking services As result of these

acquisitions we revised our segments to properly categorize our current operating segments

Accordingly all prior period segment information has been reclassified to conform to our new

reportable operating segments for all periods presented

Our chief operating decision-maker evaluates segment performance based on revenues gross

profit and operating income or loss Adjustments to reconcile segment results to consolidated results

are included under the caption Corporate and Other which primarily includes corporate

administrative expenses and intercompany eliminations

Summary financial information by reportable segment is as follows

Revenues For the Years Ended Operating Loss For the Years Ended

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Segments
Products segment $177114 $29804 $4023 1630 $3217 $2321
Services segment 41502 2602
Corporate and Other1 1295 17511 318

$217321 $29804 $4023 $21743 $3535 $2321

Gross Profit Deficit Depreciation and Amortization

For the Years Ended For the Years Ended

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Segments

Products segment $23332 $3939 $799 $17049 $3523 $328

Services segment 10880 4797

Corporate and Other1 842 20

$33370 $3939 $799 $21866 $3523 $328
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21 SEGMENT REPORTING Continued

Total Assets as of

December 31

2008 2007

Segments

Products segment $308044 $210713

Services segment 65795

Corporate and Other2 5909 4895

$379748 $205818

Corporate and Other includes corporate administrative expenses and intercompany

eliminations Corporate selling general and administrative expenses includes corporate

salaries and benefits share-based compensation and professional fees

Corporate and Other includes assets of the corporate headquarters and intercompany

eliminations

We generate revenues entirely from transactions completed in the United States and our long-lived

assets are located in the United States During the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

three or fewer customers accounted for 72% 70% and 97% respectively of total net sales In addition

as of December 31 2008 and 2007 three or fewer customers comprised approximately 61% and 63%
respectively of our total outstanding accounts receivable balances

22 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Retirement Savings and Profit Sharing Plans

In October 2007 the Company began sponsoring defined contribution 401k retirement savings

plan covering substantially all of its corporate employees and employees at its Brad Foote and Tower

Tech subsidiaries Under the terms of the plan an eligible employee may elect to contribute portion

of their salary on pre-tax basis subject to federal statutory limitations The plan allowed for

discretionary match in an amount up to 50% of each participants first 4% of compensation

contributed

As part of the acquisitions of RBA in October 2007 EMS in January 2008 and Badger in June

2008 the Company adopted the defined contribution 401k retirement savings plan provisions that

were previously in effect at these respective companies Under the RBA defined contribution 401k
retirement savings plan which covered substantially all of its employees the plan allowed for the

Company to provide discretionary match of 100% of the participants contributions up to 4% of the

participants compensation Under the EMS defined contribution 401k retirement savings plan which

covered substantially all of its employees the plan allowed for the Company to provide discretionary

match or profit sharing contribution each year Under the Badger defined contribution 401k
retirement savings plan which covered substantially all of its employees the plan required the

Company to match 100% of the participants contributions up to 3% of the participants compensation

and an additional 50% up to 5% of the participants compensation
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22 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS Continued

For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 we recorded expenses under these plans of

approximately $368 and $74 respectively

Effective January 2009 the Company replaced all of its defined contribution 401k retirement

savings plans with one defined contribution 401k safe harbor plan covering substantially all of the

Companys non-union employees Under the new plan an eligible employee may elect to contribute

portion of their salary on pre-tax basis subject to federal statutory limitations The plan requires the

Company to make basic matching contributions equal to 100% of the first 3% of the eligible

participants plan compensation contributed as elective deferral contributions and 50% of the next 2%

of the eligible participants plan compensation contributed as an elective deferral contribution Under

the plan elective deferrals and basic company matching will be 100% vested at all times

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company maintains deferred compensation plan for certain key employees and

nonemployee directors whereby certain wages earned compensation for services rendered and

discretionary company-matching contributions are deferred and deemed to be invested in the

Companys common stock Changes in the fair value of the plan liability are recorded as charges or

credits to compensation expense Compensation expense recorded during the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were $170 $0 and $0 respectively The fair value of the plan

liability to the Company is included in accrued liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets As of

December 31 2008 and 2007 the fair value of plan liability to the Company was $80 and $0

respectively

In addition to the employee benefit plans described above the Company participates in certain

customary employee benefits plans including those which provide health and life insurance benefits to

employees

23 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL SUMMARY UNAUDITED

The following table provides summary of selected financial results of operations by quarter for

the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 as follows

2008 First Second Third Fourth

Revenues $35164 $40830 $63688 77639
Gross profit 8010 10091 8982 6287

Operating loss 1939 1642 6060 12102
Net loss 3443 1973 7499 12370
Net loss per share

Basic and Diluted 0.04 0.02 0.08 0.14

2007 First Second Third Fourth

Revenues $2219 $2643 $3123 $21819
Gross profit 697 1116 1284 842

Operating income loss 236 365 590 4726
Net income loss 181 479 683 4705
Net income loss per share

Basic and Diluted 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.07
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24 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 13 2009 Badger obtained term loan from FNB the FNB Term Loan in the

amount of approximately $1538 portion of the proceeds from the FNB Term Loan was used to pay
off the FNB Line and Badgers existing term loan with FNB referenced above with the remainder

available for working capital The FNB Term Loan is secured by the inventory accounts receivable and

certain equipment of Badger The FNB Term Loan bears interest at rate of 6.75% per annum
matures on March 13 2013 and is guaranteed by Broadwind

On March 13 2009 ICB agreed to extend the maturity date of the ICB Line to March 13 2010

the ICB Line Extension Agreement Pursuant to the ICB Line Extension Agreement Tower Tech

agreed to establish new financial covenants with
respect to minimum debt service coverage ratio and

minimum tangible net worth Tower Tech also agreed to retain their primary deposit accounts with ICB
and that no additional loans or leases be entered into by Tower Tech without the prior approval of

ICB

On March 13 2009 ICB agreed to extend the maturity date of the Line of Credit Note to

March 13 2010 the ICB Note Extension Agreement Pursuant to the ICB Note Extension

Agreement RBA agreed to establish new financial covenants with
respect to minimum debt service

coverage ratio and minimum
tangible net worth RBA also agreed to retain their primary deposit

accounts with ICB and that no additional loans or leases be entered into by RBA without the prior

approval of ICB

On March 13 2009 Brad Foote entered into amended debt agreements with BOA as further

described in Note 12 Debt and Credit Agreement
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10.78 Form of Executive Incentive Stock Option Agreement incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 16 2009

10.79 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 16 2009

10.80 Form of Nonqualified Option Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 16 2009
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.81 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 16 2009

10.82 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 16 2009

10.83 Form of Performance Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 16 2009

10.84 Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 16 2009

10.85 Broadwind Energy Inc Executive Short-Term Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 16 2009

10.86 Second Omnibus Amendment Agreement dated as of March 13 2009 by and among Brad

Foote Gear Works Inc 1309 South Cicero Avenue LLC 5100 Neville Road LLC and Bank

of America N.A filed herewith

10.87 Reaffirmation made by each of Broadwind Energy Inc 1309 South Cicero Avenue LLC and

5100 Neville Road LLC for the benefit of Bank of America N.A filed herewith

10.88 Agreement Governing Extensions of Credit dated March 13 2009 between Tower Tech and

Investors Community Bank filed herewith

10.89 Commercial Debt Modification Agreement dated March 13 2009 between Tower Tech and

Investors Community Bank filed herewith

10.90 Agreement Governing Extensions of Credit dated March 13 2009 between RBA and

Investors Community Bank filed herewith

10.91 Commercial Debt Modification Agreement dated March 13 2009 between RBA and

Investors Community Bank filed herewith

14.1 Code of Ethics and Business Conduct as amended and restated through December 13 2007

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed December 19 2007

21.1 Subsidiaries of Broadwind Energy Inc filed herewith

31.1 Rule 13a-14a Certification of Chief Executive Officer filed herewith

31.2 Rule 13a-14a Certification of Chief Financial Officer filed herewith

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of Chief Executive Officer filed herewith

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of Chief Financial Officer filed herewith
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Cameron Drecoll Chief Executive Officer of Broadwind Energy Inc certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Broadwind Energy Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or

omit to state material fact
necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e
and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and

15d-f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within

those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and

presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation

of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of

the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 16 2009

/s/ CAMERON DRECOLL

Cameron Drecoll

Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Matthew Gadow Chief Financial Officer of Broadwind Energy Inc certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Broadwind Energy Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or

omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations
and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible
for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e

and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and

15d-f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating

to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within

those entities particularly during the period in whjch this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and

presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation

of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of

the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

Ail significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 16 2009

Is MArrHEw Grow

Matthew Gadow

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUT1VE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Broadwind Energy Inc the Company
for the year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissionon the

date hereof the Report Cameron Drecoll Chief Executive Officer of the Company certify

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or Section 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and

ii the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the

financial condition and results of operations of the Company

March 16 2009

/s CAMERON DREc0LL

Cameron Drecoll

Chief Executive Officer

This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 and shall not be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the

Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request

109



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Broadwind Energy Inc the Company
for the year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the

date hereof the Report Matthew Gadow Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or Section 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and

ii the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the

financial condition and results of operations of the Company

March 16 2009

Is MAYrHEW GAD0w

Matthew Gadow

Chief Financial Officer

This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 and shall not be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the

Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange

Commission or its staff upon request
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